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This Registration Document was filed with the Autorité des marchés financiers (French market authority, or AMF), in accordance
with article 212-13 of the General Regulations of the AMF on 17 March 2017. This document can only be used to support a
financial transaction when accompanied by a securities note endorsed by the AMF. This document contains all the information

relating to the annual financial report as required by paragraph | of article L. 451-1-2 of the French Monetary and Financial Code.

This document was prepared by the issuer and is binding on its signatories.

Copies of this Registration Document are available free of charge at the registered office of Groupe Eurotunnel SE. This
Registration Document can also be viewed on the websites of the AMF (www.amf-france.org) and Groupe Eurotunnel SE

(www.eurotunnelgroup.com).

Unless indicated otherwise, all the figures in this Registration Document have been calculated by applying either the euro/sterling
exchange rate on 31 December 2016 (£1=€1.168) for balance sheet items, or the average rate for 2016 (£1=€1.216) for elements of

the income statement.

In application of article 28-1 of EC Regulation 809/2004 of the European Commission, the following information is included in this

Registration Document by reference:

e The Eurotunnel Group’s consolidated accounts for the year ended 31 December 2015 prepared in accordance with IFRS and
the report of the statutory auditors thereon, as well as the Eurotunnel Group’s operating and financial review for the year ended
31 December 2015, are included in Groupe Eurotunnel SE’s Registration Document for 2015 filed with the AMF on

10 March 2016;

e Groupe Eurotunnel SE’s parent company accounts for the year ended 31 December 2015 prepared in accordance with French
accounting standards and the report of the statutory auditors thereon are included in Groupe Eurotunnel SE’s Registration

Document for 2015 filed with the AMF on 10 March 2016;

e The Eurotunnel Group’s consolidated accounts for the year ended 31 December 2014 prepared in accordance with IFRS and
the report of the statutory auditors thereon, as well as the Eurotunnel Group’s operating and financial review for the year ended
31 December 2014, are included in Groupe Eurotunnel SE’s Registration Document for 2014 filed with the AMF on

27 March 2015; and

e Groupe Eurotunnel SE’s parent company accounts for the year ended 31 December 2014 prepared in accordance with French
accounting standards and the report of the statutory auditors thereon are included in Groupe Eurotunnel SE’s Registration

Document for 2014 filed with the AMF on 27 March 2015.

™ This document (the “2016 Registration Document”) is an unofficial English language translation of Groupe Eurotunnel SE’s “Document de
Référence 2016 filed with the AMF on 17 March 2017. In the event of any inconsistencies between this document and the original French

document, the text of the French document shall be considered authoritative.
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PRESENTATION OF THE GROUP AND ITS BUSINESSES

1.1. INTRODUCTION

1.1.1 HISTORY AND DEVELOPMENT OF GROUPE EUROTUNNEL SE

In 22 years, the Tunnel has fundamentally changed commercial exchanges with the United Kingdom by allowing for the
development of new cross-border logistics chains, integrated in continental Europe, as well as opening up to new markets": 30%
of British exports to the European Union (some €54.8 billion) and 22% of imports from the European Union (approximately
€60 billion) depend on the rapidity and the reliability of the Tunnel. Exports transiting through the Tunnel alone participate in
supporting 220,000 jobs in the United Kingdom.

The Tunnel allows, every year, more than 21 million passengers to cross the Channel aboard Le Shuttle Passenger Shuttles or
Eurostar passenger trains. The economic footprint generated by the tourists that travel through the Tunnel is estimated at
€2.1 billion, contributing to 45,000 additional jobs in the United Kingdom.

The Group was created in 1986 with the signing of the Concession Agreement granting the Franco-British consortium, “France
Manche SA / The Channel Tunnel Group Limited” the construction, financing and operation of the Channel Tunnel. The operation
of the Tunnel started in 1994. In 2007 a new holding company, Groupe Eurotunnel SA (GET SA), was set up. This new company,
under an exchange offer, proposed to all shareholders of the former Eurotunnel structure, to exchange their twinned shares for
ordinary shares of Groupe Eurotunnel SA. This offer was accepted by more than 93% of shareholders. In late 2007, Eurotunnel PLC
and Eurotunnel SA became TNU PLC and TNU SA and were absorbed by Groupe Eurotunnel SA in May 2009 and October 2010
respectively.

1.1.2 THE GROUP’S STRUCTURE

Groupe Eurotunnel SE (GET SE) is a French law regulated European company with a board of directors, incorporated in Paris,
France and is governed by the relevant provisions of prevailing French and EC laws and regulations. GET SE is registered with the
Paris Trade and Companies Registry under registration number 483 385 142 (SIRET: 48338514200052, NAF code: 6420Z). The
registered office of GET SE is located at 3 rue La Boétie, 75008 Paris, France.

The legal structure of GET SA was incorporated on 6 July 2005 for a fixed period of 99 years from the date of its registration in the
Paris Trade and Companies Registry, i.e. until 3 August 2104. The company was converted on 26 December 2014 to a European
company and the issuer’s name changed to Groupe Eurotunnel SE. As a European company, Groupe Eurotunnel SE is a member
of ASEP, the Alliance for the Promotion of European Companies.

The ordinary shares issued by Groupe Eurotunnel SE are listed on Euronext Paris and UK Listing Authority in London (as a
standard) and are traded on Euronext Paris and Euronext London.

GET SE'’s role with regards to its subsidiaries is set out in the introduction to the notes to the GET SE parent company accounts in
section 2.2.2 of this Registration Document.

On 31 December 2016, as shown in the following chart, the Group consists of a total of 56 subsidiaries, including 23 located in
France and 30 located in the United Kingdom.

In 2016, the Group was organised around the following three business sectors:
e the Concession for the cross-Channel Fixed Link segment “Fixed Link”;

e the Europorte rail freight segment; and

e the ElecLink segment.

The Fixed Link segment

France Manche SA (FM) and The Channel Tunnel Group Limited (CTG) operate the Tunnel as Concessionaires in accordance with
the Treaty of Canterbury and the Concession Agreement. The main provisions of the Treaty of Canterbury and the Concession
Agreement are described in chapter 8 of this Registration Document. FM and CTG, whose shares are twinned, are the borrowing
entities under the current bank financing agreements. FM is a société anonyme with a board of directors, the chairman and chief
executive officer of which is Jacques Gounon. CTG is a limited company with a board of directors, the chairman of which is
Jacques Gounon.

™ Source Economic footprint of the Channel Tunnel fixed link: An analysis of the economic value of trade and passenger traffic travelling through the
Channel Tunnel October 2016
http://www.eurotunnelgroup.com/uploadedFiles/assets-uk/the-channel-tunnel/EY-Channel-Tunnel-UK.pdf
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PRESENTATION OF THE GROUP AND ITS BUSINESSES

Eurotunnel Services GIE (ESGIE) and Eurotunnel Services Limited (ESL) employ and manage the personnel of the Eurotunnel
Group, essentially for the activities of the Concession. Relations between the employing companies of the Group and the Group’s
subsidiaries are described in section 6.2 of this Registration Document.

Centre International de Formation Ferroviaire de la Céte d’Opale (CIFFCO) supplies professional training services in the rail field as
described in chapter 6 of this Registration Document.

Eurotunnel SE heads the distribution in continental Europe (excluding France) of the Truck Shuttle Service activity.

Eurotunnel Financial Services Limited is authorised by the Financial Conduct Authority to resell insurance products offered to
passengers when they make their reservations. CTG acts as a representative of Eurotunnel Financial Services Limited for these
requirements.

Gamond Insurance Company Limited, a subsidiary entirely controlled by CTG, is registered in Guernsey and its sole purpose is to
provide the Eurotunnel Group with insurance against acts of terrorism. Gamond Insurance Company Limited takes out reinsurance
with Pool Re. Eurotunnel Trustees Limited is no longer active.

Euro Immo GET SAS, a subsidiary of Société Immobiliére et Fonciere Eurotunnel (SIFE), manages and develops property assets
and performs associated activities.

Eurotunnel Developments Limited and its subsidiary Orbital Park Limited were responsible for the development of all property in
the United Kingdom which was not used in connection with the operation of the System. These companies are no longer active.

The Cheriton Resources companies are finance or investment companies, mostly inactive. London Carex Limited is involved in a
potential project for the development of rail freight in the United Kingdom, as explained in section 1.5 of this Registration
Document.

Eurotunnel Agent Services Limited holds the floating rate notes described in note G.3 to the consolidated financial statements
contained in section 2.2.1 of this Registration Document.

The rail freight segment: Europorte

The holding company Europorte SAS groups all the rail freight transport subsidiaries (Europorte segment) providing a wide range
of integrated rail freight services, including national and international haulage, local services for secondary lines, and services to
industry (individual junction management, infrastructure maintenance, and wagon loading and unloading).

The subsidiaries of the holding company Europorte SAS are as follows:

e The French subsidiaries of Europorte SAS: Europorte France (EPF), Europorte Proximité (EPP), Socorail and Europorte Channel
(EPC); Europorte SAS holds 20% of the share capital of Manutention Transport Service SAS (MTS);

e EuroSco: management of the rolling stock belonging to the Europorte companies; and

e Bourgogne Fret Services, jointly owned with Cérévia.

GB Railfreight Limited (GBRY), a rail freight operator in the United Kingdom, was sold on 15 November 2016.

The ElecLink segment

The corporate purpose of ElecLink is to build and operate a 1,000 MW capacity electricity interconnector between France and
Great Britain. The preliminary work began in the last quarter of 2016 and the interconnector is scheduled to be brought into service
at the beginning of 2020. On 23 August 2016, GET Elec Limited, a subsidiary of GET SE, acquired from Star Capital its 51% share
in the joint venture ElecLink Limited.

The maritime segment MyFerryLink

The Eurotunnel Group discontinued its maritime business and the three ferries Berlioz, Rodin and Nord-Pas-de-Calais are the
object of bareboat charter contracts, signed respectively with the DFDS group and Vansea Shipping Company Limited, as
described in section 8.1.6 of this Registration Document. The holding company EuroTransManche Holding SAS groups:

e the entities that own the ferries (EuroTransManche, EuroTransManche 3Be, EuroTransManche 3NPC); and

e MpyFerryLink SAS which used to carry out the marketing activity.
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PRESENTATION OF THE GROUP AND ITS BUSINESSES

1.1.3 SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The tables below are extracted from the consolidated income statements, statements of financial position and cash flow
statements for Groupe Eurotunnel SE for the financial years ended 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2014. For more information, see chapter 2 of this Registration Document.

Consolidated revenue
Eurotunnel Group consolidated revenue for 2016 comprises the following main sources of income:
e the Fixed Link activities, mainly:
— the Shuttle Service (Le Shuttle) for both the transport of trucks and the transport of cars, motor homes, caravans, coaches,
motorcycles and trailers on its Passenger Shuttles;
— payments made for use of the Railway Network by High-Speed Passenger Trains (Eurostar) and by Train Operators’ Rail
Freight Services;
e the Europorte rail freight segment.

Eurotunnel Group 2016 revenue breaks down as follows:

31 December 31 December 31 December
€ MILLION 2016 2015 2014

Exchange rate €/£ 1.216 1.375 1.258
Shuttle Services 603 580 527
Railway Network 290 319 305
Other revenue 14 16 15
Subtotal Fixed Link Concession 907 915 847
Europorte 116 123 115
Revenue 1,023 1,038 962

*

Restated in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight Limited (see note C.3 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements in
section 2.2.1 of this Registration Document).

Summary income statements

31 December 31 December 31 December
€ MILLION 2016 2015 2014%

Exchange rate €/£ 1.216 1.375 1.258
Revenue 1,023 1,038 962
Operating costs (509) (518) 472)
Operating margin (EBITDA) 514 520 490
Depreciation (150) (144) (155)
Trading profit 364 376 335
Other net operating income/(charges) 37 ) (8)
Operating profit (EBIT) 401 374 327
Share of net result of equity-accounted companies (1) 1) 1)
Net finance cost (262) (261) (272)
Net other financial income/(charges) 16 8) (4)
Pre-tax profit from continuing operations 154 104 50
Income tax expense of continuing operations (18) 8) (®)]
Net profit from continuing operations 136 96 47
Net profit from discontinued operations 64 4 10
Net profit for the year 200 100 57

*

Restated in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight Limited (see note C.3 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements in
section 2.2.1 of this Registration Document).
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PRESENTATION OF THE GROUP AND ITS BUSINESSES

Summary statements of financial position

31 December
2016

31 December

31 December

€ MILLION 2015 2014
Exchange rate €/£ 1.168 1.362 1.284
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 6,366 6,376 6,478
Other non-current assets 280 320 309
Total non-current assets 6,646 6,696 6,787
Trade and related receivables 94 129 146
Other current assets 172 67 46
Assets held for sale - 65 -
Cash and cash equivalents 347 406 385
Total current assets 613 667 577
Total assets 7,259 7,363 7,364
Total equity 1,812 1,663 1,758
Total financial liabilities 3,786 4,161 4,084
Interest rate derivatives 1,309 1,170 1,199
Other liabilities 352 369 323
Total equity and liabilities 7,259 7,363 7,364

Summary cash flow statements

31 December
2016

31 December

31 December

€ MILLION 2015 2014
Exchange rate €/£ 1.168 1.362 1.284
Net cash inflow from trading 532 556 498
Other operating cash flows and taxation (32) (12) 4
Net cash inflow from operating activities 500 544 502
Net cash outflow from investing activities (94) (106) (77)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (425) (432) (829)
(Decrease)/increase in cash in year (19) 6 96

1.2. CROSS-CHANNEL ACTIVITIES

Under the terms of the Concession Agreement, the States have granted to the Concessionaires the right and the obligation to
ensure the design, financing, construction and operation of the Fixed Link between France and the United Kingdom, without
prejudice to the sovereign role of the States in terms of control and border enforcement. The Concession Agreement will expire
in 2086.

The Fixed Link comprises three tunnels of a length of about 50 kilometres each, for the most part located under the Channel, as

well as the two terminals at Folkestone in the United Kingdom and Coquelles in France, the fixed equipment and the related

installations:

e Two rail tunnels with a single track are, during normal service, each used by the trains moving in a single direction.

e The third tunnel, located for most of its length between the two main rail tunnels, is a secure means for evacuation and is also
used for Tunnel maintenance.

e |n addition, there are two cross-over points between the rail tunnels that, during maintenance work on certain sections of the
tunnels, allow the trains to change between tunnels.

The Fixed Link is directly connected to the British and French motorway networks, via the Folkestone and Coquelles terminals
which are the starting and ending points for the vehicles using the Shuttle Services. Sales and food service areas are available to
the customers at each terminal. The Fixed Link is also connected to the national French and British rail networks and more
particularly to the high-speed lines.

The Fixed Link is an integrated transport system, including road shuttle services (for cars and trucks) and the rail service
(passenger and freight trains). FM and CTG, Concessionaires operate the transport system with Shuttles and make paths available
to companies that have a licence allowing them to operate cross-Channel rail freight services.

2016 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT - GROUPE EUROTUNNEL SE



PRESENTATION OF THE GROUP AND ITS BUSINESSES

1.2.1 MAIN MARKETS

The Fixed Link offers (i) a Shuttle Service between Calais and Folkestone, which competes directly with ferry operators between
Dover and Continental Europe in the transport of passengers, cars, coaches and trucks, and (i) a Railway Network on which
Railway Companies can run rail freight trains and High-Speed Passenger Trains. The Eurotunnel Group operates in the transport
market between continental Europe and the United Kingdom.

a) Freight market

Freight traffic between continental Europe and the United Kingdom is commonly divided into four distinct modes:

e Roll-On/Roll-Off accompanied: trucks and trailers crossing the Channel or the North Sea on Shuttles or ferries at the same time
as the road tractor and driver, mostly via the Short Straits;

¢ Roll-On/Roll-Off unaccompanied: trailers crossing the Channel or the North Sea independently of the road tractor, mostly via
North Sea routes;

e Rail freight: conventional or Intermodal trains running through the Tunnel; and

e Lift-On/Lift-Off: moveable containers or swap bodies loaded on Lift-On/Lift-Off container ships, mostly on the North
Sea routes.

The market is based on three corridors:

e the Short Straits: all routes from continental Europe to Dover, Folkestone and Ramsgate (including the Tunnel);

e the English Channel: all routes from continental Europe to ports on the south coast of the United Kingdom to South-West
Folkestone; and

e the North Sea: all routes from continental Europe to ports on the east coast of the United Kingdom to the north of Ramsgate
(including the Thames Estuary).

The modal distribution varies by geographic zone. For accompanied trucks, the long trip across the English Channel or the even
longer trip across the North Sea is costly. These routes are more suitable for Roll-On/Roll-Off unaccompanied and Lift-On/Lift-Off
solutions.

By contrast, the shorter crossing times of the Short Straits are more suitable to time-sensitive traffic, and attract a much larger
share of Roll-On/Roll-Off accompanied traffic.

Short Straits
In the freight market, the Truck Shuttle Service is in competition with ferry operators on the accompanied road transport route
across the Short Straits.

Over the last 20 years, there has been a marked shift towards the use of accompanied trucks in the freight market between
continental Europe and the United Kingdom. The market shares between the different routes are now relatively stable.

The Roll-On/Roll-Off accompanied mode on the Short Straits routes still continues to grow because it provides the shortest and
quickest route for crossing the Channel.

The Short Straits’ (Truck Shuttles’ and ferries’) share of the freight market rose on the back of the success of the Roll-On/Roll-Off
accompanied mode, reflecting:

e capacity increases and changes in pricing policies by the various operators; and

e indirectly, the absence of major development of the cross-Channel rail freight.

The cross-Channel truck market continued to grow in 2016 at over 5%® compared with the previous year, reaching a record high
for the overall Short Straits market in 2016, despite the disruptions in the geopolitical scene since 2015.

b) Passenger market
The international passenger transport market departing to and from the United Kingdom has grown steadily for several years now
with growth estimated at close to 6% in 2016 compared to 2015,

The Passenger Shuttle Service carries passengers travelling with their vehicles between Calais and Folkestone. It is in direct
competition with ferry operators in the Short Straits market. The transport services for passengers travelling without their vehicles
provided by airlines or by High-Speed Passenger Trains constitute a marginal and indirect source of competition to this service.

Eurostar services principally operate in the market for transporting passengers travelling without their vehicles between Paris and
London and between Brussels and London. Eurostar’s main competitors are airlines.

@ Source: IRN Services Limited.

©®  Source: provisional estimations from International Passenger Survey.
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Short Straits

While day trips have permanently declined following the end of duty-free purchases and other economic benefits, the number of
long-stay (five days and over) and short-stay (fewer than five days) trips have increased as a result of:

e the withdrawal of passenger services from other cross-Channel routes, which led to a transfer of traffic to the Short Straits;
e the adoption of dynamic pricing by some operators, particularly the Eurotunnel Group, for its Shuttle Services;

e airline pricing policies and an end to the steady fall in air fares; and

e airport disruption and delays.

Contrary to the trend in the overall market, the Short Straits car market contracted by 2.7% in 2015 and then by 2.0% in 2016,
owing to the impact of the repeated terrorist attacks and the states of emergency declared in France and in Belgium and to the
problems arising from intrusion attempts by migrants.

c) Competitive position in the Short Straits market
The Shuttle Services are in direct competition with the ferry services operated by P&O Ferries and DFDS Seaways. They compete
indirectly with airlines and to a lesser extent with Eurostar.

i) Ferry operators
Cross-Channel ferry operators are using larger ships to handle greater volumes of traffic and to achieve economies of scale over
the long term, looking for growth in the freight market rather than in the passenger market (cars).

The Calais Port 2015 project aimed at merging the ports of Calais and Boulogne-sur-Mer and extending the port of Calais, in
particular the ferry terminal, was assigned a public service delegation contract signed by the Haut-de-France region on
19 February 2015®. Work, estimated to last five years®, began with the destruction of the hoverport, the site in the port of Calais
where hovercrafts used to dock. On 10 April 2015, the Eurotunnel Group filed with the administrative court of Lille, an application
for the annulment of the public service delegation contract, for breach of the principle of equality between candidates, distortion of
the basis of public service delegation law and the granting of guarantees representing illegal State aid. The exchange of pleadings
is in progress, with pleadings filed in response for Eurotunnel Group on 29 December 2016. The timing of the proceedings has not
been scheduled to date.

The Port of Dover plans to create a new terminal in the Western Docks to accommodate larger ferries.

Following the liquidation of SeaFrance in January 2012 and the end of the commercial operation of MyFerryLink in 2015, only two
ferry companies now operate on the Short Straits (P&O Ferries and DFDS Seaways), offering reduced capacity compared to the
previous situation.

P&O
P&O Ferries (“P&0O”) is a subsidiary of DP World, a worldwide operator of port facilities.

P&Q is the largest ferry operator on the Short Straits, with six vessels, and is in direct competition with the Eurotunnel Group both in
the freight market and in the passenger market.

P&O operates up to six vessels two of which, at 210 metres, are the longest ships deployed on routes to and from Dover.

DFDS Seaways
DFDS Seaways is owned by the Danish company DFDS.

In 2016, DFDS Seaways deployed three vessels on the Dover-Dunkirk route and three on the Calais-Dover route including Berlioz
and Rodin, renamed Cote des Dunes and Cétes des Flandres.

The contractual agreements on the operation of the ferries Berlioz, Rodin and Nord-Pas-de-Calais, which are still owned by the
Eurotunnel Group at the date of this Registration Document, are described in chapter 8.1 of this Registration Document.

iy  Shuttle Services

Competitive advantages of the Shuttle Service

The Eurotunnel Group considers that, under normal operating conditions, its Shuttle Service benefits from competitive advantages

over ferries as follows:

e safety: the Eurotunnel Group offers a reinforced safety system at the site of Coquelles and means of control before boarding
that reassure Truck Shuttle customers;

@ Source: Nord Littoral 19 February 2015.
®  Source: La Voix du Nord 9 January 2016.
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e speed: the standard travel time between the French and British motorways is much shorter than via the ferries;

e departure frequency: the Shuttle Service runs more frequently than any of its competitors, and it runs every day of the year;

e convenience: with the GSM-P system, Shuttle Services customers now have uninterrupted access to GSM and 4G services in
the rail tunnel;

e reliability: the Shuttle Service, unlike the ferries, is unaffected by sailing conditions and is not dependent on the weather; and

e environmentally friendly: the electric power it uses for traction generates much lower greenhouse gas emissions than
fossil fuels.

Eurotunnel’s Shuttle Service also offers:

e a freight service that is independent of the passenger service, which is subject to the seasonality of tourist traffic;

e more efficient management of loading/unloading; and

e the direct management of its terminals, in contrast to the ferries, for which port operations are managed by third parties.

iiy Airlines

Airlines, and particularly low-cost airlines, also have an indirect impact on the Short Straits market. These companies serve many
destinations in continental Europe and thus compete with operators in the Short Straits, including the Passenger Shuttle Service in
the short-stay leisure market. Many destinations in France are now served by low-cost airlines offering an alternative means of
transport between France and the United Kingdom.

iv) Eurostar
To a lesser extent, Eurostar’s High-Speed Passenger Trains compete indirectly with the Passenger Shuttle Service in the
leisure market.

d) Geopolitical context in 2016
As indicated in section 3.1.1 of this Registration Document, 2016 was marked by the rise in geopolitical risks in Europe.

Referendum

In its referendum on 23 June 2016, the United Kingdom decided to leave the European Union. This unprecedented situation
opened a period of uncertainty, the effects of which were felt in the financial markets. The Group has not yet detected any impact
on either its passenger or its freight traffic. In 2016, the Eurotunnel Group again demonstrated its ability to continue its
development.

Unprecedented migration crisis
In Europe, 2015 was marked by an unprecedented migration crisis. Since the month of October 2015 and the completion of
measures to secure the Coquelles site, the operation of the Tunnel has not been affected by migrant intrusion attempts.

The Fixed Link now has a high level of protection following the major investment programme and the support of both the French
and the UK governments who are in charge of border controls. In the long term, it is intended to continue to reinforce the security
measures.

Terrorist attacks and threat

2016, as 2015, was marked by terrorist attacks. The terrorist threat in the Paris and Brussels destinations is a determining factor
when analysing the variance in passenger traffic for Fixed Link operations since 2015, in particular for Eurostar’s passenger trains
to these destinations.

1.2.2 Fixed Link: activities

The Eurotunnel Group operates and directly markets a Shuttle Service through the Tunnel and also manages the safe and efficient
passage of High-Speed Passenger Trains and of the Train Operators’ Rail Freight Services through the Railway Network.

a) Shuttle transport activities

The Eurotunnel Group’s sales, marketing and operations strategy is focused on clearly differentiating its product from that of its

competitors. This strategy highlights outstanding service quality and optimum security, and involves the following key measures:

e constant alignment of supply with demand, to optimise revenue per Shuttle;

e commercial strategies providing a product offering even better suited to customers’ needs; and

e cost control achieved through programmes to optimise maintenance and production management cycles as well as the main
sub-contracting agreements.
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This business model focuses on maximising profitability rather than increasing volume and market share.

i) Truck Shuttle Service

Introduction

The Truck Shuttle Service carries trucks between France and the United Kingdom on Shuttle trains. In each terminal, drivers pass
through dedicated check-in, security and border control facilities. An improvement was made in the real-time information (onboard
information system with screens, customer information panels on the approach route and the “Elite” customer information
processing software). Other facilities for trucks are located close to the terminals. Drivers and their passengers do not remain in
their vehicles during the crossing, but travel in a separate carriage (“Club Car”) specially designed for this purpose. These Club
Cars were completely refurbished in 2014 to create a cosy atmosphere, more comfort, free internet access and greater seating
capacity.

Strategy

Truck service marketing strategy

The strategy is based on an optimisation of Truck Shuttle revenue and a pricing policy that reflects the value of the service provided
by the Eurotunnel Group as well as its speed, ease and reliability.

Throughout the year, the Eurotunnel Group gives priority to customers under contract, only providing transport to occasional
customers as available capacity allows. Since the second half of 2015, the Eurotunnel Group has put in place a mechanism to
optimise Truck Shuttle revenue by adjusting the pricing policy based on more flexible prices, adjustable according to demand and
available capacity, in order to encourage an improved distribution of truck flows throughout the week and during the day, so that
capacity and occupancy rate can be optimised whilst maintaining service quality during peak days.

The specific pricing for peak periods was applied to 35 peak days in 2015, then 39 days in 2016. The number of peak days should
increase substantially in 2017 and reach 83 days.

Truck Shuttle Service market share
The Eurotunnel Group estimates that its share of the Truck Shuttle Service market on the Short Straits corridor has evolved
as follows:

2016 2015

Market share
Vehicles (estimate) Vehicles Market share

Accompanied trucks® 1,641,638 39.2% 1,483,741 37.3%

*  Number of accompanied trucks transported by the Truck Shuttle Service. The market share percentages are derived by calculating the Truck
Shuttle Service’s truck traffic as a proportion of the total accompanied truck traffic on the Short Straits market as reported by IRN Services
Limited.

i) Passenger Shuttle Service (Le Shuttle)

Introduction

The Passenger Shuttle Service carries cars, motor homes, caravans, coaches, motorcycles and trailers between France and the
United Kingdom on Shuttles. Tickets can be bought in advance from the website (www.eurotunnel.com), by telephone from the
customer service centre, from travel agents and on arrival at check-in. Customers remain in their vehicle throughout the crossing,
which normally lasts approximately 35 minutes from platform to platform. Each Passenger Shuttle has two sections: a
double-deck section mainly for cars and motorcycles and a single-deck section reserved for vehicles higher than 1.85 metres,
mainly coaches, minibuses and cars with roof boxes or towing caravans.

The Passenger Shuttle Service can operate up to five departures per hour in each direction.

Strategy
The business model aims to optimise Passenger Shuttle revenue by increasing the average revenue per Shuttle departure.

On 12 September 2016, the Eurotunnel Group inaugurated its service for commercial vans aboard Passenger Shuttles, the VP
service (for Van on Pax). This new service is intended for transporters and now offers them the choice of travelling with their
commercial vans on board Passenger Shuttles with a reservation. The new recently-installed scanners at the passenger terminals
allow this service to be provided in a completely secure way. The VP service, by freeing up space on Truck Shuttles while filling up
space on Passenger Shuttles, allows carriers to avoid the peak period for the Truck Shuttle Service, and enables the optimisation
of the available capacity in order to maximise revenues.
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Pricing policy (“Dynamic Pricing”)
The Group’s pricing system adjusts ticket prices according to departure time and Shuttle load factor. This policy optimises
passenger revenue and the average ticket price for passenger vehicles (cars, motor homes, caravans, motorcycles, etc.).

Currently Le Shuttle customer bookings made online represent more than 80% of bookings.

Adapting capacity to demand

The capacity of the Passenger Shuttle Service is constantly adjusted to improve loading rates and reduce costs. Operational
changes that are made help to constantly improve this strategy, such as better distribution of Shuttle departures during the day,
fewer Passenger Shuttles running at off-peak times and more during peak times, and the optimisation of train crew management.

This policy has allowed the Eurotunnel Group to optimise the load factor, which went from 45% in 2004 to 58% in 2016.

The Customer Experience

As a service business, Eurotunnel Le Shuttle puts the customer at the core of its strategy and implements ways to enhance their

satisfaction and loyalty. Two main areas of progress are being developed:

e real-time information (for each customer at every stage of their experience with the Eurotunnel Group); and

e personalised service, that is to say, consideration of the specific needs of customer segments, such as, for example, owners of
electric vehicles and those travelling with their pets. The Eurotunnel Group works constantly to improve the service: launching a
new on-line booking module for smartphones in 2015, renovating the passengers building in the Coquelles terminal (shop,
World Duty Free, lounge, etc.), enhancing real-time communication with customers through iBoarding, and installing fast
universal chargers (for any type of electric vehicle) and specific charging slots for the Tesla brand.

The Eurotunnel Group has moreover begun construction work for new buildings to improve the welcome of Flexiplus premium
service customers.

The terminals are equipped with automatic terminals for check-in and toll payment for all customers as well as a system that reads
licence plates. RFID technology (electronic chip included in the transport document) has been introduced progressively since
June 2016.

Passenger Shuttle Service market share
The Eurotunnel Group estimates that its share of the car and coach passenger markets on the Short Straits were as follows:

2016 2015
Market share
Vehicles (estimate) Vehicles Market share
Cars® 2,610,242 55.0% 2,556,585 52.6%

Coaches®** 53,623 38.1% 58,387 37.7%

Number of vehicles transported by the Passenger Shuttle Service. The market share percentages are calculated by converting the number of
vehicles transported into Car Equivalent Units (“CEU”) and determining the Passenger Shuttle Service’s share of total CEU transported on the
Short Straits as reported by IRN Services Limited.

Number of vehicles transported by the Passenger Shuttle Service. The market share percentages are calculated by determining the Passenger
Shuttle Service’s share of the total number of coaches transported on the Short Straits as reported by IRN Services Limited.

The car traffic for the Eurotunnel Group’s Passenger Shuttle Service outperformed a slightly contracting Short Straits market, with
the number of vehicles carried up 2%. The market share for the car business of the Passenger Shuttle service was 55% for the
year, which is an increase of 2.3 points compared to 2015 and a record for the Fixed Link since it was opened.

b) Railway Network

In 2016, Eurotunnel Group earned 28% of its revenue (32% of Fixed Link revenue) from the use of the Railway Network by
High-Speed Passenger Trains and Train Operators’ Rail Freight Services. The Eurotunnel Group does not operate these trains but
manages their safe and efficient passage through the Tunnel infrastructure.

The use of the Tunnel by the Railway Companies is governed by the Railway Usage Contract with the national Railways, which is in
force until 2052. Under this charging framework, the Railways are obliged to pay to the Eurotunnel Group fixed annual charges and
variable charges according to the number of passengers on High-Speed Passenger Trains. The variable charges are determined
according to a toll formula that applies throughout the life of the Railway Usage Contract, and which takes into account the effects
of inflation to a certain extent. In addition, the Railways are required to contribute to the operating costs of the System, as well as to
investment costs relating to the modernisation of equipment.
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This long-term pricing framework for the Railway Usage Contract is applied and published every year by the Eurotunnel Group in
its Network Statement which sets out access conditions to its Railway Network for all Railway Companies, for the operation of
High-Speed Passenger Trains and freight trains, as well as the pricing scale for the year under consideration. In this framework, a
simplified pricing mechanism for freight trains was put in place, with charging per freight train instead of charging per tonne
of freight.

The Eurotunnel Group’s revenue for its Railway Network depends solely on receiving variable charges payable according to the
number of passengers transported by the Eurostar High-Speed Passenger Trains and the number of freight trains, as well as the
annual fixed charges and the contribution made by the Railways to operating costs.

In 2016, the Eurotunnel Group generated €290 million of revenue from the use of its Railway Network.

i) High-Speed Passenger Trains (Eurostar and new market entrants)

Market developments

The market for High-Speed Passenger Train services (Eurostar and future new market entrants) comprises business and leisure
passengers travelling between the United Kingdom and continental Europe. The market is geographically diverse and includes
passengers travelling between London and Paris or London and Brussels as well as passengers travelling between other points in
the United Kingdom and France, Belgium, the Netherlands and Germany. Eurostar’s High-Speed Passenger Trains connect
London with the centre of Paris and Brussels and compete directly with airlines on travel time, frequency, comfort and price. For
short-stay leisure travel, Eurostar also competes with low-cost airlines in terms of price, capacity and choice of destinations.
Eurostar operates a direct service to Disneyland Paris, and to Lyon, Avignon and Marseilles (since May 2015), and a winter service
to Bourg Saint Maurice.

Combined data on market growth for Eurostar and the airlines are presented below.

2016 (estimate) 2015
Paris-London and Brussels-London Passengers Passengers
passenger market (thousands) (thousands) Growth
Air and Rail
Paris-London 9,125 —4.2% 9,505 1.1%
Brussels-London 3,579 —-5.9% 3,789 2.4%

Sources: BRB, SNCF and CAA.

Eurostar recorded a fall in traffic over all of 2016, but the trend reversed in the fourth quarter with an increase of 2%, boosted by a
record month of December.

The combined air traffic and rail traffic volume, in terms of the number of passengers, between Paris and London declined by 4.2%
between 2015 and 2016. For this same period, the volume of Eurostar rail passenger traffic declined by 4.5%.

The combined air traffic and rail traffic volume, in terms of the number of passengers, between Brussels and London declined by
5.9% between 2015 and 2016. For this same period, the volume of Eurostar rail passenger traffic declined by 2.5%.

Market share
The data below summarises the change in Eurostar’s share of the High-Speed Passenger Train market on the Paris-London and
Brussels-London routes.

2016 (estimate) 2015
High-Speed Passenger Train market Passengers Market Passengers Market
share (Eurostar) (thousands)® share®** (thousands)™ share®**
Paris-London 7,019 76.9% 7,332 771%
Brussels-London 2,993 83.6% 3,067 80.9%

*  Sources: SNCF and BRB.

**  Market share percentages are derived by calculating the volume of rail passengers as a proportion of the total volume of air and rail passenger
traffic between Paris and London and between Brussels and London as provided by the CAA, BRB and SNCF.

The share held by Eurostar High-Speed Passenger Trains in the passenger market for the Paris-London route has reduced slightly

to 76.9% on average for 2016, compared to 77.1% for 2015. Their market share over the same period on the London-Brussels
route increased from 80.9% to 83.6%.
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The competitive environment of High-Speed Passenger Trains (Eurostar)

In the business travel market, Eurostar’s High-Speed Passenger Trains compete with the traditional and low-cost airlines that offer
regular flights between Paris and London and between Brussels and London. In the leisure travel market, Eurostar’s main
competitors are the low-cost airlines, not only on the routes served by Eurostar but also to other destinations. Eurostar has taken
several successful initiatives in terms of marketing and special offers over the internet, targeting the leisure travel segment. The
SNCF subsidiary continued the schedule for the opening of new destinations in 2015 (Marseilles) and 2017 (Amsterdam).

In the context of the liberalisation of the international rail passenger transport market on 1 January 2010, the Eurotunnel Group
responded by publishing in its Network Statement, its efficient and non-discriminatory conditions for access, and offers new
entrants the option to operate cross-Channel High-Speed Passenger Train services in competition with Eurostar and the airline
sector, to existing or new destinations.

High-Speed Passenger Trains (Eurostar)

Eurostar’s High-Speed Passenger Train services are operated by Eurostar International Limited, owned 55% by SNCF, 5% by
SNCB, and 40% by a consortium comprising CDPQ, the Caisse de dépét et placement du Québec and Hermes Infrastructure, to
which the British government sold its interest in Eurostar in 2015.

The High-Speed Passenger Trains services benefit from the high-speed line between London and the Tunnel which has reduced
the transit time between Paris and London or Brussels and London by around 20 minutes and London’s St Pancras International
station which improves rail links with Northern England (proximity of rail services from St Pancras, King’s Cross and Euston
stations). Ebbsfleet International station, located near the M25 London orbital motorway, also allows Eurostar to expand its
catchment area.

In 2016, Eurostar ran 13 to 17 departures in each direction between Paris and London and 7 to 10 trains in each direction between
London and Brussels on business days, with adjustments depending on the day, the season and the destination. Some trains
make intermediate stops at Ebbsfleet or Ashford International in the United Kingdom and at Calais-Fréthun or Lille-Europe in
France. In May 2015, Eurostar inaugurated a new direct service from London to Lyon, Avignon and Marseilles operated with one to
five round-trips per week depending on the season (except in winter). However, on the return trip, passengers are required to
disembark at the Lille station for border checks. Eurostar also runs a service to Disneyland Paris four to five days a week (except in
January) and a seasonal direct service from London and Ashford to Bourg Saint-Maurice (from December to April).

In 2016, the number of Eurostar passengers (travelling through the Tunnel) dropped an average of 4% over the year to 10.0 million
(source: Eurostar) in a market context strongly marked by the terrorist attacks in Paris, Brussels and Nice. After a sharp drop during
the summer, the market re-established itself progressively over the end of the year, finishing with positive growth in the fourth
quarter (+2%) and record traffic in the month of December. Calculated in accordance with the indexing formula of the pricing
framework of the Railway Usage Contract, the unit toll per passenger paid by Eurostar dropped —0.1% in 2016.

In November 2015, Eurostar put into service the first of its 17 €320 distributed drive trains ordered from Siemens in 2010 (ten units)
and in 2014 (an additional seven). More convenient (with onboard WiFi and individual sockets) and more powerful than the present
trains (peak speed of 320 km/h), they can accommodate 900 passengers (20% more than the initial fleet) and are equipped with
interoperable systems that are compatible with the development of services to other destinations. These trains will gradually phase
out most of the existing trains after the test periods needed to eliminate any residual defects. Eurostar International Limited has
announced its plan to run a new direct service between London, Rotterdam and Amsterdam from the end of 2017.

Additional opportunities exist for services to Germany, southern France and/or Switzerland.

Deutsche Bahn had also stated in 2010 that it intended to launch ICE High-Speed Passenger Train services from London to
Cologne and Frankfurt. The schedule is yet to be confirmed, given the announced delay in wagon manufacturing by Siemens. Its
operational outline for these services had received approval from the IGC in June 2013.

i)  Train Operators’ Rail Freight Services

Market developments

Train Operators’ Rail Freight Services compete with most modes of sea and rail transport between continental Europe and the
United Kingdom.

In 2015 this traffic was particularly impacted by intrusions by migrants on the SNCF tracks in Fréthun that caused major service
disruptions and damage to goods, from mid-July to 22 October 2015 when the authorities restored law and order. The effective
securing of the tracks in Fréthun in 2016 allowed traffic to stabilise at the level reached at the end of 2015, extending the impact of
the disturbances over the full year, with another drop of 26% in the number of trains (and —27% in tonnes of goods transported),
after a drop of 17% in trains in 2015 (and —14% in tonnes) and this despite the growth at the end of 2016 with an increase of 10%
in the last quarter.
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The freight volume transported by the Train Operators’ Rail Freight Services is summarised below.

Train Operators’ Rail Freight Services m 2015

Cross-Channel rail freight (million tonnes) 1.04 1.42
Number of train crossings 1,797 2,421

Sources: Eurotunnel, DB Cargo on behalf of BRB, SNCF and its subsidiaries, GB Railfreight and Europorte.

Competitive environment of Train Operators’ Rail Freight Services

Rail freight through the Tunnel, originally developed by state-run Railways, initially had a series of disappointing results and
organisational difficulties. International rail freight is also held back by inadequate national infrastructure (in particular train gauge
and length on trains in Great Britain, quality and availability of paths in France), distortions that favour sea or road transport and
excessive constraints (whether regulatory, social or technical).

In order to retain and relaunch Train Operators’ Rail Freight Services, since 2007 the Eurotunnel Group has pursued a coherent
competitive strategy aimed at addressing the specific challenges in the cross-Channel freight market through the implementation
of certain measures targeting open-access rail development, border restrictions and competitive pricing policies for rail freight
services. Between 2007 and 2010, despite the revival of intermodal and conventional trains, the demise of conventional single
wagon-load services in France and in Great Britain resulted in the loss of more than a third of cross-Channel rail freight traffic,
marking a low of 2,097 trains and 1.13 million of tonnes transported in 2010.

In 2013, with the aim of promoting the development of the freight train traffic of Railway Companies in the Tunnel, Eurotunnel
Group set up a program to help start new services (ETICA), extended in June 2014 following its positive results. Between 2010 and
2014, the establishment of ETICA contributed to the growth in traffic of around 40% (38% in number of trains and 46% in tonnage
transported) compared to 2010, which continued into the first half of 2015 (+4%).

This growth dynamic was halted abruptly in the summer of 2015 by the intrusion of migrants on the SNCF tracks in Fréthun, leading
to a protracted period of severe disruption to Train Operators’ Freight Train Services until the situation was remedied at the end of
October 2015. This resulted in the loss of half of the cross-Channel rail freight services which shifted either to unaccompanied
services or to container transport via the North Sea, or more generally to transportation by road. In 2016, the effective securing of
the operation of cross-Channel rail freight allowed the traffic to stabilise at the level reached at the end of 2015 and the start of a
recovery in the fourth quarter (+10%), thanks to the ramp-up of the services assisted by the ETICA system.

Train Operators’ Rail Freight Services

The Train Operators’ Rail Freight Services between continental Europe and the United Kingdom are run by Railway Companies

including DB Cargo (on behalf of BRB), SNCF and its subsidiaries, Europorte and potentially any freight train operator in open

access. Three different types of freight trains use the Railway Network:

e |ntermodal trains, composed of platform wagons transporting containers or swap bodies;

e conventional trains (carrying goods on pallets in enclosed wagons or bulk loads in adapted wagons such as tankers, hoppers,
platforms, etc.) making up a full train;

e trains with specialised wagons for transporting new cars.

Rail freight trains are in competition with most modes of freight transport in operation between continental Europe and the
United Kingdom.

In order to revive cross-Channel rail freight, the Eurotunnel Group has adopted a strategy that is based on three policies:

(i) development of open access for all operators of rail freight trains, (i) dealing effectively with border restrictions, and (jii) a

simplified and competitive pricing policy:

e an average toll charge of £3,000 (€4,500) per train (in 2007 values), for a train travelling at 120 km/h during an average
busy period;

e a simplified pricing structure (one toll charge per train, taking account of speed and peak and off-peak transit) allowing
operators to optimise their train-loads;

e free access to the essential cross-Channel freight services on national rail networks upstream and downstream of the Fixed
Link (border constraints processing and specialised rail haulage); and

e competitive total costs compared with the road transport sector in order to encourage rail freight development.

Originally set up in May 2013, the success of the ETICA growth plan led in June 2014 to the intensification of initiatives to promote
rail freight, with the expansion of the program for assistance to ETICA start-ups both over time (opening extended until 2018) and
by expansion of eligible categories, along with a 25% reduction in access charges during off-peak night periods for rail freight
services. So that these growth efforts can produce their full effect, the Eurotunnel Group has also drawn the attention of authorities
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to the need to address the barriers to development (size, length, capacity, etc.) on existing national networks, which considerably
weaken the competitiveness and development of cross-Channel rail freight.

These recovery initiatives demonstrated their pertinence with a sustained period of development in traffic between 2010 and
mid-2015 with total growth of more than 40% in the number of trains (and more than 50% in tonnage transported) comprising in
particular the creation of new Intermodal services and flows for aluminium and automobile components.

In 2015, these growth efforts suffered a major setback with the loss of half of the cross-Channel rail freight services, resulting from
major disturbances owing to intrusion by migrants on the tracks in Fréthun. The Eurotunnel Group has already informed the
European Commission that the common objectives of growth in rail freight may not be met.

The Eurotunnel Group continues to work with the governments and the Railway Companies seeking solutions for stimulating
this traffic.

c) Other revenue

The Fixed Link generated €14 million in other revenue in 2016, representing 1% of the Eurotunnel Group’s total revenue (2% of
Fixed Link revenue). This other revenue consists mainly of (i) revenue from third-party retail businesses in the terminals on both
sides of the Tunnel, (i) revenue paid for telecommunication lines in the Tunnel, (i) revenue related to the property business, (iv) the
sale of travel insurance products in the United Kingdom, and (v) revenue related to CIFFCO training.

i) Revenue from third-party retail businesses
The Eurotunnel Group has built facilities for its customers on its two terminals in France and the United Kingdom, including shops
and other retail outlets.

Access to the shops, bars and restaurants is available only to customers travelling on the Shuttle Services. They are located inside
the terminals, after check-in. These facilities are operated by third parties under three to ten-year concession agreements on the
French side and under leases on the British side.

The Eurotunnel Group’s strategy is to offer travellers who choose to stop before making the crossing a choice and level of service
consistent with the overall quality and value of service offered by the Eurotunnel Group. The Victor Hugo passenger terminal
building in Folkestone and the Charles Dickens building in Coquelles were refurbished to the highest international airport
standards in order to welcome customers in a pleasant environment.

In 1994, a contract was signed for 30 years for the operation of three petrol stations located at the entrance and exit of the
two terminals.

The Eurotunnel Group also earns modest revenue from renting advertising boards on both terminals and around the terminal
exit routes.

i)  Property business
The Eurotunnel Group owns and manages plots of land near its French and British terminals.

As an extension of its mission to design, build and operate the Fixed Link, the Eurotunnel Group was also given responsibility for
local land development. The Fixed Link is not just a transport infrastructure: it was also designed as a platform for the future
economic development of the Kent and Calais regions. The Eurotunnel Group, in the interests of sustainable development, has
restored the site of the former factory where the tunnel lining segments were made, which was later used as a shelter for illegal
immigrants (“Red Cross Centre”). This restoration work has paved the way for a major commercial and tourism development
project to stand alongside the Cité de I’Europe shopping centre in Coquelles.

As part of efforts to strengthen its partnership with the town of Sangatte-Blériot and the Conseil Général of the Pas-de-Calais, the
Eurotunnel Group signed an agreement with the Conseil Général of the Pas-de-Calais on 6 January 2009 covering measures to
support this ambitious tourism development project.

As part of the responsibility for local land development given to it by the French authorities at the beginning of the Fixed Link
project, and in order to further boost the appeal of the Pas-de-Calais region as a tourist destination, Euro-Immo GET, a Eurotunnel
Group subsidiary, submitted a successful bid for the land development concession for the integrated seaside ecovillage and golf
course project at the Porte des Deux Caps. The concession agreement was signed on 18 February 2013.

In general terms, the development of the area entrusted to Euro-Immo GET, the project supervisor, encompasses all the work
relating to roads, networks, open spaces and various facilities designed to meet the needs of the future occupiers, owners,
inhabitants and users of the new buildings. The concessionaire will manage the assets acquired until they are transferred to the
builders. The concession will last for 10 years.
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The GDEAM (a group created to protect the environment in Montreuil-sur-Mer’s district) brought a claim against the prefect’s
decision to declare the project as a public utility project. The administrative court of Lille rejected the claim on 24 January 2016.

i) Training activity: CIFFCO, the Opal Coast International Railway Training Centre

CIFFCO is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Eurotunnel Group and an expert in railway operations. CIFFCO’s training centre is open to
all rail operators, infrastructure managers or industrial concerns for their staff training. During the first quarter of 2016, CIFFCO set
up the first MOOC for railway jobs. CIFFCO'’s activities and facilities are described in chapter 6 of this Registration Document.

1.2.3 FIXED LINK: CAPACITIES

a) The System

i) The Tunnel

The number of trains or Shuttles that can pass through the Tunnel every hour is limited. The Tunnel capacity is expressed in terms
of the number of standard paths per hour in each direction. A standard path is defined as the time it takes a Shuttle train operating
at 140 km/h to cover that part of the System which, under normal operating conditions, is used by all other trains travelling through
the Tunnel. One of the key factors determining the Tunnel’s capacity is the signalling system. At the date of this Registration
Document, the System permits 20 standard paths per hour in each direction.

Under the Railway Usage Contract, trains belonging to the Railways have the right to use up to 50% of the hourly capacity in each
direction. High-Speed Passenger Trains and Train Operators’ Rail Freight Services, because of their faster or slower speeds
relative to the Eurotunnel Group’s Truck and Passenger Shuttle Services, use more than one standard path to travel through the
Tunnel. At peak times, speeds can be adjusted to maximise the number of trains and Shuttles travelling through the Tunnel. In
2016, the maximum number of standard paths used by Passenger and Truck Shuttle Services was ten per hour in each direction.

At the date of this Registration Document, the Tunnel’s capacity under normal operating conditions does not constitute a
significant constraint limiting growth in the different types of traffic. The average occupancy rate, which corresponds to the total
current consumption of paths (Eurotunnel Shuttles and Railways) to the total capacity available, is 55%, which allows for
substantial development of traffic in the future.

As part of its five-year strategic thinking for the Fixed Link, the Vision 2020 project, and as indicated in section 1.2.4 of this
Registration Document, the Group is working on optimising Tunnel availability itself.

In the medium or long term, the Eurotunnel Group believes that it will be possible to increase the Tunnel’s capacity by the following

means:

e setting uniform operating speeds for all trains, which would allow more trains to run on the same number of standard paths. At
the date of this Registration Document, goods trains travel in the Tunnel at a speed of 100 or 120 km/h, while High-Speed
Passenger Trains can reach a speed of 160 km/h in the Tunnel. These speed differentials use a large part of the System
capacity, because they require the Eurotunnel Group to leave greater intervals between trains than would be necessary if they
all travelled at the same speed. Use of the System’s capacity could therefore be improved by shifting slow or infrequent freight
trains to off-peak times, and by scheduling trains that travel at speeds higher (160 km/h) or lower (120 km/h) than the standard
path (140 km/h) so that they run in flights during peak hours;

® increasing the power of the locomotives pulling the Shuttles to allow the use of longer trains or reduce transit times;

e strengthening the electrical power supply by replacing the boost converter;

¢ reducing the headway between trains using the Tunnel (to 2 minutes 30 seconds instead of 3 minutes currently) so as to raise
System capacity to 24 standard paths per hour in both directions, although this would mean improving the fixed
equipment; and

e improving the signalling system, notably with ERTMS (this initial phase creates no additional capacity).

Some of these measures require approval by the IGC, which has supervisory authority over Tunnel operation.

A dedicated optical relay system using 2G, 3G and 4G telephone and GSM-P mobile internet networks enables passengers on
Shuttle Services and High-Speed Passenger Trains to use their mobile phones to make calls and access the internet. This was put
in place in the north tunnel in 2013 and in the south tunnel in 2014.

A ground-to-train radio communications network in the Channel Tunnel, the GSM-R (Global System for Mobile Communications —
Railway) was introduced in a strategy of constant improvement and modernisation of its infrastructure in order to offer complete
interoperability with the entire trans-European rail network.

iy Terminals
Currently, ten boarding platforms are in service at the French terminal and ten at the British terminal.
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Both terminals were designed so that the number of boarding platforms could be increased to 16. In order to maintain traffic fluidity
and to increase the number of hourly Truck Shuttle departures, capacity at the terminals will be expanded. As stated in
section 1.6.2 of this Registration Document, the Terminal 2015 project inter alia enabled the construction at Coquelles of a secure
parking area and an increase in the number of toll booths and in the number of access lanes to the check-in barriers.

These systems improve traffic flow and reduce operating costs. In a constant drive to improve the quality of service, the Coquelles
and Folkestone terminal buildings have been refurbished.

b) Rolling stock
Plans to develop the Shuttle fleet are described in section 1.2.4 of this Registration Document.

The Eurotunnel Group has 15 Truck Shuttles (six of which have capacity for 31 trucks and nine have capacity for 32 trucks), thus
enabling the Group to operate up to six departures per hour in each direction.

The Eurotunnel Group has ordered three new Truck Shuttles, each with a capacity of 32 trucks and benefiting from the latest
technological advances for reinforced robustness and reliability. They are scheduled for delivery in 2017. They will supplement the
15 existing Shuttles. This enhanced fleet will enable the Eurotunnel Group to increase its capacity by 20% and move to a
frequency, at peak period, of eight departures per hour compared to the current six.

The Eurotunnel Group has nine Passenger Shuttles able to carry up to 180 cars or 120 cars and 12 coaches.

c) Railway Services (passenger and rail freight)

Under the Railway Usage Contract, trains using the Railway Network are entitled to use up to 50% of the total capacity of the
Tunnel that is allowed by the signalling system. This currently amounts to ten standard paths per hour in each direction for
High-Speed Passenger Trains (Eurostar and new entrants) and Train Operators’ Rail Freight Services.

Goods trains currently transport an average load of about 500 to 600 tonnes each, although some of them can transport more than
1,000 tonnes of freight, and travel at speeds varying between 100 and 120 km/h. An increase in the average load or the travel
speed of goods trains would allow the Railway Companies to increase freight train traffic without additional use of the Tunnel’s
capacity. Similarly, increasing unit capacity and occupancy on High Speed Passenger Trains (those of Eurostar and new market
entrants) and synchronising them so that they run in flights would enable more passengers to be transported without using
additional Tunnel capacity. For both types of traffic, the increased unit occupancy rate of the trains enables Rail Companies to
increase the economic efficiency of their services, thus creating a natural incentive to make optimum use of the Tunnel capacity. In
this context, the new €320 trains put into service by Eurostar since November 2015 offer a 20% increase in unit capacity compared
to the original fleet, leading to a proportional increase in the Tunnel capacity in terms of the number of passengers.

Under the terms of the Railway Usage Contract, the Eurotunnel Group may use any surplus capacity not used by the Railway
Companies if they have not confirmed their capacity requirement by the previous day. Use of this surplus capacity provides the
Eurotunnel Group with additional flexibility in optimising the flow of traffic and scheduling passenger and freight trains and Shuttle
Service departures.

1.2.4 FIXED LINK: RELIABILITY OF THE SYSTEM

a) Tunnel availability and maintenance

Scheduled weekly maintenance of the Tunnel is planned and structured so as to promote efficient use of the Tunnel and cause
minimal disruption to commercial operations. The Group is working on a plan to spend only one night per week (instead of the two
at present) on the maintenance of the two rail tunnels, thanks to predictive maintenance tools. To this end, a dedicated Tunnel
measurement train would circulate each week to deliver a very accurate assessment of the condition of the track, catenary and
other equipment thereby eliminating the need for long on-foot visual inspections.

The Eurotunnel Group has set itself an objective of limiting service disruptions due to fixed equipment failure to less than 0.75%
despite continual traffic growth. This objective was again achieved in 2016 by a good margin.

The operational plan aiming to limit fire risk (Salamander Plan) and the creation of fire-fighting stations (SAFE) contributes towards
protecting the infrastructure in case of fire on board a Shuttle or a train.

Since 2015 the Eurotunnel Group has also undertaken work to reinforce the catenary that supplies the power required to operate
the Shuttles and trains circulating in the rail tunnels.
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b) Rail replacement

Rails on the terminals are replaced as part of the routine maintenance programme, without major disruption to commercial
services. The strategy implemented has reduced costs without harming the quality of the track. This strategy aims to avoid
systematically replacing both lines of rails, but only those rails that are worn or that present defects.

The third Tunnel rail replacement campaign to replace 100 kilometres of rails began in 2014 and was completed in 2016. The
opportunity was taken to conduct a general inspection of the sleeper blocks, the concrete parts on which the rail rests.

c) Maintenance and availability of rolling stock
The Eurotunnel Group has also set itself the objective of achieving better utilisation of its transport capacity by improving load
factors and the availability of the rolling stock by modifying maintenance procedures in order to optimise periods of operation.

The repair and maintenance programmes implemented by the Eurotunnel Group have helped to improve the reliability of the
electric locomotives and Truck and Passenger Shuttles. In planning its maintenance programme, the Eurotunnel Group’s
objectives are the following:

e ensure that safety requirements are met;

e avoid rolling stock being out of service for prolonged periods; and

* maximise the number of Shuttles available at peak hours.

Under current maintenance programmes, light maintenance and safety inspections are carried out every 44 days or 30,000 km for
the locomotives, Truck Shuttles and Passenger Shuttles. Every 600 to 1,200 days, depending on the vehicle and the number of
kilometres it has covered, each component is taken out of service for one to six weeks to undergo an extensive preventive
maintenance programme.

The Eurotunnel Group is implementing simplification and renovation programmes aimed at further reducing future maintenance
requirements and improving reliability.

The goal of the large-scale maintenance programme is to:

e meet safety requirements (bogies, brakes, couplings, batteries, etc.);

e restore and improve the reliability of systems that have reached about a third or half of their overall potential (canopies,
hydraulics on single deck loaders, etc.);

e extend the life of wagons (Breda floors, Arbel floors, etc.); and

e ensure customer comfort (air conditioning, toilets, interiors, etc.).

d) Maintenance strategy
In order to optimise maintenance activities, overnight maintenance has been reduced from three to two nights per weekend and,
maintenance work on the terminals on Friday and Saturday nights has been limited.

The process of optimising the rolling stock maintenance strategy aims to:

e improve the availability, performance and quality of the Shuttles;

® increase processing capacity and so minimise the total cost of maintenance; and
* rationalise technical choices and industrial resources.

This process is based on several lines of work:

e optimisation of the organisation of the maintenance of Truck Shuttles in order to make available for commercial service an
additional Shuttle during the week and to handle the increase in kilometres travelled;

e the technical redesign of maintenance on systems with a high impact on performance and quality, focusing on the relevance of
maintenance instructions and the implementation of appropriate LSM programmes; and

e the optimisation of key processes such as corrective maintenance, reprofiling and axle replacement, with improvement in the
efficiency of human, industrial and IT resources.

e) Projects

Various other initiatives should increase the reliability and efficiency of the System including, notably, the three third generation
Truck Shuttles which are scheduled for delivery in 2017. These new shuttles benefit from improvements stemming from feedback
from the Eurotunnel Group.

More broadly, as part of a collaborative dynamic, the Eurotunnel Group decided to define and orientate the Fixed Link strategy for
the next five years, identifying issues and challenges and deciding on goals to be achieved by 2020 (project Vision 2020).
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As part of this improved performance over the long term, several working groups have been set up to bring together broad

transverse and collaborative themes, including:

e Fluidity of the terminals: the project aims to reduce transit times between the arrival of a customer on the site and their boarding
a Passenger or Truck Shuttle.

e Improvement of the availability of the rolling stock as specified in section 1.2.2c) of this Registration Document.

e Site security: additional installations were set up in 2016 to further reinforce site and customer safety.

e Customer experience: as indicated section 1.2.2a)ii) of this Registration Document.

e Improvement of the availability of the infrastructure as specified in section 1.2.3a)i) of this Registration Document.

e Human resources and safety, as indicated in chapter 6 of this Registration Document.

¢ Revenue optimisation: the creation in particular of flexible pricing according to Truck Shuttle load factors during peak periods.

1.2.5 MYFERRYLINK: MARITIME ACTIVITIES

On 29 June 2015, the operational activities of the MyFerryLink segment ceased. The Eurotunnel Group has signed agreements
with the DFDS group and Vansea Shipping Company on the bareboat charter of all three ferries, with options, exercisable by the
Group, to proceed to their subsequent sale as set out in notes A.2 and C.3.ii.a) to the Group’s consolidated financial statements in
section 2.2.1 of this Registration Document. These contracts are described in section 8.1.6 of this Registration Document.

1.3. EUROPORTE’S ACTIVITIES

1.3.1 MAIN MARKETS OF EUROPORTE

According to the latest estimates prepared by a source outside the Group, French rail freight volumes totalled 33.8 billion tonne-
kilometres in 2016, down 1.5% compared to 2015 (34.3 billion tonne-kilometres). Europorte transported 1.7 billion tonne-
kilometres, stable compared to 2015, representing a market share of 5.0%.

1.3.2 EUROPORTE’S ACTIVITIES

Thanks to its dense coverage in France, Europorte is positioned as a growth vehicle for the Group, present across the entire rail
freight transport logistical chain, from collecting and routing on primary and secondary networks (Europorte France) or loading and
unloading of wagons on private branch lines on industrial sites (Socorail), to managing rail infrastructure (ports, private and
public/private industrial sites) in France and Belgium. Europorte is developing its various complementary activities concurrently in
order to offer its customers complete and customised solutions that meet their expectations in terms of integrated logistics chains
and high quality of service.

The revenue generated by Europorte’s activities in 2016 is down compared to 2015 at €115.8 million (a decrease of 6%), penalised
by the cereal crisis and industrial action at SNCF Réseau and in the oil depots.

a) Europorte France (EPF)

Europorte France is a private rail company that offers its customers a service hauling freight trains throughout the railway network.
Every day, EPF carries out main line rail haulage operations 24 hours a day and seven days a week throughout France with
connections to neighbouring European countries, in partnership or as an open-access operator, particularly in Belgium where EPF
has railway authorisations (licence and certificate).

For its operations, which averaged around 165 commercial trains per week in 2016, EPF has a fleet of 74 main line electric and
diesel locomotives interoperable with neighbouring European countries. They are used on average by 299 drivers and operators
authorised for safety operations on the French railway network and, in some cases, in Belgium.

EPF has designed its operating model based on six key parameters, specifically with a view to serving its private industrial
customers:

e optimisation of transport plans based on regular paths,

e organisation of the rail businesses through regional hubs,

e guaranteed service through the provision of reliable human and reliable resources dedicated to traffic,

® regular and punctual delivery of goods,

e safety on customers’ private branch lines and on the national railway network, and

e communication on the status of customers’ freight traffic.
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Europorte transports all types of goods, with the exception of explosive, nuclear and biological materials. Its entire operating
system is designed in accordance with the rules on transporting dangerous goods, to maximise the safety of its operations. In
2015, Europorte continued the development of the grain business from a production centre focused on Dijon and the Burgundy
Champagne region, making Europorte the main rail operator in this sector in Burgundy Champagne. In 2016, Europorte launched
the start of two major types of traffic in the petrochemical sector: transport of potash for a German mining company and the
transport of chemicals for a French petroleum group.

EPF has continued to diversify the goods it transports and its customers, to balance out the risk of seasonal fluctuations in the
volumes transported; therefore, no customer exceeds 10% of revenue. Europorte France also continued to consolidate its rail
business along France’s north/south corridor through its hubs at Lérouville, Dijon, Lyon, Fos/Marseille and Toulouse. EPF
continued to develop its range of one-off services (spot trains) which it started in 2013, as well as offering specific services in
response to the needs of customers in the agri-food and automotive sectors to meet growing demand from rail freight customers
for seasonal transport requirements.

All main line locomotives are equipped with GPS positioning and exchange all relevant technical data with the operating and
maintenance teams. The command post agents are able to display on tablets the position of the train, its schedule in relation to its
paths, the battery condition and the amount of fuel in its tank. In turn, drivers are gradually being equipped with tablets
incorporating driving documents, traffic information, alert reports etc.

b) Socorail

For more than 40 years, Socorail has been providing internal logistical services on industrial sites: wagon handling operations,

track maintenance, loading/unloading wagons and trucks, and operations on ships. Socorail’s activities cover a range of services

to industry, mainly involving dispatch and reception of basic, semi-finished or finished products, and management of rail

infrastructure:

e the management of branched terminal installations including reception, handling and dispatch of loaded or unloaded wagons
and the associated administrative processing,

e loading or unloading wagons, particularly tank-wagons,

e terminal rail services in port zones and on the French railway network,

e the provision of rail haulage engines on a full-service basis,

e track maintenance,

e traffic management of rail networks at various ports,

e the management of front offices and loading tracks for tank-wagons,

e the operation of the port terminal for an oil refinery, and

e ancillary activities.

Socorail works at around 40 industrial sites and seven ports, including around 20 sites classified as SEVESO Il in the oil, chemicals,
steel-making, automotive and construction materials sectors. Socorail is MASE and ISO 9001 certified. Present throughout
France, Socorail manages wagons, trucks and operations on ships and port infrastructure.

Socorail develops a service offering for rail infrastructure managers, consisting of traffic management and railway maintenance.
Socorail consolidated its delegated port management business with the renewal of the contracts for Nantes Saint Nazaire and La
Rochelle (public calls for tender). In 2015, Socorail continued its expansion with wagon maintenance services. This new business
complements its logistics activities on industrial sites and local services. In 2016, Socorail took advantage of the Group’s expertise
in rail work to highlight this activity and refurbish in particular the rail infrastructure of an industrial site belonging to a major French
cement group.

The delegated port infrastructure management sector is Socorail’s largest business, accounting for 37% of its 2016 revenue,
followed by oil/hydrocarbon refining with 18%. Chemicals and services to port terminals contributed 15% and 10%, respectively.

c) Europorte Proximité (EPP)
Europorte Proximité focuses on its maintenance activity of low-power diesel locomotives used by Europorte France and Socorail.

d) Bourgogne Fret Service (BFS)

Europorte, in partnership with its customer Cerevia, (union of agricultural cooperatives), developed its operations as freight
forwarder mostly for grain transport. Bourgogne Fret Services, which began operations in July 2013, is designed to make better
use of Europorte’s resources while offering Cerevia a logistics system that will allow it to form strategic alliances and increase its
zone of influence. In 2015, Bourgogne Fret Service consolidated its freight forwarder offering to include inland waterway barges on
the axis Saone/Rhone. In 2016, BFS’s activity was affected by the significant reduction in the volume of cereal transported
following a poor harvest.
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e) Europorte TCSO (EPTCSO)

At the beginning of 2016, Europorte created a subsidiary Europorte Terminal Container du Sud-Ouest, in order to manage the
container terminal at the Grand Port Maritime in Bordeaux. As the contractual conditions were not met, the activity did not begin in
2016 as explained in section 3.2.1 of this Registration Document.

Europorte France continues its cross-Channel rail freight service (which represents only a very minor part of its activity), as
appropriate by outsourcing the provision of traction through the Tunnel to GBRf. Like all Railway Companies, Europorte pays the
charge for the use of the Fixed Link for any crossing through the Tunnel, as explained in section 1.2.2b)ii) of this Registration
Document.

1.4. ELECLINK

The ElecLink project will lay a new electricity interconnector between the French and British grids. Interconnectors are
high-voltage transmission cables that allow electricity to circulate between two countries and which can be used for either
exporting or importing power. ElecLink is going to build, hold and operate this electrical interconnector through the Channel Tunnel
in order to offer a bi-directional transport between the United Kingdom and France. The 1,000 MW high-voltage direct current
cable will be installed in the north rail tunnel.

Via its subsidiary GET Elec Limited, the Eurotunnel Group joined forces with European venture capital company Star Capital
Partners in 2011 to create ElecLink Limited, a joint venture owned 49% by GET SE and 51% by Star Capital. On 23 August 2016,
the Eurotunnel Group purchased the 51% share held by Star Capital in ElecLink.

ElecLink Limited, sponsor of the project, submitted to the French Energy Regulatory Commission (CRE) and its British equivalent,
the Office of Gas and Electricity (Ofgem), a request for a derogation in order to be able to provide for the construction and the
management of the electricity line. On 28 August 2014 in a final joint opinion, (after confirmation by the European Commission on
28 July 2014), the two regulators published a decision to grant the company a partial exemption from the marketing arrangements
imposed by the regulation.

ElecLink will subcontract the construction to first-rate companies: Siemens will build the conversion stations in France and in the
United Kingdom and Balfour Beatty/Prysmian were chosen to manufacture and install the direct current cables in the Tunnel and
the underground alternating current cable in the United Kingdom. RTE will provide and install the underground alternating current
cable in France. As indicated in chapter 3 of this Registration Document, the construction, as with any new project, will comprise
risks linked to its technical implementation and compliance with performance levels as well as the commissioning schedule, in a
regulatory context that may change.

This investment in this project is described in section 1.6 of this Registration Document.

1.5. OTHER ACTIVITIES

Euro Carex

The Eurotunnel Group is involved in the Euro Carex project via its subsidiary London Carex Limited. The Paris Charles de Gaulle,
Lyon Saint Exupéry and Liege airports linked up with logistics companies including FedEx, TNT and La Poste to try to encourage a
transfer of air freight onto the European high-speed railway network. London Carex is part of this umbrella organisation, the Euro
Carex Association, tasked with developing the British end of the network. The Carex concept is similar to a cargo aircraft running
on rail: high-speed trains that have been modified to carry air freight containers. In 2016, the results of the study were presented by
Mr Osinga, Vice President Cargo of the Schiphol Airport: he underlined the players’ interest in the project but raised a series of
questions in particular the fact that many of them have a short-term view. In parallel, Mathieu Grosch, former European Parliament
member, presented the results of his mission for prospecting in Germany. The results are very positive and confirm that finding a
site in Germany is a priority for the project. The association is seeking to reconcile the two studies in a business plan that includes
the new parameters such as external profits but also the drop in the price of fuel. Mr Renaud, President of the community of the
town of Roissy and President of Roissy Carex, was elected as President replacing Mr Jean-Pierre Grafé who filled the office
of President.
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1.6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND MAJOR INVESTMENTS

1.6.1 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

On 31 December 2016, the Eurotunnel Group owned or was using the following property, plant, equipment and other moveable
assets:

Gross value (€000) m 2015

Concession property, plant and equipment

Tunnel 6,549,501 6,549,501
Terminals, and related land and buildings 2,058,189 2,082,535
Fixed equipment and machinery 3,311,628 3,255,801
Rolling stock 2,025,953 2,024,912
Office equipment 115,278 113,766
Assets in the course of construction 100,030 106,815
Other property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment 183,904 235,180
Total 14,344,483 14,368,510

The net book value of property, plant and equipment is set out in note F to the consolidated financial statements contained in
section 2.2.1 of this Registration Document.

The Eurotunnel Group’s Concession property, plant and equipment comprised the land and installations required for the operation
of the Tunnel pursuant to the Concession Agreement in France and the United Kingdom. It includes the railway infrastructure
(tunnels, tracks, fixed equipment, rolling stock, roads, networks etc.), the Passenger and Truck Service terminals and the office
buildings in Coquelles and Folkestone, as well as various maintenance buildings and workshops.

In France, all property assets cited in the Concession Agreement are owned by the French State and will revert to it upon expiry of
the Concession period in 2086. In the United Kingdom, the government has required CTG to transfer to it the title to freehold land
and property acquired for the purpose of construction and operation of the Tunnel and in exchange has granted leases for the
duration of the Concession Agreement.

Upon expiry of the Concession Agreement, the interests of CTG and FM (in their capacity as Concessionaires) in all moveable
property and intellectual property rights necessary for the operation of the Tunnel pursuant to the Concession Agreement will
become, without consideration, the joint property of the two States.

Other property, plant and equipment is principally composed of the rolling stock fleet belonging to Europorte and its subsidiaries.
As set out in notes A.2 and C.3 to the consolidated financial statements contained in section 2.2.1 of this Registration Document,
the ferries owned by the EuroTransmanche companies are now leased under finance leases and are therefore accounted for as
financial assets as at 31 December 2016. In addition, the Eurotunnel Group owns various plots of land as part of its property
development activities, described in section 1.2.2c)ii) of this Registration Document.

Moveable assets owned by the Eurotunnel Group comprised mainly office equipment, IT equipment, vehicles and furniture.
Investments are described in section 1.6.2 below.

The security interests in the Eurotunnel Group’s fixed and moveable property granted in connection with the Term Loan are
described in section 8.1.4 of this Registration Document and in notes G.5 and G.8 to the consolidated financial statements in
section 2.2.1 of this Registration Document.

1.6.2 MAJOR INVESTMENTS

a) Main investments over the last three years
The total amount of the Eurotunnel Group’s investments in the last three years is respectively €140,630,000 for the 2014 financial
year, €139,988,000 for the 2015 financial year and €150,078,000 for the 2016 financial year.

Over the last three financial years, the Eurotunnel Group’s main investments in the Fixed Link were:

e The Terminal 2015 project (approximately €30 million over the last three periods), a programme to develop the Truck Shuttle
activity including the creation at Coquelles of two additional toll lanes and of a “buffer storage” area allowing for fluid and rapid
transit and at Folkestone, the creation of a new toll area with five new lanes dedicated to Truck Shuttle traffic;
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e the purchase of three new Truck Shuttles (approximately €25 million over the three periods). This project concerns the
construction of three new Truck Shuttles each measuring 800 metres in length and comprising 32 transport wagons, three
loading wagons, as well as a carriage for transporting truck drivers;

e the installation of GSM-R (approximately €48 million since the beginning of the project, including €21 million over the last
three years);

e the installation of high-security fences at the terminal on the French side which is being reimbursed by the British government;

e the replacement of rails in the Tunnel (approximately €24 million);

e the floor renovations on the Arbel and Breda Truck Shuttles (approximately €4 million);

e the replacement of couplings on the rolling stock (approximately €7 million); and

e the replacing of the units of the Tunnel’s cooling plants and air conditioning using R22 gas (about €4 million), the handling of
which has been prohibited since 1 January 2015.

Over the last three financial years, the Eurotunnel Group’s investments in the Europorte segment totalled approximately
€180 million, mainly related to the purchase of rolling stock for the ongoing rationalisation of the locomotive fleet, notably
locomotives for Europorte France and, before its sale on 15 November 2016, GB Railfreight.

On 23 August 2016, the Eurotunnel Group acquired Star Capital’s 51% holding in the ElecLink Limited joint venture for €75 million,
its development logic being based on its capacity to diversify its activity in order to optimise the existing infrastructure of the
Tunnel. The first stages of the works were financed by the Group: during the period from its full consolidation in the Group on
23 August 2016 to 31 December 2016, the Eurotunnel Group’s investment in the ElecLink project amounted to €58 million.

b) Major future investments

Investment projects planned for 2017 fall into three categories: those undertaken in response to outside constraints, those to
replace existing equipment before it becomes obsolete and those to improve the Group’s performance. Each project has a level of
flexibility in terms of scope and phasing which may be adjusted as circumstances change.

In the current economic environment and given the risk of increased competition in the cross-Channel market, these investments
are for the most part essential to sustaining the competitiveness and market shares of the Eurotunnel Group’s activities.

The projects imposed by external constraints seek on the one hand, to adapt the security of the sites of the Fixed Link to the
migratory context in Calais in order to preserve the quality of service, and on the other hand, to meet sustainable development
regulatory constraints.

The plan to secure the Fixed Link’s sites, which started in 2015 and will continue in 2017, includes:

e the project to install heartbeat detection equipment for rigid trucks in order to supplement canine controls and the creation of
buffer zones in order to increase the storage capacity of the trucks upstream of the controls and to intensify the controls;

e the installation of a scanner on the Fréthun station area; and

e the creation of a siding dedicated to a search area for Truck Shuttles which is protected from electrical hazards.

The replacing of fire extinguishing gas Halon 1301, used in the fire-fighting systems of the locomotives will continue in 2017. This
project responds to an environmental constraint as Halon 1301 contributes to depleting the ozone layer.

Replacement projects in 2017 include the continued replacement of some track switches, the floors of some Truck Shuttles,
couplings on the Passenger Shuttles, locomotives and on Truck Shuttle loader wagons in order to allow them to operate under
optimum conditions of reliability, safety and security. The replacement of the fleet of shunting engines to pull work trains in the
tunnel for maintenance activities, is scheduled to begin for 2017.

Intensive use and the natural life cycle of rolling stock lead to deterioration in some of the wagon equipment. To remedy this,
several programmes to study modernisation and replacement have been launched, such as for the Passenger Shuttle loader
wagons, the fire detection and fire-fighting system and the air conditioning units.

Other projects are designed to boost the business’ performance, capacity or productivity notably:

e The commissioning of three new Truck Shuttles. These new Truck Shuttles will benefit from the latest technological advances in
order to ensure both energy savings and also robustness and reliability. They are scheduled for delivery in 2017.

e The redevelopment of the allocation areas and the construction of new buildings to welcome FlexiPlus customers on the
French and British terminals.

e The reinforcing of the electric traction network through the construction of a new boost converter (SVC) two times more
powerful than exists currently and an increase in the catenary capacity with the addition of high-voltage coaxial cables (studies
for work to begin in 2018).
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2017 will see the launch of the Terminal of the Future programme which aims to improve the quality of service, allow for the
departure of eight Truck Shuttles per hour and prepare for 2020 through various development projects at the Folkestone and
Coquelles terminals. The studies will in particular cover:

* expanding loading bridges;

e developing secure parking with a 400-truck capacity;

e the construction of four additional lanes and platforms on each terminal.

The external costs of constructing the ElecLink project are estimated at €580 million at the current exchange rate, corresponding
to the study, purchase and construction contracts, to provide technological architecture solutions and the construction of
industrial buildings, the study and realisation of connections to national grids and project management, as described in
sections 1.4 and 1.6.1 of this Registration Document (excluding payments to the Group, contingent liabilities and operating costs).

Sources of funds for future investments

The main future investments for the Fixed Link are expected to be self-funded. In 2016, the Group used €23.6 million from the
“Capex Reserve” account which is intended to finance long-term investment projects. The balance of this account (€8 million at
the exchange rate at 31 December 2016) will serve to finance major investment programmes such as those described above.

Acquisitions of rolling stock for Europorte may be funded by external loans or sale and leaseback transactions.

With regard to the investment in the ElecLink project, the Group is studying the financing structure that would best meet both the
constraints and the opportunities of the project.

The Group seeks to preserve as long as possible the flexibility offered by the strength of its balance sheet, with the aim of
minimising the cost of financing and optimising the profitability of the project. At the request of Star Capital, the project initially
envisaged external financing based on the contractualisation of the majority of revenues through capacity auctions. The Group is
currently exploring alternative financing options. The current characteristics of the electricity market make the conclusion of
long-term capacity contracts less attractive in the immediate term.

In order to optimise the sale of capacity and hence the profitability of the project, the Group has decided, for the time being, to
retain the possibility of extending in-house equity financing for all or part of the sums required.

Under normal circumstances, the Group generates a Free Cash Flow of approximately €150 million per year. As indicated in
section 2.1.2 of this Registration Document, the Group has cash balances of approximately €350 million at 31 December 2016, to
which more than €100 million will be added in 2017 from the sale of the three ferries (Berlioz, Rodin and Nord-Pas-de-Calais).
Furthermore, and irrespective of the possibility of a drawdown already available to the Group under the terms of the Term Loan
(see section 8.1.4 of this Registration Document), the refinancing of some tranches of the debt currently being considered should
reduce the cost of servicing the debt and release the floating rate notes held by the Group, the nominal value of which is
€165 million.

The project involves significant construction works between 2016 and 2019 and revenues from 2020. Given these specific
constraints, the estimated income profile (either an Open Season or “merchant” model) and the macroeconomic conditions
(base rates, energy market conditions in France and the United Kingdom) are elements that are integrated into the different
financing scenarios.

1.6.3 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TRADEMARKS, PATENTS AND LICENCES

a) Research and development

Achieving its ambitious objectives by 2020 leads the Eurotunnel Group to focus is research and development policy on increasing
the reliability of its infrastructure and rolling stock as well as increasing the fluidity of its terminals, while still reinforcing security for
its customers.

The Eurotunnel Group has launched a programme of study for the design of a new generation of Truck Shuttles. This vast research
programme is based on the success of innovative projects such as the designing of new superstructures on its Truck Shuttles and
the redesign of new floors with remarkable fire-retardant characteristics. This research and development project has to allow the
Eurotunnel Group to significantly increase the level of performance of its Shuttles while still reducing as much as possible the
constraints linked to the fast change in the traffic and the consequences in terms of maintenance. Full-scale tests and studies
conducted in collaboration with companies known for their technical expertise have made it possible to design reliable solutions
that are adapted to the operating conditions of the Channel Tunnel.

Moreover, in order to deal with ever more intense operational issues specific to it, the Eurotunnel Group has initiated a research
programme in order to develop a new sleeper block (a piece of concrete on which the rail is laid) which is stronger in order to meet
the demands of increased traffic. This project uses internal resources and those of external partners, whose railway and materials
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expertise provides a better understanding of the phenomena and the development of innovative solutions to overcome identified
technical issues. This project is also the manifestation of the signing of a research professorship for railway transport sciences set
up by the Eurotunnel Group with the Ecole Nationale des Ponts et Chaussées (ENPC), whose purpose is to carry out research on
evolutions in technical infrastructure, analysis of its life cycle, the design of intelligent rail systems and the understanding of the
phenomena of density.

In parallel, the work conducted with ENPC has led to the development of a new solution for inspecting sleeper blocks thanks to a
method measuring vibrational frequencies. The objective is the creation of an automated carriage that allows for a fast sleeper
block inspection.

The Group is also a founding member of the board of the Fondation de Coopération Scientifique Railenium (a foundation for
scientific cooperation). Railenium is an institute for technological research in the rail industry, selected within the framework of
France’s economic stimulus plan (the “Grand Emprunt”). It is composed of a Foundation for Scientific Cooperation and a test
centre. Railenium’s mission is to provide a platform for rail infrastructure research and development, testing, engineering and
training. The Foundation pools the work of research bodies and companies to develop research and development programmes in
the field of rail infrastructure and systems, which may go as far as industrial prototyping. The Foundation’s partners include seven
research and training organisations, 15 industrial companies involved in construction, services and engineering, and three
infrastructure operators (SNCF Réseau, SNCF and the Eurotunnel Group). Two research and development projects were born out
of this approach in 2016 and will continue in the upcoming years: development of an innovative solution for the remote monitoring
of track devices and the designing of a maintenance train that makes it possible to check many parameters simultaneously such as
the condition of the rail, signalling and the catenary, all whilst circulating at high speed without disturbing the commercial operation
of the Channel Tunnel.

Concerned with guaranteeing optimal safety for its customers while still optimising the fluidity of its terminals, the Eurotunnel
Group is devoting substantial research and development effort to designing an innovative solution for detecting over height lorry
antennas upstream of the boarding platforms. In collaboration with companies that are experts in acoustical and sound solutions,
the purpose of this project is to detect any antenna that exceeds the regulatory height for Truck Shuttles regardless of the
circulation speed of the lorry (up to the limit of compliance with the speeds authorised at the terminals) and the position of the
antenna. Prototypes have been installed at various strategic points of passage along the customer’s path in order to rigorously
determine the most reliable solution.

b) Trademarks, patents and licences

Trademarks and domain names

The Eurotunnel Group’s main trademarks are the nominative, figurative and semi-figurative trademarks that protect the
“Eurotunnel” name and the design of the logo. The other trademarks used are registered mainly to protect the corporate names of
the Eurotunnel Group companies, such as “France Manche”, “Europorte” or “ElecLink”, and certain brand names, such as
“Le Shuttle”.

At the date of this Registration Document, the Eurotunnel Group also owns approximately 337 domain names, including
“eurotunnel.com”.

Patents

The Eurotunnel Group has also filed patents relating to specific aspects of its business.

At the date of this Registration Document, three systems, including that relating to the SAFE stations, are the subject of patents in

force filed by FM. A fourth patent concerning measuring equipment is currently being filed.

Licences
The Eurotunnel Group has no licence granted by a third party allowing it to use a third party’s trademark. It has granted a
non-exclusive licence to use a patent for an auto-convergent maintenance system for complex high-volume equipment.
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2.1. ANALYSIS OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS

Pursuant to EC Regulation 1606/2002 of 19 July 2002 on the application of international accounting standards, the consolidated
financial statements of GET SE for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union at 31 December 2016.

The following information relating to Groupe Eurotunnel SE’s financial situation and consolidated results must be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements set out in section 2.2.1 of this Registration Document.

The main factors with an impact on revenue are described in chapters 1 and 3 of this Registration Document.

2.1.1 ANALYSIS OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Since the cessation of MyFerryLink’s operations in the second half of 2015, the Eurotunnel Group has applied IFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” to its maritime segment. Accordingly, the maritime segment’s net results for
2015 and 2016 are presented in a single line on the income statement called “Net result from discontinued operations”.

On 23 August 2016, the Eurotunnel Group purchased the 51% share in ElecLink Limited held by Star Capital and since that date,
ElecLink Limited has been fully consolidated in the Group’s accounts.

On 15 November 2016, the Group sold its subsidiary GB Railfreight Limited to EQT Infrastructure Il and consequently the company
ceased to be consolidated in the Group’s accounts. In accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations”, GB Railfreight Limited’s results for 2016 up to the date of its sale and for the 12 months of 2015 are
presented in a single line on the income statement called “Net result from discontinued operations”.

For more information on these operations, see notes A and C.3 to the consolidated financial statements contained in section 2.2.1
of this Registration Document.

In order to enable a better comparison between the two years, the 2015 consolidated income statement presented in this section
has been recalculated at the exchange rate used for the 2016 income statement of £1=€1.216.

a) Summary

In 2016, the Group’s consolidated revenues amounted to €1,023 million, an increase of €39 million (+4%) compared to 2015.
Operating costs totalled €509 million, an increase of €7 million (+1%). EBITDA, improved by €32 million (7%) compared to 2015, to
€514 million. After taking into account a €6 million increase in depreciation charges, the trading profit improved by €26 million to
€364 million. Net other operating income of €37 million includes a net gain of €50 million resulting from the revaluation to fair value,
in accordance with IFRS 3R, of the share already held by the Group in ElecLink Limited at the date of its full acquisition. Net finance
costs increased by €15 million as a result of higher inflation rates, net other financial income increased by €24 million and tax
charges increased by €11 million. The Eurotunnel Group’s result for continuing operations for the 2016 financial year was a profit of
€136 million, an improvement of €63 million compared to 2015 restated.

The net consolidated result for 2016, after taking into account the net gain of €50 million resulting from the full integration of
ElecLink and the €64 million net profit arising from discontinued operations, was a profit of €200 million, an improvement of
€125 million compared to the 2015 restated net result of €75 million.
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2015 Variance 2015
€ MILLION restated™** €M % retreated™*

Exchange rate €/£ 1.216 1.216 1.375
Fixed Link 907 861 46 +5% 915
Europorte 116 123 (7) —6% 123
Revenue 1,023 984 39 +4% 1,038
Fixed Link (892) 377) 15 +4% (393)
Europorte (116) (125) (©)] —7% (125)
ElecLink 1) - 1 -
Operating costs (509) (502) 7 +1% (518)
Operating margin (EBITDA) 514 482 32 +7% 520
Depreciation (150) (144) 6 +3% (144)
Trading profit 364 338 26 +8% 376
Other net operating income/(charges) 37 2) 39 2)
Operating profit (EBIT) 401 336 65 +19% 374
Share of result of equity-accounted

companies (1) (1) - (1)
Net finance costs (262) (247) 15 +6% (261)
Net other financial income/(charges) 16 (8) 24 (8)
Pre-tax profit from continuing

operations 154 80 74 104
Income tax expense +*4(18) 7) 11 (8)
Net profit from continuing operations 136 73 63 96
Net profit from discontinued operations 64 2 62 4
Net consolidated profit for the year 200 75 125 100

*

Restated at the rate of exchange used for the 2016 income statement (£1=€1.216).
** Restated in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight Limited.
**  Rounded up.

The evolution of the pre-tax result from continuing operations by segment compared to 2015 is presented below:

€ MILLION

Improvement/(deterioration) of result Fixed Link Europorte ElecLink Total Group

Pre-tax result from continuing activities: 2015

restated™ 91 (10) (1) 80

Improvement/(deterioration) of result:
Revenue +46 -7 - +39
Operating expenses -15 +9 -1 -7
EBITDA +31 +2 -1 +32
Depreciation -6 - - -6
Trading result +25 +2 -1 +26
Other net operating income/charges -6 -3 +48 +39
Operating result (EBIT) +19 -1 +47 +65
Net financial charges +13 - -4 +9
Total changes +32 -1 +43 +74

Pre-tax result from continuing operations for

2016 123 (11) 42 154

*

Restated at the rate of exchange used for the 2016 income statement (£1=€1.216) and in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight
Limited.
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b) Fixed Link Concession segment

The Group’s core business is the Channel Tunnel Fixed Link Concession which operates and directly markets its Shuttle Services
and also manages the circulation of High-Speed Passenger Trains (Eurostar) and the Train Operators’ Rail Freight Services through
its Railway Network. This segment also includes the Group’s corporate services.

Variance
€ MILLION *2015 €M %

Exchange rate €/£ 1.216 1.216

Shuttle Services 603 546 57 10%
Railway Network 290 300 -10 —-3%
Other revenue 14 15 -1 —-8%
Revenue 907 861 46 5%
External operating costs (218) (208) 10 5%
Employee benefits expense (174) (169) 5 3%
Operating costs (392) (377) 15 4%
Operating margin (EBITDA) 515 484 31 6%
EBITDA/revenue 56.8% 56.2% 0.5pts

*

Restated at the rate of exchange used for the 2016 income statement (£1=€1.216) and in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight
Limited.

i)  Fixed Link Concession revenue
Revenue generated by this segment, which in 2016 represented 89% of the Group’s total revenue, increased by 5% compared to
2015, to €907 million.

a) Shuttle Services

Traffic (number of vehicles) m 2015 Change

Truck Shuttle 1,641,638 1,483,741 +11%
Passenger Shuttle:
Cars® 2,610,242 2,556,585 +2%
Coaches 53,623 58,387 —8%

*

Includes motorcycles, vehicles with trailers, caravans and motor homes.
Shuttle Services’ revenue for 2016 amounted to €603 million, up 10% (€57 million) compared to the previous year.

Truck Shuttle

As a result of continued economic growth in the United Kingdom and of the security provided to transporters by the Group’s
various investments, Truck Shuttle traffic experienced an exceptional year and significantly outperformed the cross-Channel
market (which grew by 5%). During 2016, the Truck Shuttle service transported more than 1.64 million trucks (+11%), a level never
before reached, and in December 2016 recorded its 14" consecutive monthly traffic record for a comparable period. Eurotunnel
confirmed its place as the principal actor in the Short Straits cross-Channel truck market with a share of approximately 39.2% for
the year compared to 37.3% in 2015, 2015 having been badly affected by the disruptions arising from the attempted intrusions by
migrants onto the French terminal until the security measures were put in place on the Coquelles site from the end of
October 2015.

Passenger Shuttle

With more than 2.61 million (+2%) tourist vehicles transported in 2016, the Passenger Shuttle car service achieved its highest
traffic since 2000 and outperformed the cross-Channel market which contracted by 2% in difficult market conditions following the
terrorist attacks which have led to a reduction in tourism in France. Passenger Shuttle car market share increased to 55% in 2016,
compared to 53% in 2015.

The Short Straits cross-Channel coach market, which remains affected by the terrorist attacks and the security situation in Europe,
contracted by approximately 9% compared to 2015. With traffic down by 8%, the Fixed Link’s share of the coach market increased
slightly to 38.1%.
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b) Railway Network

Traffic m 2015 Change

High-Speed Passenger Trains (Eurostar):

Passengers® 10,011,337 10,399,267 —4%
Train Operators’ Rail Freight Services®*:

Number of tonnes 1,041,294 1,420,826 —27%

Number of trains 1,797 2,421 —26%

*  Only passengers travelling through the Channel Tunnel are included in this table, excluding those who travel between Paris-Calais and Brussels-
Lille.

** Rail freight services by train operators (DB Cargo for BRB, SNCF and its subsidiaries, GB Railfreight and Europorte) using the Tunnel.

The Eurotunnel Group earned revenues of €290 million in 2016 from the use of its Railway Network by Eurostar’s High-Speed
Passenger Trains and by the Train Operators’ Rail Freight Services, down 3% compared to 2015.

The number of Eurostar passengers using the Tunnel was badly affected by the succession of terrorist attacks in Paris, Brussels
and Nice and fell by 4% in 2016 for the year as a whole. Nevertheless, the trend reversed in the last quarter with growth of 2%,
supported by a record December (+9% compared to December 2015).

Cross-Channel rail freight fell in 2016 (decrease in the number of rail freight trains of 26% and in tonnage of 27%) due to the
pressure of migrants on the SNCF Réseau yard at Calais-Fréthun in 2015, which led to some operators changing routes. However,
there was an upturn in the trend over the last few months of 2016, with traffic up by 10% in the last quarter of 2016 compared
to 2015.

i)  Fixed Link Concession operating costs
The Fixed Link segment’s operating costs amounted to €392 million in 2016, an increase of 4% compared to 2015. This €15 million
increase was due mainly to the impact of increased activity on staff costs, maintenance, security and other operating costs.

c) Europorte segment
The Europorte segment covers the entire rail freight transport logistics chain in France and includes notably Europorte France and
Socorail. The UK subsidiary GB Railfreight Limited was sold in November 2016 and is therefore not included in the figures below.

Variance
€ MILLION *12015 €M %

Revenue 116 128 -7 —6%
External operating costs (67) (73) -6 —8%
Employee benefits expense (49) (52) -3 —6%
Operating costs (116) (125) -9 —7%
Operating margin (EBITDA) - -2 2

*

Restated in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight Limited.

i)  Europorte revenues

Europorte’s revenues decreased by 6% in 2016 mainly due to the long succession of SNCF strikes in the spring which totally
paralysed the French national rail network for almost two months and then to a reduction in the activity of customers in the cereals
sector during the summer.

i)  Europorte operating costs
Operating costs decreased by 7% reflecting the reduction in commercial activity as well as the first effects of the plan to improve
profitability on a sustainable basis.

d) ElecLink segment

ElecLink’s activity is the construction and operation of a 1,000 MW electricity interconnector between the UK and France.
Preliminary construction works began in the second half of 2016 and the interconnector is expected to be in commercial operation
from the beginning of 2020.
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The Group’s share of ElecLink’s result in 2015 and between 1 January and 23 August 2016 (loss of €1.3 million in 2015 and
€0.8 million in 2016) is included in the consolidated income statement under “Share of result of equity-accounted companies”.
ElecLink Limited has been fully consolidated in the Group’s accounts since 23 August 2016.

Operating costs amounted to €1 million for the period August to December 2016. Costs directly attributable to the project are
capitalised.

e) Operating margin (EBITDA)
EBITDA by business segment evolved as follows:

€ MILLION Fixed Link Europorte ElecLink Total Group
EBITDA 2015 restated® 484 (2 - 482
Improvement/(deterioration):
Revenue +46 -7 - +39
Operating costs +15 -9 +1 +7
Total changes +31 +2 1) +32
EBITDA 2016 515 - (1) 514

*  Restated at the rate of exchange used for the 2016 income statement (£1=€1.216) and in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight
Limited.

At €514 million in 2016, the Group’s operating margin improved by €32 million compared to 2015 (+7 %) as a result of an increase in
revenue and the control of costs for the Fixed Link. Europorte’s EBITDA improved by €2 million despite a reduction in activity. The
full consolidation of ElecLink since August 2016 has resulted in an increase in operating costs of €1 million.

f) Operating profit (EBIT)
Depreciation charges increased by €6 million as a result of the completion in 2015 and 2016 of major projects such as Terminal
2015 and the GSM-R (see section 1.6.2 of this Registration Document).

At €364 million, the trading profit improved by €26 million compared to 2015.

Net other operating income of €37 million (2015: net charge of €2 million) includes a gain of €50 million resulting from the
revaluation at their fair value of the shares in ElecLink Limited already held by the Group when it took full control of the subsidiary in
August 2016 (see note C.3i of the notes to the consolidated financial statements set out in section 2.2.1 of this Registration
Document) partially offset by provisions and advisors’ fees.

The operating profit for the 2016 financial year was €401 million compared to €336 million in 2015, an improvement of €65 million.

dg) Net result from continuing operations

At €262 million in 2016, net finance costs increased by €15 million compared to 2015 as a consequence of the increase in inflation
rates and the resulting unfavourable effect on the interest and on the revaluation of the nominal value of the index-linked tranche of
the debt.

“Net other financial income and charges” in 2016 included net exchange gains of €9 million compared to net gains in 2015 of
€3 million arising from changes in the sterling/euro exchange rate. In 2015, it included €17.5 million of consent fees relating to the
transaction to simplify the debt concluded in 2015.

The Eurotunnel Group’s pre-tax result for continuing operations for the 2016 financial year was a profit of €154 million, an
improvement of €74 million compared to 2015 at a constant exchange rate.

In 2016, income tax expense included a charge of €3 million relating to tax on dividends (3% on the €118 million dividend paid in
2016), an income tax credit of €1 million and a deferred tax charge of €15 million.

The Eurotunnel Group’s post-tax result for continuing operations for the 2016 financial year was a profit of €136 million, an
improvement of €63 million at a constant exchange rate, of which €50 million resulted from the integration of ElecLink.

h) Net result from discontinued operations

2015 Variance
€ MILLION restated™ €M

Exchange rate €/£ 1.216 1.216

Maritime segment MyFerryLink 17 8) 25
GB Railfreight Limited 47 10 37
Net profit from discontinued operations 64 2 62

*  Restated at the rate of exchange used for the 2016 income statement (£1=€1.216) and in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight
Limited.
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For more detail, see note C.3ii to the consolidated financial statements contained in section 2.2.1 of this Registration Document.

i) Maritime segment MyFerryLink
The Eurotunnel Group’s maritime subsidiaries leased their three ferries to SCOP SeaFrance (an operating company outside the
Eurotunnel Group) and marketed the cross-Channel crossings for tourist and freight vehicles. Operation of the Group’s three ferries
ceased in the second half of 2015.

In 2016, the maritime segment’s net result was a profit of €17 million. During the year, the lease of the three ferries began following
agreements with DFDS and Vansea Shipping Company Limited which include a put option, exercisable by the Group, for their
subsequent sale. These options are exercisable by the Group in June 2017, at the end of the period of five years during which it
was prohibited from selling the ferries under conditions imposed at the time of their purchase in 2012. In accordance with IAS 17
“Leases”, these leases are treated as finance leases. Consequently, the Group has recognised an income net of tax in the maritime
segment’s income statement in the 2016 financial year of €24 million which includes a net income of €40 million (after taking into
account €13 million for the cost of putting the ferries back into operation) under “Other net operating income” and a deferred tax
charge on this income of €16 million.

i) GB Railfreight Limited
On 15 November 2016, the Eurotunnel Group completed the sale of its UK rail freight subsidiary GB Railfreight Limited to
EQT Infrastructure Il for €136 million.

2015

2016 12 months Variance
€ MILLION 10 months restated® €M
Exchange rate €/£ 1.216 1.216
Revenue 129 164 -35
Operating costs (113) (144) —31
Operating margin (EBITDA) 16 20 -4
Depreciation (7) 7) -
Trading profit 9 13 -4
Other net operating income/(charges) 40 ) +42
Operating profit (EBIT) 49 11 +38
Net financial charges () (1) +1
Net profit 47 10 +37

*

Restated at the rate of exchange used for the 2016 income statement (£1=€1.216) and in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight
Limited.

For the 2016 financial year, the net result of the discontinued activity of GB Railfreight Limited was a profit of €47 million, including
the net result of operations up until the date of its sale as well as the profit from the sale of €39 million.

i) Net consolidated result

The net consolidated result for the Eurotunnel Group for the 2016 financial year was a profit of €200 million compared to a profit of
€75 million restated for 2015, an improvement of €125 million, of which €114 million related to exceptional operations (€50 million
profit resulting from the integration of ElecLink and €64 million arising from discontinued activities).
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2.1.2 ANALYSIS OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 31 December
€ MILLION 2016 2015

Exchange rate €/£ 1.168 1.362
Property, plant and equipment 6,366 6,376
Other non-current assets 280 320
Total non-current assets 6,646 6,696
Trade and other receivables 94 129
Other current assets 172 67
Assets held for sale - 65
Cash and cash equivalents 347 406
Total current assets 613 667
Total assets 7,259 7,363
Total equity 1,812 1,663
Financial liabilities 3,786 4,161
Interest rate derivatives 1,309 1,170
Other liabilities 352 369
Total equity and liabilities 7,259 7,363

The table above summarises the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016 and
31 December 2015. The main elements and changes between the two dates are as follows:

At 31 December 2016, “Property, plant and equipment” includes assets amounting to €6,089 million for the Fixed Link
segment, €83 million for the Europorte segment and €194 million for the ElecLink segment including an intangible asset of
€120 million relating to the goodwill that arose on full integration of ElecLink by the Group in August 2016. At
31 December 2015, GB Railfreight Limited’s fixed assets included €26 million of intangible assets and €98 million of tangible
fixed assets.

“Other non-current assets” includes a deferred tax asset of €122 million and floating rate notes of €151 million.

At the start of finance leases of the maritime segment’s three ferries during the first half of 2016, (see note A.2 to the
consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2016), the net investment in these leases was accounted for in “Other
current assets” (see note G.3ii to the consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2016). At 31 December 2015, the
maritime segment’s three ferries were treated as “Assets held for sale”.

At 31 December 2015, “Trade and other receivables” included €30 million and “Other current assets” €3 million relating to the
subsidiary GB Railfreight Limited which was sold during 2016.

At 31 December 2016, “Cash and cash equivalents” amounted to €347 million, after payment of the €118 million dividend,
share buyback transactions of €59 million, net capital expenditure of €94 million, and €285 million in debt service costs
(interest, repayments and fees).

“Equity” increased by €149 million as a result of the impact of changes in the exchange rate on the cumulative translation
reserve (€267 million) and the net profit for the year (€200 million). These increases were partially offset by an increase in the
valuation of the “Interest rate derivatives” liability (€139 million), the payment of the dividend (€118 million), share buyback
transactions (€58 million), and a change in retirement liabilities (€16 million).

“Financial liabilities” have decreased by €375 million compared to 31 December 2015. Reductions of €324 million from the
impact of the reduction in the exchange rate on the sterling-denominated debt, €26 million following the sale of GB Railfreight
Limited, €38 million in debt repayments and payment of €17 million of fees in respect of the operation to simplify the debt
structure completed at the end of 2015 have partly been offset by an increase of €24 million arising from the effect of inflation
rates on the index-linked debt tranche A of the Term Loan and an increase of €6 million for the effective rate adjustment.
“Other liabilities” include €252 million of trade and other payables and retirement liabilities of €100 million. At
31 December 2015, “Other liabilities” included €33 million of operating liabilities and €13 million of retirement liabilities relating
to GB Railfreight Limited.
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2.1.3 ANALYSIS OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

In order to enable a better comparison between the two years, the 2015 cash flow presented in this section has been recalculated
at the exchange rate used for the statement of financial position at 31 December 2016 of £1=€1.168.

a) Consolidated cash flows

2015 2015
€ MILLION restated™ Variance reported

Exchange rate €/£ 1.168 1.168 1.362
Continuing activities:
Net cash inflow from trading 520 499 +21 528
Other operating cash flows and taxation (18) (11) -7 (12)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 502 488 +14 516
Net cash outflow from investing activities (202) 67) —-135 (69)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (449) 411) -38 (433)
(Decrease)/increase in cash in year from
continuing activities (149) 10 -159 14
Discontinued activities®**:
Net cash inflow from operating activities ) 24 —-26 28
Net cash outflow from investing activities (22) (32) +10 (87)
Net cash inflow from sale of subsidiary 130 - +130 -
Net cash inflow from financing activities 24 1 +23 1
Increase/(decrease) in cash in year from
discontinued activities 130 (7) +137 (8)
Total (decrease)/increase in cash in year (19) 3 —-22 6

*

Restated at the rate of exchange used for the statement of financial position at 31 December 2016 (£1=€1.168).

*k

Maritime segment and GB Railfreight Limited, see note C.3ii to the consolidated accounts at 31 December 2016.

i) Continuing activities

Net cash inflow from trading by continuing activities in 2016 improved by €21 million at a constant exchange rate compared to
2015, to €520 million, mainly due to:

e a net increase of €18 million for the Fixed Link activity;

e a net increase of €5 million for the Europorte activity; and

e ElecLink expenses of €1 million for the period since full consolidation in August 2016.

Net other operating cash outflows and taxation increased by €7 million of which €5 million related to costs in respect of projects
during 2016 and €2 million was related to taxation.

Net cash outflow from investing activities of the continuing activities increased from €67 million in 2015 (restated at the 2016

exchange rate) to €202 million in 2016. In 2016, this included:

e a net payment of €75 million relating to the acquisition of the 51% of shares held by Star Capital in ElecLink Limited in
August 2016;

e net payments of €68 million relating to the Fixed Link (2015 restated: €72 million) of which €23 million was spent on rolling
stock, €10 million on the Terminal 2015 project, €7 million on replacing rails in the Tunnel and €6 million on the GSM-R project;

e net payments of €5 million for Europorte in France (2015: €23 million paid less €26 million received from a sale and lease back
operation); and

e net payments of €54 million on the ElecLink project for the first works started at the end of 2016 (2015: €2 million received in
respect of a reimbursement of a deposit).

Net cash outflow from financing for continuing activities in 2016 amounted to €449 million compared to €411 million in 2015
restated at the 2016 exchange rate. During 2016, it comprised mainly:
e debt service costs totalling €282 million:
— €228 million of interest paid on the Term Loan, associated hedging transactions and other loans (2015 restated:
€235 million),
— €38 million paid in respect of scheduled repayments on the Term Loan and other loans (2015 restated: €35 million),
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— €17 million paid in respect of consent fees in relation to the transaction to simplify the debt structure concluded at the end
of 2015 (2015 restated: €39 million);
e €118 million paid in dividends (2015: €97 million),
e €59 million paid in respect of the share buyback programme (€14 million in 2015), and
e €8 million interest received of which €6 million was in respect of the floating rate notes owned by the Group (2015: €9 million of
which €6 million was in respect of the floating rate notes).

i)  Discontinued activities
In 2016, net cash flows from discontinued activities included:
® For the maritime segment:
— €18 million of net operating cash outflows, including €13 million paid for the cost of putting the ferries back into operation
prior to their new finance leases starting, and
— cash received of €10 million from the ferries’ finance lease contracts.
e For GB Railfreight Limited:
— €16 million of net operating cash inflows for the year period prior to its sale in November 2016,
— capital expenditure of €22 million to acquire new locomotives partially offset by receipt of a €14 million loan
drawdown, and
— €130 million net receipt from the sale of GB Railfreight Limited in November 2016.

b) Free Cash Flow

The Group defines its Free Cash Flow as net cash flow from operating activities less net cash flow from investing activities
(excluding the initial investment in new activities and the acquisition of shareholdings in subsidiary undertakings) and net cash flow
from financing activities relating to debt service plus interest received (on cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets).

2015 2015
€ MILLION restated™ reported

Exchange rate €/£ 1.168 1.168 1.362
Net cash inflow from operating activities 500 512 544
Net cash outflow from investing activities (98) (99) (106)
Debt service costs (interest paid, fees and repayments) (285) (273) (293)
Interest received and other receipts 19 12 12
Free Cash Flow 136 152 157
ElecLink: acquisition of shares (75) - -
ElecLink: project expenditure (51) - -
Sale of GB Railfreight Limited 130 - -
Dividend paid (118) 97) 97)
Purchase of treasury shares and net movement on liquidity contract (58) (16) (16)
Consent fees on financial operation - (39) 42)
Cash received from loans and other 17 3 4
Use of Free Cash Flow (155) (149) (151)
(Decrease)/increase in cash in the year (19) 3 6

*  Restated at the rate of exchange used for the statement of financial position at 31 December 2016 (£1=€1.168).

At €136 million in 2016, Free Cash Flow has decreased compared to 2015 for the reasons set out in section a) above.

c) Debt service cover ratios

i) Financial covenants

The debt service cover ratio and the synthetic service cover ratio for Groupe Eurotunnel SE at 31 December 2016, as described in
note G.5 of the consolidated financial statements contained in section 2.2.1 of this Registration Document, were 2.06 and
1.84 respectively, and thus the financial covenants for the Term Loan for the period were respected.
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i) EBITDA to finance costs ratio
The ratio of the Group’s consolidated EBITDA to its finance costs (excluding interest received and indexation) is 2.1 at
31 December 2016 (2015 restated: 2.0).

2015
€ MILLION restated™

Exchange rate €/£ 1.216 1.216
EBITDA 514 482
Finance cost 264 249
Indexation (25) 8)
Finance cost excluding indexation 239 241
EBITDA / finance cost excluding indexation 2.1 2.0

*  Restated at the rate of exchange used for the 2016 income statement (£1=€1.216) and in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight
Limited.

2.1.4 NET DEBT TO EBITDA RATIO

The Group defines its net debt to EBITDA ratio as the ratio between financial liabilities less the value of the floating rate notes and
cash and cash equivalents held by the Group, and consolidated EBITDA. At 31 December 2016, the ratio was 6.4 compared to
6.9 at 31 December 2015 (restated following the sale of GB Railfreight Limited).

31 December *131 December
€ MILLION 2016 2015

Non-current financial liabilities 3,687 3,988
Current financial liabilities 31 45
Other non-current liabilities 61 79
Other current liabilities 7 17
Total financial liabilities 3,786 4,129
Floating rate notes (151) (161)
Cash and cash equivalents (347) (892)
Net debt 3,288 3,576
EBITDA 514 520
Net debt / EBITDA 6.4 6.9
Statement of financial position exchange rate €/£ 1.168 1.362
Income statement exchange rate €/£ 1.216 1.375

* 2015 restated in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight Limited.
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RESULTS AND OUTLOOK

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

This is a free translation into English of the statutory auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements issued in French and
is provided solely for the convenience of English-speaking users.

The statutory auditors’ report includes information specifically required by French law in such reports, whether modified or not.
This information is presented below the audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements and includes an explanatory
paragraph discussing the auditors’ assessments of certain significant accounting and auditing matters. These assessments were
considered for the purpose of issuing an audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole and not to provide
separate assurance on individual account balances, transactions, or disclosures.

This report also includes information relating to the specific verification of information given in the Group’s management report.

This report should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and professional auditing standards
applicable in France.

To the Shareholders,

In compliance with the assignment entrusted to us by your annual general meeting, we hereby report to you, for the year ended
31 December 2016, on:

e the audit of the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Groupe Eurotunnel SE;

e the justification of our assessments;

¢ the specific verification required by law.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors. Our role is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

1 Opinion on the consolidated financial statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France; those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures, using sampling techniques or other methods of selection, to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as well as the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and liabilities and of the financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2016 and of the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

2 Justification of our assessments
In accordance with the requirements of article L. 823-9 of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce), we bring to your
attention the following matter.

Valuation of assets

In accordance with accounting policies described in note F.4 of the consolidated financial statements, the Eurotunnel Group
performed an impairment test in order to ensure that the recoverable value of assets was still greater than their book value. We
examined the conditions of implementation of this test based on discounted future cash flows, as well as the main assumptions
and parameters used. We further examined sensitivity analysis performed. We also verified that note F.4 of the consolidated
financial statements gives appropriate information.

As mentioned in note B.3.iii of the financial statements, these estimates are based on assumptions that are inherently uncertain.
Depending on the evolution of these assumptions, actual results may differ from current estimates.

These assessments were made as part of our audit of the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, and therefore

contributed to the opinion we formed which is expressed in the first part of this report.

3 Specific verification
As required by law we have also verified, in accordance with professional standards applicable in France, the information
presented in the Group’s management report.
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We have no matters to report as to its fair presentation and its consistency with the consolidated financial statements.

Statutory auditors, 28 February 2017

Paris La Défense Courbevoie

KPMG Audit Mazars
A division of KPMG S.A.

Fabrice Odent Francisco Sanchez
Partner Partner
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

31 December
€000 Note 2016

31 December

2015%

Revenue D.2 1,023,480 1,037,699
Operating expenses D.3 (285,578) (288,888)
Employee benefits expense E (224,272) (228,674)
Operating margin (EBITDA) 513,630 520,137
Depreciation F (149,240) (144,334)
Trading profit 364,390 375,803
Other operating income D.5 51,004 2,995
Other operating expenses D.5 (14,557) (4,506)
Operating profit 400,837 374,292
Share of result of equity-accounted companies c.2 (762) (1,315)
Operating profit after share of result of equity-accounted
companies 400,075 372,977
Finance income G.1 2,048 2,604
Finance costs G.1 (263,927) (264,045)
Net finance costs (261,879) (261,441)
Other financial income G.2 64,436 29,320
Other financial charges G.2 (48,944) (36,931)
Pre-tax profit from continuing operations 153,688 103,925
Income tax expense of continuing operations 1.1 (17,449) (7,500)
Net profit from continuing operations 136,239 96,425
Net profit from discontinued operations C.3ii 64,034 3,793
Net profit for the year 200,273 100,218

Net profit attributable to:

Group share 200,585 100,451

Minority interest share (312) (233)

Earnings per share (€): H.2

Basic earnings per share: Group share 0.37 0.19

Diluted earnings per share: Group share 0.37 0.18

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations 0.25 0.18

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 0.25 0.18

*  Figures restated in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight Limited (see note A.4 below).

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

31 December
Note 2016

31 December

€000 2015
Items that will never be reclassified to the income
statement:
Actuarial gains and losses on employee benefits E.4 (15,595) (8,294)
Related tax | 713 306
Items that are or may be reclassified to the income
statement:
Foreign exchange translation differences 266,693 (115,066)
Movement in fair value of hedging contracts G.5ii (138,744) 29,217
Related tax | 2,272 1,230
Net income/(expense) recognised directly in equity 115,339 (92,607)
Profit for the year — Group share 200,585 100,451
Total comprehensive income - Group share 315,924 7,844
Total comprehensive expense — minority interest share (308) (233)
Total comprehensive income for the year 315,616 7,611

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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31 December

31 December
Note 2016

€000 2015
ASSETS

Goodwill F1, C.3i 119,955 19,308
Intangible assets F.2 - 6,958
Total intangible assets 119,955 26,266
Concession property, plant and equipment F.3i 6,086,544 6,166,615
Other property, plant and equipment F.3ii 159,678 183,079
Total property, plant and equipment 6,246,222 6,349,694
Equity-accounted companies Cc.2 - 3,897
Deferred tax asset 1.2 121,698 149,497
Other financial assets G.3 158,361 167,031
Total non-current assets 6,646,236 6,696,385
Inventories 3,009 3,540
Trade receivables D.6i 94,336 129,442
Other receivables D.6ii 62,066 62,882
Other financial assets G.3 107,036 192
Cash and cash equivalents G4 346,637 405,912
Sub-total current assets 613,084 601,968
Assets held for sale C.3ii.a) - 64,675
Total current assets 613,084 666,643
Total assets 7,259,320 7,363,028
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Issued share capital H.1ii 220,000 220,000
Share premium account 1,711,796 1,711,796
Other reserves (555,788) (837,877)
Profit for the year 200,585 100,451
Cumulative translation reserve 235,782 (30,911)
Equity - Group share 1,812,375 1,663,459
Minority interest share (650) (342)
Total equity 1,811,725 1,663,117
Retirement benefit obligations E.4 99,887 98,301
Financial liabilities G.5 3,687,213 4,017,341
Other financial liabilities G.5 61,084 79,177
Interest rate derivatives G.5ii 1,308,986 1,170,242
Total non-current liabilities 5,157,170 5,365,061
Provisions D.8 6,701 8,265
Financial liabilities G.5 31,265 46,914
Other financial liabilities G.5 6,858 17,353
Trade payables D.7 207,328 222,727
Other payables D.7 38,273 39,591
Total current liabilities 290,425 334,850
Total equity and liabilities 7,259,320 7,363,028

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2016 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT - GROUPE EUROTUNNEL SE

O

G

®



)

¢

®

RESULTS AND OUTLOOK

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Issued Share Cumulative
share premium Consolidated translation Group Minority
€000 capital account reserves  Result reserve Share interests Total
1 January 2015 220,000 1,711,796 (315,094) 57,225 84,155 1,758,082 (109) 1,757,973
Transfer to consolidated reserves 57,225 (57,225) - -
Payment of dividend (97,272) (97,272) (97,272)
Share based payments 7,240 7,240 7,240
Acquisition/sale of treasury shares (12,435) (12,435) (12,435)
Result for the year 100,451 100,451 (233) 100,218
Profit / (loss) recorded directly in other
comprehensive income:
® Actuarial gains and losses on employee
benefits (8,294) (8,294) (8,294)
® Related tax 306 306 306
® Movement in fair value of hedging
contracts 29,217 29,217 29,217
® Related tax 1,230 1,230 1,230
® Foreign exchange translation
differences (115,066) (115,066) (115,066)
31 December 2015 220,000 1,711,796 (337,877) 100,451 (30,911) 1,663,459 (342) 1,663,117
Transfer to consolidated reserves 100,451 (100,451) - -
Payment of dividend (note H.1iv) (118,154) (118,154) (118,154)
Share based payments®™ 8,797 8,797 8,797
Acquisition/sale of treasury shares (57,651) (57,651) (57,651)
Result for the year 200,585 200,585 (312) 200,273
Minority interests - 4 4
Profit / (loss) recorded directly in other
comprehensive income:
® Actuarial gains and losses on employee
benefits (15,595) (15,595) (15,595)
® Related tax 713 713 713
® Movement in fair value of hedging
contracts (138,744) (138,744) (138,744)
® Related tax 2,272 2,272 2,272
® Foreign exchange translation
differences 266,693 266,693 266,693
31 December 2016 220,000 1,711,796 (555,788) 200,585 235,782 1,812,375 (650) 1,811,725

*  Of which €6,750,000 is in respect of free shares, €397,000 is in respect of share options and €1,650,000 is in respect of preference shares.
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ERRATUM

In the table “Consolidated statement of cash flows” below, in the 31 December 2016
column, on the line “Increase in trade and other payables”, the amount should read
15,622 (and not 12,142).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

31 December
Note 2016

31 December

€000 2015
Operating margin (EBITDA) from continuing operations 513,630 520,137
Operating margin (EBITDA) from discontinued operations C.3ii 10,630 16,859
Exchange adjustment * (12,748) (3,187)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (2,126) 18
Decrease in trade and other receivables 6,861 6,614
Increase in trade and other payables 12,142 15,339
Net cash inflow from trading 531,869 555,780
Other operating cash flows (22,147) (4,247)
Taxation paid (9,454) (7,235)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 500,268 544,298
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment (145,271) (135,630)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 31 27,154
Purchase of shares (74,270) -
Change in loans and advances (3,897) 2,240
Sale of subsidiary 129,660 -
Net cash outflow from investing activities (93,747) (106,236)
Dividend paid (118,154) (97,272)
Exercise of stock options 521 2,878
Purchase of treasury shares (59,053) (13,965)
Net payments on liquidity contract 879 (1,307)
Cash received from loans 16,936 4,087
Fees paid on loans (17,249) (42,220)
Interest paid on loans (163,561) (186,543)
Interest paid on hedging instruments (66,136) (67,260)
Scheduled repayment of loans (88,257) (89,314
Cash received under finance leases G.3ii 10,357 -
Interest received on cash and cash equivalents 2,072 2,466
Interest received on other financial assets 6,024 6,555
Net cash outflow from financing activities (425,621) (431,895)
(Decrease)/increase in cash in year (19,100) 6,167
*  The adjustment relates to the restatement of elements of the income statement at the exchange rate ruling at the year end.
MOVEMENT DURING THE YEAR
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 405,912 384,723
Effect of movement in exchange rate (40,077) 14,930
(Decrease)/increase in cash in year (19,100) 6,167
(Increase)/decrease in interest receivable in year (98) 92
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December G.4 346,637 405,912

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Groupe Eurotunnel SE is the consolidating entity of the Eurotunnel Group, whose registered office is at 3 rue La Boétie,
75008 Paris, France and whose shares are listed on Euronext Paris and on NYSE Euronext London. The term “Groupe
Eurotunnel SE” or “GET SE” refers to the holding company which is governed by French law. The term “Group” or “the Eurotunnel
Group” refers to Groupe Eurotunnel SE and all its subsidiaries.

The main activities of the Group are the design, financing, construction and operation of the Fixed Link’s infrastructure and
transport system in accordance with the terms of the Concession (which will expire in 2086), as well as the rail freight activity. The
maritime activity was discontinued in 2015 (see note A.2 below).

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 February 2017 and will be
submitted for approval to the shareholders’ general meeting.

A. Important events

A.1 United Kingdom’s referendum of 23 June 2016
In the referendum on 23 June 2016, the United Kingdom voted to leave the European Union.

After the referendum, the Group presented the results of its detailed review of risks to the Audit Committee and the Board of
Directors, and set up a process to closely monitor the regulatory risks, tax and financing risks, foreign exchange risks and
macroeconomic risks relating to the Group’s businesses.

The Group has taken account of this new situation, the exact terms and mechanics of which are yet to be defined, in the
determination of the principal estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements at
31 December 2016 as set out in note B.3iii below.

The Group’s business plan incorporating the potential effects of this decision was reviewed by the Board of Directors. The key
economic assumptions have been determined in the light of external studies and are based on market data as at the date of the
statement of financial position. The Board of Directors has reviewed these assumptions and the corresponding sensitivity
analyses. As at 31 December 2016, the Group has not identified any major impact of the United Kingdom’s decision to leave the
European Union that could significantly affect its business or financial situation.

A.2 Cessation of the maritime activity

Since the cessation of its maritime activity in the second half of 2015, the Group has applied IFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for
sale and discontinued operations” to its maritime segment MyFerryLink. At 31 December 2015, the ferries Berlioz, Rodin and
Nord-Pas-de Calais were classed as assets held for sale and presented on a separate line of the statement of financial position,
and the net result of the maritime activity was presented on a single line in the income statement entitled “Net result from
discontinued operations”.

Since February 2016, two of the ferries, the Berlioz and the Rodin, have been leased to the DFDS group under an agreement which,
due to the condition imposed at the time of their purchase in 2012 prohibiting the sale of the ferries for a period of five years,
includes an option for their subsequent sale which is exercisable by the Group in June 2017.

On 4 May 2016, the Group concluded a similar agreement with Vansea Shipping Company Limited for the Nord-Pas-de-Calais
which provides initially for its lease with an option for its subsequent sale which is exercisable by the Group in June 2017.

These contracts, which effectively transfer almost all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, are treated as finance leases

in accordance with IAS 17 “Leases”. This treatment is reflected in the financial statements at 31 December 2016 as follows:

e the net investment in the finance lease contracts was recorded in the statement of financial position under “current financial
assets”; and

e an income net of tax of €24 million was accounted for in the maritime segment’s income statement.

Information on the maritime segment is presented in note C.3ii.a) below.
A.3 ElecLink
On 23 August 2016, the Eurotunnel Group purchased the 51% share in ElecLink Limited held by Star Capital for €75 million.

ElecLink’s activity is the construction and operation of a 1,000MW electricity interconnector between the UK and France.
Preliminary construction works began in the last quarter of 2016 and the interconnector is expected to be in commercial operation
from the beginning of 2020.
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In accordance with IFRS 3 Revised, the purchase of the Star Capital shareholding is treated as a business combination carried out

in stages and is reflected in the Group’s consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2016 as follows:

e €50 million has been recorded in “Other operating income”, corresponding to the profit arising from the revaluation at fair value
of the ElecLink shares already held by the Group (see note C.3i below).

e Goodwill of €120 million generated by the acquisition of control of ElecLink has been recorded in intangible assets in the
statement of financial position at 31 December 2016 (see note C.3i and F.1 below).

ElecLink has been fully consolidated by the Group since it took full control on 23 August 2016. The Group’s share of ElecLink’s
result between 1 January and 23 August 2016 (loss of €0.8 million in 2016) is included in the consolidated income statement under
“Share of result of equity-accounted companies”.

A.4 Sale of GB Railfreight Limited
On 15 November 2016, the Eurotunnel Group finalised the sale of its British rail freight subsidiary GB Railfreight Limited to EQT
Infrastructure Il for €136 million.

This transaction is reflected in the Group’s consolidated financial statement as at 31 December 2016 as follows:

e GB Railfreight Limited ceased to be consolidated in the Group’s accounts from the date of its sale, and, in accordance with
IFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”, its net result for the period in 2016 up to its sale is
presented as a single line in the income statement called “Net result from discontinued operations”.

e A net profit on sale of €39 million was recorded in the Group’s net result from discontinued activities (see note C.3ii.b) below).
The tax charge on this profit is offset by the effect of group tax relief and the use of carried forward tax losses.

B. Principles of preparation, main accounting policies and methods

The consolidated accounts consist of the consolidation of the accounts of GET SE and its subsidiaries as set out in the table in
note C.1 below. The accounting periods of Eurotunnel companies run from 1 January to 31 December.

B.1 Statement of compliance and Group accounting standards

Pursuant to European Regulation 1606/2002 of 19 July 2002 on International Accounting Standards, the Eurotunnel Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 are prepared in accordance with international accounting
standards as published by IASB and approved by the European Union as at 31 December 2016. These international standards
include IAS (International Accounting Standards), International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations
(SIC and IFRIC).

Eurotunnel has control over the nature and price of the services it provides, and therefore does not meet the criteria set out in
IFRIC 12 relating to concession contracts.

The Group did not anticipate the application of standards and interpretations, the implementation of which is not mandatory
in 2016.

B.2 Changes in accounting standards as at 31 December 2016
The accounting policies and valuation rules applied by the Group in the consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2016
are identical to those used in the financial statements as at 31 December 2015.

i. Texts adopted by the European Union whose application is compulsory

The texts adopted by the European Union, the application of which is compulsory for financial years beginning on or after
1 January 2016, are as follows:

e amendments to IAS 19 “Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions”;

e amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 “Clarification of Acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation”;

e amendments to IAS 1 “Disclosure Initiative”;

e amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 “Investment Entities: Application of the Exception to Consolidation”;

e amendments to IFRS 11 “Acquisition of an interest in a joint operation”.

The application of these texts has no significant impact on the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements.

ii. Texts adopted by the European Union but not yet mandatory
IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

On 22 September 2016, the European Union adopted IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, which is mandatory
from 1 January 2018. The associated amendments, subject to their adoption by the European Union, will be applicable on the
same date as IFRS 15. The Group does not intend to apply these provisions in advance.
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The Group’s preliminary analysis did not reveal any significant impact in the consolidated financial statements. Analytical work will
be carried out to confirm this impact, in particular as a result of the evolution of the contractual framework and the Group’s activity
until the implementation of the standard.

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

“IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments” issued by the IASB in July 2014 and adopted by the EU on 29 November 2016 will replace IAS 39
“Financial Instruments” as of 1 January 2018. This new standard defines new principles for the classification and measurement of
financial instruments, impairment for credit risk on financial assets and hedge accounting.

The Group does not intend to apply this provision in advance.

iii. Other texts and amendments published by the IASB but not approved by the European Union

The following texts concerning accounting rules and methods specifically applied by the Group have not yet been approved by the
European Union:

e |FRS 16 “Leases”;

e amendments to IFRS 15 “Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers”;

e amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sales or contributions of assets between an investor and its associate/joint venture”;
e amendments to IAS 12 “recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses”;

e amendments to IAS 7 under the “Disclosure Initiative” project;

e amendments to IFRS 2 “Classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions”.

IFRS 16 “Leases”, subject to approval by the European Union, will be mandatory for financial years beginning on or after
1 January 2019. According to this standard, all leases other than short-term leases and those of low-value assets, must be
recognised in the lessee’s statement of financial position in the form of a right of use asset and a financial liability. To date, leases
classified as “simple” are presented off-balance sheet.

The potential impact of these other texts will be assessed by the Group in subsequent years.

B.3 Basis of preparation

i. Conversion of foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into the reporting currency of each individual company at the rate of exchange
ruling at the date of the transaction. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies other than those mentioned in note ii
below are translated at the rate ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange differences are dealt with in the income
statement.

ii. Exchange rates
GET SE’s company accounts and consolidated accounts are prepared in euros.

The accounts of the Group’s British subsidiaries, and notably CTG and its subsidiaries, are prepared in sterling and are converted

into euros as follows:

e Retained reserves brought forward and Concession property, plant and equipment and related depreciation, at historical rates.

e All other assets and liabilities at the rate ruling at the end of the reporting period.

¢ Income statement items, with the exception of the Concessionaires’ depreciation, at the average rate for the year.

e Exchange differences arising from the application of the above are included in the cumulative translation reserve in the
statement of financial position.

e The closing and average €/£ exchange rates for 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Closing rate 1.168 1.362
Average rate 1.216 1.375

iii. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the period. The Board of Directors
periodically reviews its valuations and estimates based on its experience and various other factors considered relevant for the
determination of reasonable and appropriate estimates of the assets’ and liabilities’ carrying value. Accordingly, the estimates
underlying the preparation of the financial statements as at 31 December 2016 were prepared in the context of the
United Kingdom’s decision to leave the European Union. Depending on the evolution of these assumptions, actual results may
differ from current estimates.
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The use of estimations concerns mainly the valuation of intangible and tangible property, plant and equipment (see note F), the
evaluation of the Group’s deferred tax situation (note I), the valuation of the Group’s retirement liabilities (see note E.4) and certain

elements of the valuation of financial assets and liabilities (note G).

C. Scope of consolidation

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Global integration

The accounts of entities under the Group’s direct or indirect control are included in the consolidated financial statements using
the full consolidation method. Control of an entity is deemed to exist when the Group:

e holds power over the entity,

® is exposed to, or entitled to, variable returns due to its involvement with the entity, and

* has the ability to exercise its power over the relevant activities of the entity in order to affect the amount of returns it obtains.

All significant transactions between the consolidated subsidiaries are eliminated, as are the Group’s internal results (capital
gains, profits on inventories, dividends).

The results of acquired subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is exercised. Companies acquired or
incorporated during the period are consolidated from the date of acquisition or incorporation.

Investments in companies accounted for under the equity method

Entities over which the Group exercises significant influence and entities that are jointly controlled are consolidated under the
equity method. These investments are initially recorded at cost, including any goodwill generated. Their carrying amount is
subsequently increased or decreased to take into account the Group’s share in profits or losses realised after the acquisition
date. When losses exceed the value of the Group’s net investment in an equity-accounted company, these losses are not
recognised unless the Group has a contractual commitment to recapitalise on behalf of that company.

If there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is tested and the impairment losses resulting from these
impairment tests are recorded as a reduction of the carrying amount of the corresponding investments.

The Eurotunnel Group has chosen to present the operating result of its share of the net result of companies accounted for by
the equity method, the operational nature of which is in line with the Group’s activity, after the operating profit and before a
subtotal entitled “Operating profit after share of result of equity-accounted companies”.
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C.1 List of consolidated companies
For the purposes of consolidation, GET SE comprises the following companies at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016:

Country of

registration or Consolidation

31 December 2016

%

%

31 December 2015

%

%

incorporation method interest control interest control
Fixed Link segment
Groupe Eurotunnel SE (GET SE) France FC Holding company
France Manche SA (FM, the French
Concessionaire) France FC 100 100 100 100
The Channel Tunnel Group Limited
(CTG, the British Concessionaire) England FC 100 100 100 100
Centre International de Formation
Ferroviaire de la Cote d’Opale SAS
(CIFFCO) France FC 100 100 100 100
Cheriton Resources 14 Limited England FC 100 100 100 100
Euro-Immo GET SAS France FC 100 100 100 100
Eurotunnel Agent Services Limited England FC 100 100 100 100
Eurotunnel Financial Services Limited England FC 100 100 100 100
Eurotunnel Management Services
Limited England FC 100 100 100 100
Eurotunnel SE Belgium FC 100 100 100 100
Eurotunnel Services GIE (ESGIE) France FC 100 100 100 100
Eurotunnel Services Limited (ESL) England FC 100 100 100 100
Gamond Insurance Company Limited
(GICL) Guernsey FC 100 100 100 100
Société Immobiliere et Fonciére
Eurotunnel SAS France FC 100 100 100 100
Europorte segment
Bourgogne Fret Services SAS France FC 63 100 63 100
Europorte Channel SAS France FC 100 100 100 100
Europorte France SAS France FC 100 100 100 100
Europorte Proximité SAS France FC 100 100 100 100
Europorte SAS France FC 100 100 100 100
Eurosco SAS France FC 100 100 100 100
JP Serwices SAS France FC 63 100 63 100
Socorail SAS France FC 100 100 100 100
Europorte Terminal Container du
Sud-Ouest SAS France FC 100 100 - -
ElecLink segment
ElecLink Limited England FC 100 100 49 49
GET Elec Limited England FC 100 100 100 100
Discontinued operations
Euro-TransManche 3 BE SAS France FC 100 100 100 100
Euro-TransManche 3 NPC SAS France FC 100 100 100 100
GET Finances SAS® France FC 100 100 100 100
Euro-TransManche Holding SAS France FC 100 100 100 100
Euro-TransManche SAS France FC 100 100 100 100
MyFerryLink SAS France FC 100 100 100 100
GB Railfreight Limited England - - - 100 100
Companies with no significant activity during 2016
Cheriton Leasing Limited, Cheriton
Resources 1, 2, 3, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11,
12, 13, 15, 16 Limited England FC 100 100 100 100
Eurotunnel Developments Limited
(EDL) England FC 100 100 100 100
Eurotunnel Finance Limited (EFL) England FC 100 100 100 100
Eurotunnel Project SAS France FC 100 100 - -
Eurotunnel Trustees Limited (ETRL) England FC 100 100 100 100
EurotunnelPlus Limited England FC 100 100 100 100
EurotunnelPlus GmbH Germany FC 100 100 100 100
Le Shuttle Limited England FC 100 100 100 100
London Carex Limited England FC 100 100 100 100
MyFerryLink Limited England FC 100 100 100 100
NTMO SAS France FC 100 100 - -
Orbital Park Limited (OPL) England FC 100 100 100 100

*  Euro-TransManche 3 SAS changed its name to GET Finances SAS on 24 November 2016.
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Up until it acquired Star Capital’s 51% shareholding in ElecLink Limited in August 2016 (see notes A.3 above and C.3i below),
GET SE’s shareholding of 49% (held by its subsidiary GET Elec Limited) was accounted for under the equity method (EM). At
31 December 2016, all the Group’s companies are fully consolidated (FC).

C.2 Investments in equity-accounted companies

31 December 31 December
€000 2016 2015

Equity-accounted company - 7,217
Share of result since acquisition - (3,320)
Total - 3,897

At 31 December 2015, investments in equity-accounted companies related to the Group’s investment in ElecLink Limited, in which
GET SE’s subsidiary GET Elec Limited had a 49% shareholding.

As indicated in note C.3i below, ElecLink Limited has been fully consolidated since the Group took full control on 23 August 2016.

C.3 Changes in the scope of consolidation

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Business combinations

Business combinations are recorded in accordance with the acquisition accounting method as set out in the revised IFRS 3.
Under this method, the assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed are recorded at fair value.

When a business is acquired in stages, the Group’s previously held interest in the business acquired is revalued to fair value
through profit or loss at the time of full acquisition. For the determination of goodwill at the date of control, the fair value of the
consideration transferred (for example the price paid) is increased by the fair value of the interest previously held by the Group.

Costs directly attributable to acquisition transactions are recognised in the operating result for the year.

Sale of businesses

The result of the entities sold in the period, together with the gain or loss on the disposal of these activities and the costs
directly attributable to the transaction, are presented, net of tax, on a separate line item in the income statement entitled “Net
result from discontinued activities”. The same treatment is applied to the income statement for the previous financial year. The
amount of other comprehensive income previously recognised in respect of the investment held prior to the sale is recycled to
the income statement.

Assets and liabilities held for sale and discontinued operations
IFRS 5 “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” sets out the accounting treatment applicable to
assets held for sale and the presentation and disclosure requirements for discontinued operations.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale are presented on a separate line of the statement of financial position when (i) the Group has
made the decision to sell the asset(s) concerned and (ii) the sale is considered to be highly probable. These assets are
measured at the lower of their net carrying amount and their fair value less costs to sell.

Property, plant and equipment classified as “Assets held for sale” are no longer subject to impairment and depreciation is
stopped at the date of application of IFRS 5.

Discontinued operations
A discontinued operation is a component of an entity that the Group has decided to dispose of, either by terminating or selling
the activity and which represents a separate sector of activity and is part of a single co-ordinated disposal plan.
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When these criteria are met, the results of discontinued operations are presented on a separate line in the consolidated income
statement for each period. The Group assesses whether a discontinued operation represents a separate sector of activity
mainly on the basis of its relative contribution to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Discontinued operations (including non-current assets, current assets and the related liabilities classified as held for sale) are
measured as a whole at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Costs specifically incurred in the context of the cessation of the activity are presented in the income statement within the “Net
result from discontinued operations”.

i.  Full acquisition of ElecLink Limited

On 23 August 2016, the Eurotunnel Group purchased the 51% share in ElecLink Limited held by Star Capital for €75 million
(€66 million for the shares and €9 million for the receivables held by Star Capital).

ElecLink’s activity is the construction and operation of a 1,000 MW electricity interconnector between the UK and France. This
acquisition forms part of the Group’s strategy of optimisation of the Fixed Link’s infrastructure. Preliminary construction works
began in the last quarter of 2016 and the interconnector is expected to be in commercial operation from the beginning of 2020. As
the Group already held 49% of ElecLink, the purchase of the other 51% was treated, in accordance with IFRS 3 Revised, as a
business combination carried out in stages and is reflected in the Group’s consolidated financial statements as at
31 December 2016 as follows:
e €50 million has been recorded in “Other operating income”, corresponding to the profit arising from the revaluation at fair value
of the ElecLink shares already held by the Group. This fair value was determined on the basis of the discounted cash flows of
the project as shown in ElecLink’s latest business plan at the date of acquisition of control.

€000

Fair value of shares already held by the Group 45,813
Net carrying amount of the investment in ElecLink at 23 August 2016 (4,059)
Profit on revaluation of shares already held by the Group 49,872

e The goodwill of €120 million generated by the full acquisition of ElecLink which corresponds to the excess of the fair value of
the cost of the business combination (equivalent to the fair value of the shares already held and the acquisition cost of the Star
Capital shares) and the fair value of the net assets acquired, was recognised under intangible assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016 (see note F.1 below).

€000

Tangible and intangible assets 16,064
Total non-current assets 16,064
Cash and cash equivalents 203
Other current assets 4,921

Total current assets 5,124
Total assets 21,188
Provisions and other liabilities (29,472)
Net asset/(liability) at 23 August 2016 (8,284)
€000

Cost of acquiring of 51% of ElecLink Limited’s shares 65,858
Fair value of the 49% of shares already held by the Group 45,813

Total fair value of the cost of business combination 111,671

Net asset/(liability) at 23 August 2016 (8,284)
Goodwill 119,955

The Group expects to allocate goodwill between ElecLink’s separately identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities and
goodwill during the 2017 financial year.
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ElecLink has been fully consolidated by the Group since it took complete control on 23 August 2016. The Group’s share of
ElecLink’s result between 1 January and 23 August 2016 (loss of €0.8 million) is included in the consolidated income statement
under “Share of result of equity-accounted companies”.

ii. Assets held for sale and discontinued operations
The net result per discontinued activity is as below:

31 December 31 December
€000 2016 2015

Maritime segment (see a) below) 17,127 (7,478)
GB Railfreight Limited (see b) below) 46,907 11,271
Net result from discontinued activities 64,034 3,793
Earnings per share from discontinued activities (€):
Basic 0.12 0.01
Diluted 0.12 0.01

a) Maritime segment MyFerryLink

Since the second half of 2015, the Group has applied IFRS 5 “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” to
its maritime segment.

Income statement for the maritime segment

31 December 31 December
€000 2016 2015

Revenue - 52,398
Operating costs (5,333) (57,467)
Operating margin (EBITDA) (5,333) (5,069)
Depreciation = (3,621)
Trading loss (5,333) (8,690)
Other operating income/(charges) 38,267 (1,481)
Operating profit/(loss) 32,934 (10,171)
Other financial (charges)/income (17) 110
Pre-tax profit/(loss) 32,917 (10,061)
Deferred tax (15,790) -
Income tax expense - 2,583
Net profit/(loss) 17,127 (7,478)

An income net of tax of €24 million was accounted for in 2016 in respect of the ferries’ finance lease contracts (see note A.2 above)

as follows:

e at the effective start date of the contracts (in February for the Rodin and Berlioz and in May for the Nord-Pas-de-Calais) a net
income of €40 million, after taking into account €13 million for the cost of putting the ferries back into operation, was accounted
for under “Other net operating income” being the difference between the net book value of the ferries, which at
31 December 2015 had been classed as “Assets held for sale”, and the net value of the investment recognised in respect of the
finance leases for these ferries; and

e a net deferred tax charge on this income of €16 million.

Operating costs include write-downs on receivables and miscellaneous expenses.

Transactions between the MyFerryLink segment and other Group entities have been eliminated in accordance with IFRS 5. These
transactions relate mainly to management charges, interest charges on inter-company loans and taxation.

Depreciation on the non-current assets categorised at “Assets held for sale” was stopped on the date of application of IFRS 5, in
September 2015 for the Berlioz and the Rodin and in December 2015 for the Nord-Pas-de-Calais.
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Cash flow statement for the maritime segment

31 December 31 December
€000 2016 2015

Net cash flow from operating activities (17,516) 3,300
Net cash flow from investing activities - (1,168)
Net cash flow from financing activities 10,357 -
(Decrease)/increase in cash in year (7,159) 2,132

Net cash flow from operating activities in 2016 arose mainly from the cost of the refit of the ferries before the start of their finance
leases. Net cash flow from financing activities consists mainly of the cash received in respect of the finance leases for the ferries
(see notes A.2 above and G.3ii below).

Statement of financial position for the maritime segment

At 31 December 2015, the maritime segment’s three ferries were classed as “Assets held for sale”. At the start of their finance
leases during the first half of 2016, their disposal was accounted for under “Other net operating income” in discontinued activities
and the contracts were then recorded under “Other financial assets” on the statement of financial position (see note G.3ii below).

b) GB Railfreight Limited

On 15 November 2016, the Group announced the finalisation of the sale of its subsidiary GB Railfreight Limited
(see note A.4 above). The most recent financial statements of the company available at 31 October 2016 were used as the basis for
accounting for the exit from the scope of consolidation. The Group considers the impact of operations between 31 October and
15 November 2016 as non-material. At 31 December 2016, the Group presents the company’s results for both 2016 and 2015 in
the income statement under “Net result from discontinued operations”.

Income statement for the discontinued activity of GB Railfreight Limited

31 October 31 December
€000 2016 2015

Revenue 128,814 184,314
Operating expenses (69,901) (104,252)
Employee benefits expense (42,950) (58,133)
Operating margin (EBITDA) 15,963 21,929
Depreciation (6,638) (7,481)
Trading profit 9,325 14,448
Other operating income/(charges) 39,336 (1,741)
Operating profit (EBIT) 48,661 12,707
Net finance costs (1,650) (1,571)
Other financial (charges)/income (104) 135
Pre-tax result 46,907 11,271
Current income tax for the period in the UK at 20% (1,469) (2,254)
Current income tax for the period in France at 34.43% (13,622) -
Tax consolidation and utilisation of tax loss carryforwards 15,091 2,254
Net tax - -
Net result 46,907 11,271

In the United Kingdom, GB Railfreight Limited’s current income tax expense for the year benefits from group tax relief provided by
The Channel Tunnel Group Limited. In France, the profit on the sale realised by Europorte SAS is included in the overall result of
GET SE'’s tax consolidation group.
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The net profit on the sale of €39 million, which is recognised in the Group’s discontinued activities in 2016, is calculated as follows:

€000

Sale price 135,095
Net carrying value of the assets sold (69,907)
Recycling of items previously treated in the statement of comprehensive income (16,581)
Costs and potential adjustments related to the transaction (9,198)
Net profit 39,409

As part of the sale, the purchaser submitted a claim for a price adjustment on 29 December 2016. At the date on which these
accounts were finalised, this claim was still being discussed between Eurotunnel and EQT Infrastructure Il

Transactions between GB Railfreight Limited and the other entities of the Group have been eliminated in accordance with IFRS 5.
These are essentially services, financial charges on intercompany loans and tax.

GB Railfreight Limited’s statement of financial position

31 October 31 December
€000 2016 2015

Goodwill 15,737 19,308
Intangible assets 5,056 6,958
Tangible assets 93,504 98,306
Accounts receivable and inventories 26,478 30,647
Other current assets 3,081 3,356
Cash and cash equivalents 5,168 13,503
Total assets 149,024 172,078
Financial liabilities 43,889 41,231
Retirement liability 12,216 13,000
Other liabilities 23,012 44,370
Total liabilities excluding equity 79,117 98,601
Net carrying value of assets sold 69,907 73,477

Cash flow statement

31 October 31 December
€000 2016 2015

Net cash flow from operating activities 15,780 24,404
Net cash flow from investing activities (21,734) (36,205)
Proceeds from sale of GB Railfreight Limited 129,660 -
Net cash flow from financing activities 14,091 916
Increase/(decrease) in cash in period 137,797 (10,885)

D. Operating data

D.1 Segment information

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Segment information is presented by business segment, in accordance with the Group’s internal reporting and organisation.

The Group is organised around the following three activities, which corresponded to the internal information reviewed and used by

the main operational decision makers (the Executive Committee):

e the “Concession for the cross-Channel Fixed Link” segment which includes the Group’s corporate services,

e the “Europorte” segment, the main activity of which is that of rail freight operator, and

e the “ElecLink” segment, whose activity is the construction and operation of a 1,000 MW electricity interconnector running
through the Channel Tunnel.
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i. Information by segment

Total of
Fixed Intersegment continuing Discontinued
€’000 Link Europorte ElecLink eliminations operations operations®** Total
At 31 December 2016
Revenue 907,602 115,811 - 67 1,023,480 - 1,023,480
EBITDA 515,246 (157) (1,459) - 513,630 - 513,630
Trading profit/(loss) 371,668 (5,814) (1,464) - 364,390 - 364,390
Pre-tax result of continuing
operations 122,489  (11,161) 42,360 - 153,688 - 153,688
Net consolidated result - - - - 136,239 64,304 200,273
Investment in property, plant
and equipment 65,951 5,931 58,420 (67) 130,235 19,843 150,078
Property, plant and
equipment (intangible and
tangible) 6,088,510 83,178 194,489 - 6,366,177 - 6,366,177
External financial liabilities 3,703,921 14,557 - - 3,718,478 - 3,718,478
At 31 December 2015®)
Revenue 915,016 122,683 - - 1,037,699 - 1,037,699
EBITDA 522,018 (1,841) (40) - 520,137 - 520,137
Trading profit/(loss) 384,526 (7,408) (1,315) - 375,803 - 375,803
Pre-tax result of continuing
operations 114,314 9,512) (877) - 103,925 - 108,925
Net consolidated result - - - - 96,425 3,793 100,218
Investment in property, plant
and equipment 76,615 21,688 - - 98,303 941,685 139,988
Property, plant and
equipment (intangible and
tangible) 6,168,458 82,925 - - 6,251,383 124,577 6,375,960
External financial liabilities 4,017,293 15,499 - - 4,032,792 31,463 4,064,255

*

Figures restated in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight Limited (see note C.3iib) above).
** Of which €25 million was the subject of a sale and lease back operation in 2015.

***  See note C.3ii above.

ii. Geographical information
The Fixed Link’s activities are mainly those of the transport of freight, vehicles and passengers between France and the
United Kingdom.

The Europorte segment’s revenues are generated mainly in France.

D.2 Revenue

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Revenue corresponds to sales of services as part of the ordinary activities of the Group’s various segments.

Fixed Link
Sales are recognised in revenue when the service is delivered.
e For the Truck Shuttle activity, revenue is recognised when the crossing has been made.
e For the Passenger Shuttle activity:
— when the reservation is made, the tickets are recorded in “deferred income”,
— then the revenue is recognised when the crossing has been made.
e For the Railway Network passenger and rail freight tolls, revenue is recognised when the crossing has been made. For the
Railway Network’s annual fixed charges and contributions to its operating and investment costs, revenue is recognised on
the basis of the Fixed Link’s availability.
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Europorte
For the rail transport activity, revenue corresponds to sales of transport services and sales are recognised in revenue when the
service is actually performed.

For the maintenance and management of railway infrastructure, sales are recognised in revenue when the services are actually
performed.

Revenue is analysed as follows:

Shuttle Services 602,687 579,676
Railway Network 290,870 319,165
Other revenues 14,112 16,175
Sub-total Fixed Link 907,669 915,016
Europorte 115,811 122,683
Total 1,023,480 1,037,699

*

Figures restated in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight Limited (see note C.3iib) above).

D.3 Operating costs
Operating costs are analysed as follows:

Operations and maintenance: subcontracting and spares 108,239 103,887
Electricity 31,905 32,553
Cost of sales and commercial costs 19,999 22,386
Regulatory costs, insurance and local taxes 39,276 39,342
General overheads and centralised costs 18,709 18,476
Subtotal Fixed Link 218,128 216,644
Europorte 66,612 72,204
ElecLink 838 40
Total 285,578 288,888

*  Figures restated in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight Limited (see note C.3iib) above).
Statutory auditors’ fees

In application of decree number 2008-1487 dated 30 December 2008, the table below presents the statutory auditors’ fees for the
financial years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016 for all Eurotunnel Group companies.

Auditorship, certification and examination of individual and consolidated

accounts 1,560 1,542
Other fees and services directly linked to the duties of the auditors 217 275
Total 1,777 1,817
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D.4 EBITDA/operating margin

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
EBITDA (or operating margin) as used by the Group is calculated by adding back depreciation charges to the trading profit.

D.5 Other operating income and (expenses)

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Distinction between the trading result and the operating result

The Group considers that it is helpful to include an additional result line in the presentation of its income statement within the
operating result, in order to understand better its financial performance. This line is called the “trading result”, and excludes
income or charges which are non-recurrent in terms of their frequency and nature and for which the amount is significant. The

Group therefore applies recommendation number 2013-03 of the French national authority for accounting standards, the
Autorité des Normes Comptables.

€000 *2015

Revaluation of shares already held in ElecLink 49,872 -
Net profit on disposal or write-off of assets - 2,069
Other 1,132 926
Subtotal other operating income 51,004 2,995
Net loss on disposal or write-off of assets (2,198) -
Other operating expenses (12,359) (4,506)
Subtotal other operating expenses (14,557) (4,506)
Total 36,447 (1,511)

*

Figures restated in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight Limited (see note C.3iib) above).

For detail on the revaluation of shares already held in ElecLink, see note C.3i above.

Other operating expenses relate mainly to provision for risk and legal and advisory costs.

D.6 Trade and other receivables

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

When a trade receivable is considered doubtful, an impairment allowance is made for the full amount due except in a small
number of cases where the Group considers that recovery is possible.

i. Trade receivables

The maximum credit risk exposure on trade receivables by type of customer at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

31 décembre 31 décembre
€000 2016 2015
Road haulage companies 45,027 42,742
National railways 21,330 23,574
Rail freight sector 28,663 62,231
Other 13,624 11,352
Gross value 108,644 139,899
Allowance for impairment (14,308) (10,457)
Net value 94,336 129,442

Trade receivables in the rail freight sector at 31 December 2015 included €30,282,000 relating to GB Railfreight Limited which was
sold during 2016.

\ 58 J 2016 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT - GROUPE EUROTUNNEL SE



RESULTS AND OUTLOOK @

G

The age profile of trade receivables at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Past due

Past due for between Past due

for less than 30 and 90 for more than

€’000 Not yet due 30 days days 90 days

At 31 December 2016 Gross 73,366 16,833 4,393 14,052
Allowance for

impairment - - 302 14,006

At 31 December 2015 Gross 99,906 21,136 7,602 11,255
Allowance for

impairment - - 918 9,539

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

€000 2015

Balance at 1 January 10,457 6,231
Impairment loss recognised 4,475 5,086
Impairment loss recovered (501) (909)
Exchange difference (123) 49
Balance at 31 December 14,308 10,457

ii. Other receivables

31 December 31 December

€000 2016 2015
Suppliers 588 724
State debtors 42,459 32,639
Prepayments 4,794 9,912
Other 14,225 19,607
Total 62,066 62,882

Prepayments at 31 December 2015 included €2,607,000 relating to GB Railfreight Limited which was sold during 2016.

D.7 Trade and other payables

31 December 31 December
€000 2016 2015
Trade cash advances 1,531 1,662
Trade creditors and accruals 95,151 109,043
Taxation, social security and staff 59,637 75,902
Property, plant and equipment creditors and accruals 51,009 36,120
Trade payables (current) 207,328 222,727
Deferred income® 28,582 35,008
Other 9,691 4,583
Other payables (current) 38,273 39,591
Total 245,601 262,318

*  Deferred income is mainly composed of tickets issued but not yet used.

Trade and other payables at 31 December 2015 included €33,322,000 relating to GB Railfreight Limited which was sold during
2016, of which €19,307,000 was in respect of trade creditors and accruals, €10,045,000 in respect of taxation, social security and
staff liabilities and €3,512,000 in respect of deferred income.
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D.8 Provisions

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Provisions are recognised when there exists a legal or constructive obligation stemming from a past event and when the

related future cash flows can be reliably estimated.

Charge to Release of
1 January income unspent Provisions 31 December
€000 2016 statement provisions utilised 2016
Provisions 8,265 3,532 (941) (4,155) 6,701

D.9 Off-balance sheet commitments relating to operating activities
Operating lease contracts
The contractual payments of operating lease contracts which are non-cancellable in the short term are set out in the table below:

31 December 31 December

€000 2016 2015
Less than one year 9,140 34,423
From one to five years 15,625 84,594
More than five years - 41,609
Total 24,765 160,626

These relate to the leasing commitments for rolling stock by the rail freight subsidiaries. At 31 December 2016, the contracts have a
residual duration of up to four years and usually include options to renew at the end of the contractual period. In order to take into
account changes in leasing market conditions, the rental amounts of certain contracts are reviewed every year.

The reduction leasing commitments between 2015 and 2016 is due to the sale of GB Railfreight Limited during 2016 (€125 million
at 31 December 2015).

During the year, leasing charges of €12 million were accounted for relating to operating leases on rolling stock (2015: €37.8 million,
of which €26 million was in respect of GB Railfreight Limited).

E. Personnel expenses and benefits

E.1 Employee numbers and employee benefits expense

42015

Number of persons employed at year end 3,336 3,374
Average number of persons employed 3,348 3,340
Employee benefits expense (in €000)* 224,272 228,674

*  Including employment costs and directors’ remuneration (10 non-executive Directors at 31 December 2016 and at 31 December 2015).

** Figures restated in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight Limited (see note C.3iib) above).

In 2016, employee benefits expense include charges of €7,934,000 (2015: €6,598,000) relating to share options, free shares and
preference shares (see note E.5 below).

E.2 Remuneration of Board Directors and senior executives

The total remuneration from all Group companies to members of the GET SE Board who served during 2016 was €1.75 million
(2015: €1.72 million) before pension contributions. This remuneration, which includes attendance fees payable to members of the
Board for a total of €0.6 million (2015: €0.7 million) and the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration, is entirely
comprised of current employment benefits.
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The remuneration for members of the Group’s Executive Committee (excluding members of the Board) in 2015 and 2016, is given
in the table below. There were 6 members of the Executive Committee (excluding Board Directors) at 31 December 2016 (7 at
31 December 2015), 1 of whom was a member of a UK pension scheme which is described in note E.4 below.

€000 2015

Current employment benefits 1,710 2,218
Post-employment benefits 8 84
Other long term benefits - -
Payments in respect of termination of service - -
Cost of share-based payments 570 1,673

Total 2,288 3,975

E.3 Related parties: remuneration of Board Directors and senior executives
The amount of remuneration paid to members of the Board and senior executives is included in note E.2 above.

E.4 Retirement benefits

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The Group provides for its legal and contractual obligations for retirement indemnities of employees under French contracts,
and for the defined benefit retirement schemes of employees under UK contracts operated by CTG and ESL and, until its sale,
GB Railfreight Limited (GBRf). The liability for defined benefits, recorded in the statement of financial position, is the present
value of the obligation under defined benefit plans at the end of the financial year less the fair value of plan assets. These
liabilities are valued using the actuarial method of projected unit of credit on the basis of actuarial valuations made at the end of
each financial year. The current service cost of the period and the interest on the obligation are accounted for in the “staff
benefit expense” line of the consolidated income statement. Valuation of the liability for defined benefit plans in respect of
(i) actuarial gains and losses, (i) the actual return on plan assets and (jii) changes in the effect of the asset ceiling benefits are
recognised in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income.

i.  Retirement liabilities
The Group has provided for the following retirement liabilities:

31 December 31 December

€000 2016 2015
UK: ESL 89,172 75,938
UK: GBRf - 13,000
France 10,715 9,363
Total 99,887 98,301

a) UK employee defined benefit obligations

Since the sale of GB Railfreight Limited in November 2016, GET SE operates two pension schemes in the UK: The Channel Tunnel
Group Pension Fund and The Channel Tunnel Group Senior Executives Pension Fund providing defined benefits for ESL staff
based on final pensionable pay. The characteristics of these schemes are similar and the assets of each are held in separate
trustee-administered funds.

The valuation at the end of the financial year has been prepared by an independent qualified actuary to take account of the
requirements of the amended IAS 19 in order to assess the liabilities and assets of the schemes as at the end of the reporting
period.
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The fair value of the schemes’ assets, which are not intended to be realised in the short term and may be subject to significant
change, and the present value of the schemes’ liabilities, which are derived from cash flow projections over long periods and thus
inherently uncertain, were:

€000 ESL GBRf
31 December 2016 2015 2016 2015

Analysis of plan assets:
Return seeking investments:

Equities 185,134 177,079 - 54,594

Other 25,384 23,883 — -
Liability matching investments: =

Gilts 25,978 51,335 - -

Bonds 54,271 31,438 - 6,724

Other 262 (59) - 369
Fair value of plan assets 291,029 283,676 - 61,687
Present value of funded obligations 379,915 358,876 - 83,353
Present value of net obligations 88,886 75,200 - 21,666
Portion of deficit / surplus attributed to members - - - (8,666)
Effect of asset ceiling 286 738 — -
Recognised liability for retirement obligations
(see below) 89,172 75,938 - 13,000

Assumptions

The main assumptions that have been used in the actuarial calculations are as follows:

ESL GBRf
2016 2015 2016 2015
Discount rate 2.9% 3.8% - 3.8%
Future salary increases N/A N/A - 3.4%
Inflation rate 3.5% 3.4% — 3.4%
Future pension increases 3.4% 3.3% = 2.4%

Sensitivity to changes in the main assumptions
Reasonably possible changes to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions at the end of the reporting period, all things being equal,
would have affected the defined benefit liability by the amounts shown below.

€000 ESL

31 December 2016 Increase Decrease
Discount rate: +/-1% (76,152) 102,198
Inflation: +/-1% 62,487 (62,720)
Mortality: +/-1 an 15,417 (15,301)

Expected cash outflows and risks associated with pension liabilities

The investment strategy for managing the assets of the pension schemes is defined by the trustees of the pension fund. The
maturities of the contributions and the level of funding of schemes are negotiated between the Group and the trustees on the basis
of actuarial valuations carried out every three years. Contributions are intended both to recover the deficit related to rights acquired
in the past and to cover the service costs in future years.

The Group estimates that contributions to be paid into the defined benefit schemes in the 2017 financial year will be €4.7 million, of
which €2.2 million will be in respect of current service costs for the period and €2.3 million will be in respect of the recovery of the
deficit in the Channel Tunnel Group Pension Fund. The weighted average duration of the ESL plan is 22 years.
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ESL
€000 2015
Opening liability at 1 January 358,876 316,970
Current service costs 4,211 5,361
Interest on obligation 12,074 12,456
Contributions received from employees 1,614 1,968
Benefits paid and transfers (5,130) (5,662)
Actuarial gain/(loss) and curtailment 62,476 8,577
Exchange rate adjustment (54,206) 19,206
Closing liability at 31 December 379,915 358,876
Movements in the fair value of plan assets
ESL
€000 2015
Fair value of plan assets at 1 January 283,676 256,482
Contributions received from employer 4,835 5,672
Contributions received from employees 1,614 1,968
Benefits paid and transfers (5,130) (5,662)
Expected return on plan assets 9,647 10,200
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets 38,854 (586)
Exchange rate adjustment (42,467) 15,602
Fair value of plan assets at 31 December 291,029 283,676
Movements in the net liability for retirement obligations recognised in the balance sheet
ESL
€000 2015
Opening net liability at 1 January 75,938 61,781
Company contributions paid (4,835) (5,672)
Recognised in the income statement 6,667 7,671
Recognised in other comprehensive income 23,232 8,470
Exchange rate adjustment (11,830) 3,688
Closing net liability at 31 December 89,172 75,938
Expense recognised in the income statement
ESL
€000 2015
Current service costs 4,211 5,361
Interest on obligation and administration costs 2,456 2,310
Total 6,667 7,671
Profit/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive income
ESL
€000 2015
Actuarial profit/(loss) on assets 38,854 (586)
Actuarial profit/(loss) on retirement obligation (62,476) (8,577)
Effect of asset ceiling 390 693
Total (23,232) (8,470)
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b) UK defined contribution scheme
On 1 October 2006, Eurotunnel put in place a defined contribution pension scheme (the Eurotunnel Defined Contribution Pension

Scheme) which is open to all new ESL employees. The charge to the income statement in 2016 relating to this scheme was
€792,000 (2015: €775,000).

c) French employee defined benefit scheme
In France, employees receive a lump sum payment on retirement in accordance with contractual commitments. These liabilities

cover both the Fixed Link and Europorte companies.

€000 2015

Provision for retirement liabilities at 1 January 9,363 8,996
Current service cost 666 610

Interest on obligation 174 251
Total charge to the income statement in “employee benefits expense” 840 861
Actuarial losses and (gains) 623 (440)
Indemnities paid (111) (54)
Provision for retirement liabilities at 31 December 10,715 9,363

Assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions at the end of the reporting period (expressed as weighted averages) are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

Discount rate 1.31% 1.89%
Future salary increases 1.60% 1.60%
1.50% 1.50%

Inflation rate

E.5 Share-based payments

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Share-based payments
Share options are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2. The options are valued at their fair value at the date on which they

are granted (see next paragraph) and any variations in value occurring after the grant date are not taken into account. The value
is charged to employee benefits expense on a straight line basis between the date of the grant and the maturity date
(the vesting period), with an equal and opposite entry directly to equity.

Measurement of fair value
The fair value of stock option plans is measured by applying the binomial Black & Scholes model and the Monte Carlo

approach. The basis of calculation includes the share price on the grant date, the exercise price of the options, expected
volatility of the underlying shares, expected period before exercise, expected dividends and share yield, and the expected
turnover of beneficiaries. Performance conditions which are not related to the market are not included in the fair value

measurement.

i. Share options

Share option plan (treated as an equity instrument)

On 26 May 2010, the general meeting of shareholders authorised the Board to grant, in one or several allocations, options over
shares in the company to executives and senior staff of GET SE and its subsidiaries, during a period the duration of which is fixed
at 38 months from 26 May 2010. The total number of options may not give the right to more than 3,900,000 shares of a nominal
value of €0.40 each. The Board has allocated 3,900,000 shares held under the share buyback programme to these options. Under
this scheme, the Board have approved three grants of share options: on 16 July 2010, 21 July 2011 and 20 July 2012.
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The characteristics and conditions attached to the attribution of the share options are as follows:

Date of grant /
main staff concerned

Number of

RESULTS AND OUTLOOK

options Conditions for acquiring rights

Vesting
period

Options granted to key
executives and senior staff on
16 July 2010

1,164,000 Staff must remain as employees of the Group until the

exercise of options.

Performance conditions: 50% of options are subject to
conditions based on the financial performance of the Group
(distribution of a dividend, consolidated EBITDA in 2010 and
2011 above a predetermined level). The performance

conditions were met.

Market performance condition: 50% of options are
conditional on the GET SE share price performing better than
the SBF120 index. The performance conditions were met.

4 years

Options granted to key
executives and senior staff on
21 July 2011

1,430,000 Staff must remain as employees of the Group until the

exercise of options.

Performance conditions: 50% of options are subject to
conditions based on the financial performance of the Group
(distribution of a dividend, consolidated EBITDA in 2011 and
2012 above a predetermined level). The performance

conditions were met.

Market performance condition: 50% of options are

conditional on the GET SE share price performing better than
the SBF120 index. The market conditions were not met.

4 years

Options granted to key
executives and senior staff on
20 July 2012

1,405,000 Staff must remain as employees of the Group until the

exercise of options.

Performance conditions: 50% of options are subject to
conditions based on the financial performance of the Group
(distribution of a dividend, consolidated EBITDA in 2012 and
2013 above a predetermined level). The performance

conditions were met.

Market performance condition: 50% of options are

conditional on the GET SE share price performing better than
the SBF120 index. The market condition for 2012 was not

met. The market condition for 2013 was met.

4 years

Information on the share option plans
The number and the average weighted exercise price of the share options are as follows:

2016
Average

weighted
exercise price
(in euros)

In issue at 1 January
Renounced during the year
Exercised during the year

6.66
6.59
6.56

2015

Average
weighted
Number of exercise price

options (in euros)

Number of
options

1,741,700 6.72
(21,000) 6.33
(79,450) 6.97

2,164,250
(9,750)
(412,800)

In issue at 31 December

6.67

1,641,250 6.66

1,741,700

Exercisable at 31 December

6.67

1,641,250 7.12

729,200

Of the 1,641,250 options in issue at 31 December 2016:
e 237,000 are exercisable, subject to staff remaining as employees of the Group, at a price of €6.42 until July 2020,
e 446,500 are exercisable, subject to staff remaining as employees of the Group, at a price of €7.52 until July 2021, and
e 957,750 are exercisable, subject to staff remaining as employees of the Group, at a price of €6.33 until July 2022.

®
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Assumptions used for the fair value measurement on the grant date

The fair value of the rights granted to staff as part of the share option plan on the grant date was calculated by applying the
binomial Black & Scholes model and the Monte Carlo approach. The assumptions used to measure the fair value of the share
option plan on the grant date were as follows:

Fair value of options and assumptions 2012 plan 2011 plan 2010 plan
Fair value of options on grant date (€) 2.18 2.69 2.02
Share price on grant date (€) 6.28 7.629 6.046
Exercise price of an option (€) 6.33 7.52 6.42
Expected volatility 39% 36% 40%
Expected life of options 7 years 7 years 7 years
Number of beneficiaries 57 56 57
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 1.53% 3.0% 2.4%

ii. Free share plans

a) Free share plans with no performance conditions

Following the approval by the general meeting of shareholders on 27 April 2016 of the plan to issue existing free shares, GET SE’s
Board of Directors decided on 27 April 2016 to grant a total of 302,325 GET SE ordinary shares (75 shares per employee) to all
employees of GET SE and its related companies with the exception of executive and corporate officers of GET SE. The definitive
acquisition of these shares by the employees is subject to their remaining in employment with the Group and they cannot be sold
for a minimum period of three years.

On 27 April 2016, 351,850 free shares issued in 2012 were acquired by employees and on 28 April 2016, 217,100 free shares
issued in 2014 were acquired by employees.

Number of shares 2015

In issue at 1 January 1,264,750 930,420
Granted during the year 302,325 583,500
Renounced during the year (43,325) (41,770)
Acquired during the year (569,200) (207,400)
In issue at 31 December 954,550 1,264,750

The assumptions used to measure the fair value of the free shares were as follows:

Fair value of free shares and

assumptions 2016 grant 2015 grant 2014 grant 2012 grant 2011 grant
Fair value of free shares on grant date (€) 10.45 13.16 9.28 5.89 6.62
Share price on grant date (€) 11.17 14.085 9.68 6.26 7.232
Number of beneficiaries 4,031 3,890 3,691 3,556 3,302
Risk-free interest rate (based on

government bonds) 0.0% 0.015% 0.33% 1.05% 2.25%

b) Free share plan subject to performance conditions

On 27 April 2016, the general meeting of shareholders authorised the Board of Directors to grant free shares to executives and
senior staff of the company and its subsidiaries, subject to performance conditions, after a period of three years. The total number
of shares may not give entitlement to more than 1,200,000 ordinary shares with a nominal of €0.40 each. Under this authorisation,
the Board of Directors approved on 20 October 2016, the allocation of 1,200,000 shares.
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Characteristics and conditions of the free share plan subject to performance conditions

Number of

ordinary
Date of grant / shares Vesting
main staff concerned granted Conditions for acquiring rights period
Ordinary shares granted to key 1,200,000 Staff must remain as employees of the Group. 3 years

executives and senior staff on

. o .
50 October 2016 Internal performance condition (50% of the attributable

volume), is based on the Group’s long-term economic
performance measured by reference to the average rate of
achievement of the EBITDA targets announced to the market
for the years 2017 and 2018.

External performance condition (TSR, 40% of the attributable
volume), is based on the stock market performance of the
GET SE share compared to the performance of the DJI index
(dividends included) over a three-year period.

CSR performance condition (10% of attributable volume), is
based on the performance of the 2018 composite CSR index.

Information on the free share plan subject to performance conditions

Number of preference shares 2015

In issue at 1 January - -
Granted during the period 1,179,750 -
Renounced during the period = -
Exercised during the period - -
Expired during the period - -

In issue at 31 December 1,179,750 -

Exercisable at 31 December - _

Assumptions used for the fair value measurement on the grant date
The fair value on grant date of the rights granted to staff as part of the plan (the 1,200,000 ordinary shares) was calculated by using
the Monte Carlo valuation model. The assumptions used to measure the fair value of the plan on grant date were as follows:

Fair value of shares and assumptions 2016 plan

Fair value on grant date (€) 5.13
Share price on grant date (€) 8.23
Number of beneficiaries 60
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 0.0%

iii. Preference shares convertible into ordinary shares (treated as equity instruments)

On 29 April 2014, the general meeting of shareholders authorised the Board of Directors to grant to executives and senior staff of
GET SE and its subsidiaries preference shares (class B shares) with a nominal value of €0.01 each with no voting rights which are
convertible into GET SE ordinary shares subject to performance conditions at the end of a four-year period. The total number of
preference shares may not give the right to more than 1,500,000 ordinary shares of a nominal value of €0.40 each. Under this
scheme, the Board approved on 29 April 2014 the grant of 300 preference shares, each convertible at the end of the four-year
period into a maximum of 5,000 ordinary shares.

On 29 April 2015, the general meeting of shareholders authorised the Board of Directors to grant to executives and senior staff of
GET SE and its subsidiaries preference shares (class C shares) with a nominal value of €0.01 each with no voting rights which are
convertible into GET SE ordinary shares subject to performance conditions at the end of a four-year period. The total number of
preference shares may not give the right to more than 1,000,000 ordinary shares of a nominal value of €0.40 each. Under this
scheme, the Board approved on 29 April 2015 the grant of 2,000 preference shares, each convertible at the end of the four-year
period into a maximum of 500 ordinary shares.
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Characteristics and conditions of the preference share plans

Number of
Date of grant / preference Vesting
main staff concerned shares Conditions for acquiring rights period
Preference shares granted to 300 Staff must remain as employees of the Group. 4 years
keyzzxzcu_tll\éeos‘] an senior staff Market performance condition: calculated on a tapering scale
an h pri corresponding to the percentage achievement of a maximum
(B shares) target of an average price of €11.50.
Preference shares granted to 2,000 Staff must remain as employees of the Group. 4 years
keyzzxzcu.tll\;%i gnd senior staff Financial performance condition: 70% based on the Group’s
O(.'? h pri long-term economic performance: achievement of
(C shares) consolidated EBITDA targets announced to the market for
2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018.
Market performance condition: 20% based on the
performance of the GET SE share price compared to the
DJI index (including dividends) over a four-year period.
CSR performance condition: 10% based on the performance
of the composite CSR index over a four-year period.
Information on the preference share plans
C shares B shares
Number of preference shares 2016 2015 2016 2015
In issue at 1 January 1,995 - 300 300
Granted during the period - 2,000 - -
Renounced during the period (211) (5) (22) -
Acquired during the period - - (166) -
Expired during the period - - - -
In issue at 31 December 1,784 1,995 112 300

Exercisable at 31 December

Assumptions used for the fair value measurement on the grant date
The fair value on grant date of the rights granted to staff as part of the plan (the 1,500,000 ordinary shares on conversion of the B
preference shares and the 1,000,000 ordinary shares on conversion of the C preference shares) was calculated by using the Monte
Carlo valuation model. The assumptions used to measure the fair value of the plans on grant date were as follows:

Fair value of shares and assumptions C shares B shares
Fair value on grant date (€) 5.33 2.68
Share price on grant date (€) 14.085 9.68
Number of beneficiaries 63 36
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 0.011% 0.5831%
iv. Charges to income statement

December December
€000 2016 2015™
Stock options 341 1,207
Free shares 6,066 3,386
Preference shares convertible into ordinary shares 1,527 2,005
Total 7,934 6,598

*

Figures restated in application of IFRS 5 following the

sale of GB Railfreight Limited (see note C.3iib) above).
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F. Intangible and tangible property, plant and equipment
F.1 Goodwill
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Gooduwill represents the excess of the acquisition cost over the fair value of the acquired portion of identifiable assets, liabilities

and contingent liabilities. It is measured in the functional currency of the acquired entity and is recognised in the statement of
financial position.

When the share of the fair value of the acquired assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of acquisition, a
negative goodwill is recognised immediately in the income statement.

€’000 Note 2015

At 1 January 19,308 18,193
Exchange difference (8,572) 1,115
Change in scope of consolidation: sale of GB Railfreight Limited C.3ii.b) (15,736) -
Change in scope of consolidation: full acquisition of ElecLink Limited C.3i 119,955 -
At 31 December 119,955 19,308

F.2 Intangible property, plant and equipment

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The fair value of intangible assets acquired following a business combination is measured using the present value of forecast
future cash flows after taxation generated by the assets concerned. The method of depreciation of these intangible assets is
determined according to the nature of the assets concerned.

Intangible assets, representing the estimation of the fair value of the main commercial contracts held by GB Railfreight Limited on
the date of its acquisition by the Group, 28 May 2010, were depreciated on a straight line basis over the estimated remaining
duration of the contracts used in the valuation.

€000 2015

Cost

At 1 January 15,584 14,685
Exchange difference (2,882) 899
Change in scope of consolidation: sale of GB Railfreight Limited (12,702) -
At 31 December - 15,584
Depreciation

At 1 January 8,626 5,348
Exchange difference (1,595) 301
Change in scope of consolidation: sale of GB Railfreight Limited (7,646) -
Annual charge 615 1,250
Additional charge - 1,727
At 31 December - 8,626
Net book value

At 1 January 6,958 9,337
At 31 December - 6,958
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F.3 Tangible property, plant and equipment

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Iltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Property,
plant and equipment is depreciated on a systematic basis in order to write down the costs of assets over their expected useful
lives as follows:

Fixed Link Europorte

Tunnels Concession®
Land, construction, fixtures and fittings Length of contract / 20 years
Terminals and related land:

Freehold land not depreciated

Concession land Concession®

Landscaping 5 to 57 years

Terminals 5 years to life of Concession®
Fixed equipment and machinery:

Fixed equipment 5 years to life of Concession®

Fixtures and fittings 5 to 57 years

Buildings 5 to 30 years

Machinery and other equipment 5 to 30 years

Industrial equipment 3 to 10 years
Rolling stock 5 to 35 years

Rolling stock 5 to 60 years

Parts 5 to 40 years
Office equipment: 3 to 10 years

Office equipment 3 to 10 years

IT equipment 3 to 10 years

Software 3 to 10 years

*

The Concession expires in 2086.
The expected useful lives of the assets are kept under review and revised when necessary, according to experience.

Concession property, plant and equipment whose useful life is greater than the duration of the Concession, is depreciated over
the life of the Concession on a straight line basis. Depreciation on assets whose useful life is less than the duration of the
Concession (“renewable assets”) is calculated on a straight line basis.

As all property, plant and equipment will be written down to £nil at the end of the Concession, depreciation of the final renewal
cost of renewable assets will be based on the residual duration of the Concession.

Costs directly attributable to the ElecLink project are capitalised and presented as “assets in course of construction” in the
statement of financial position. They will be amortised from the date they are put into operation.

Subsidies on capital expenditure received during the year have been allocated to the asset to which they relate.
Measurement of fair value

The fair value of tangible property, plant and equipment acquired following a business combination is measured by taking the
higher of the market value or the value in use.
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i Concession property, plant and equipment
In France, all immovable property, plant and equipment within the Concession area is the property of the French State and will
revert to it on the expiry of the Concession period (2086). In the UK, the Government has required CTG to transfer to it the title to
freehold land and property acquired for the purpose of construction and operation of the project and in exchange has granted
leases for the duration of the Concession. On the expiry of the Concession, the interest of the Concessionaires in all movable
property and intellectual property rights necessary for the operation of the Concession will become, without payment, the joint

property of the two States.
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Fixed

Assets in Terminals equipment

course of and related and Rolling Office
€’000 construction  Tunnels land machinery stock equipment Total
Cost:
At 1 January 2016 106,815 6,549,501 2,082,535 3,255,801 2,024,912 113,766 14,133,330
Additions 49,436 - 1,159 11,931 1,683 1,351 65,560
Transfers (56,221) - 1,974 46,671 3,857 3,719 -
Disposals - - (27,479) (2,775) (4,499) (3,558) (38,311)
At 31 December 2016 100,030 6,549,501 2,058,189 3,311,628 2,025,953 115,278 14,160,579
Depreciation:
At 1 January 2016 - 3,237,657 1,138,304 2,124,346 1,364,817 101,591 7,966,715
Charged in the year - 46,811 17,583 36,417 37,763 4,805 143,379
Disposals - - (25,815) (2,430) (4,386) (3,428) (36,059)
At 31 December 2016 - 3,284,468 1,130,072 2,158,333 1,398,194 102,968 ¥8,074,035
Net book value:
At 1 January 2016 106,815 3,311,844 944,231 1,131,455 660,095 12,175 6,166,615
At 31 December 2016 100,030 3,265,033 928,117 1,153,295 627,759 12,310 6,086,544
Cost:
At 1 January 2015 69,597 6,549,501 2,071,925 3,258,580 2,018,928 107,649 14,076,180
Additions 49,676 - 8,119 10,196 5,498 2,643 76,132
Transfers (12,458) - 3,273 5,040 654 3,491 -
Disposals - - (782) (18,015) (168) (17) (18,982)
At 31 December 2015 106,815 6,549,501 2,082,535 3,255,801 2,024,912 113,766 14,133,330
Depreciation:
At 1 January 2015 - 3,190,846 1,121,785 2,108,691 1,328,003 97,356 7,846,681
Charged in the year - 46,811 16,979 33,654 36,967 4,251 138,662
Disposals - - (460) (17,999) (153) (16) (18,628)
At 31 December 2015 - 3,237,657 1,138,304 2,124,346 1,364,817 101,591 7,966,715
Net book value:
At 1 January 2015 69,597 3,358,655 950,140 1,149,889 690,925 10,293 6,229,499
At 31 December 2015 106,815 3,311,844 944,231 1,131,455 660,095 12,175 6,166,615

*

Including €3.002 billion of exceptional depreciation on tangible fixed assets.
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ii. Other property, plant and equipment

Land,

Assets in construction,

course of fixtures and Industrial Rolling Office
€000 construction fittings equipment stock Ferries equipment Total
Cost:
At 1 January 2016 36,785 5,260 3,469 182,009 - 7,657 235,180
Exchange differences 3,212) (751) (347)  (14,032) - (31) (18,373)
Additions 65,908 321 662 16,828 - 799 84,518
Transfers (12,446) - 545 11,576 - 325 -
Change in scope of consolidation
(GB Railfreight and ElecLink) (9,640) (3,581) (1,746)  (92,758) - (123) (107,848)
Disposals - - - (234) - (2,629) (2,863)
At 31 December 2016 77,395 1,249 2,583 103,389 - 5,998 190,614
Depreciation:
At 1 January 2016 - 3,131 2,008 41,562 - 5,400 52,101
Exchange differences - (558) (221) (3,536) - (23)  (4,338)
Charged in year - 269 482 9,838 - 913 11,502
Change in scope of consolidation
(GB Railfreight and ElecLink) - (2,294) (1,073)  (22,062) - (63) (25,492)
Disposals - - - (213) - (2,624) (2,837)
At 31 December 2016 - 548 1,196 25,589 - 3,603 30,936
Net book value:
At 1 January 2016 36,785 2,129 1,461 140,447 - 2,257 183,079
At 31 December 2016 77,395 701 1,387 77,800 - 2,395 159,678
Cost:
At 1 January 2015 20,293 4,467 2,571 161,304 78,087 7,100 273,822
Exchange differences 687 281 101 4,015 - 12 5,096
Additions 32,643 517 873 27,469 1,080 1,274 63,856
Transfers (16,705) 12 5 16,483 12 193 -
Re-categorisation as assets held
for sale (131) - (68) (B)  (79,179) (38) (79,421)
Disposals 2 (17) (13) (27,257) - (884) (28,173)
At 31 December 2015 36,785 5,260 3,469 182,009 - 7,657 235,180
Depreciation:
At 1 January 2015 - 2,350 1,462 32,975 11,046 5,022 52,855
Exchange differences - 196 72 1,122 - 8 1,398
Charged in year - 588 504 9,985 3,169 1,166 15,412
Re-categorisation as assets held
for sale - - (18) - (14,215) (11) (14,244)
Disposals - (®)] (12) (2,520) - (785)  (3,320)
At 31 December 2015 - 3,131 2,008 41,562 - 5,400 52,101
Net book value:
At 1 January 2015 20,293 2,117 1,109 128,329 67,041 2,078 220,967
At 31 December 2015 36,785 2,129 1,461 140,447 - 2,257 183,079

The net value of property, plant and equipment under finance leases was €nil at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015:
€8,860,000 relating to GB Railfreight Limited).
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F.4 Impairment of property, plant and equipment

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
In accordance with IAS 36, the carrying amounts of assets and groups of assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.

In the Eurotunnel Group each activity segment represents a cash-generating unit (CGU), although, in certain circumstances,
the CGU may be made up of a single operating legal entity.

If any indication of impairment exists, an impairment test is carried out: the net book value of the asset is compared to its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of their market value and their value in use. The market
value is determined by reference to studies carried out by independent experts.

The value in use of CGUs is calculated by discounting operating cash flows after taxation and capital expenditure incurred to
replace assets as forecast in each CGU'’s business plan and validated by the Group’s management as part of its operational
management. The period covered by the business plan is three years. For Concession assets, cash flows are extrapolated on
the basis of an assumption of growth over the residual duration of the Concession. For non-Concession assets, the
extrapolation is complemented by a terminal value which is calculated on the basis of infinite free cash flows that continue to
grow at a moderate rate limited to that of inflation. The discount rate retained is the WACC calculated per CGU at each year
end. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Goodwill is subject to an annual impairment test. The recoverable value is calculated for the CGU to which the goodwill
belongs. For the ElecLink CGU, the recoverable amount is calculated by discounting the estimated cash flows from investment
and operating activities after financing and before taxes as set out in the last business plan prepared by the management. The
discount rate used is the target rate of return on investment established by the Group for the ElecLink project.

i. Goodwill

At 31 December 2016, the Group performed a test of value in use of the ElecLink CGU. This test, carried out in accordance with the
rules and methods described above and applying a discount rate before tax of 14.4% and a financing rate of 3.75% per year,
confirms that the value in use of the goodwill attached to the ElecLink CGU is greater than its carrying amount at
31 December 2016.

The Group also carried out a sensitivity analysis on reasonably possible changes to key assumptions (discount rate, financing rate,
cost and time of construction and capacity selling price). This analysis did not reveal any likely scenario which could lead to an
impairment of goodwill.

In carrying out these valuation tests, the Group used the best estimates available to it at the balance sheet date. However, in view
of the still recent nature of the ElecLink project and the current context, in particular linked to the result of the British referendum of
23 June 2016, the assumptions on which these estimates are based are by their nature still uncertain and the actual results could
be different from these estimates.

ii. Concession property, plant and equipment
At 31 December 2016, Eurotunnel did not identify any indication of impairment of its tangible Concession assets, but nevertheless
carried out a valuation in order to ensure that the recoverable value of the assets remained higher than their net accounting value.

The valuation carried out at 31 December 2016 confirmed that the recoverable value of assets remained higher than their net
accounting value on the basis of a discount rate of 6.11% (31 December 2015: 6.53%) and on the basis of revenue growth of
approximately 2% for the period after the three year plan.

The Group also carried out a sensitivity analysis on reasonably possible changes to key assumptions (discount rate and revenue
growth rate) of plus or minus 1% as well as changes in the exchange rate between sterling and euros of plus or minus €0.10. This
analysis did not reveal a likely scenario which could lead to an impairment of Concession assets.

iii. Other property, plant and equipment

At 31 December 2016, Eurotunnel did not identify any indication of impairment of its Europorte assets, but nevertheless carried out
a valuation in order to ensure that their recoverable value remained higher than their net accounting value. The market value of
Europorte’s assets, estimated using studies by independent experts, was found to be at least equal to the net accounting value at
31 December 2016.
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G. Financing and financial instruments

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Financial instruments

Financial assets
In accordance with IAS 39, the Group’s financial assets have been classified in one of the following four categories:

i.  Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

These are financial assets held by the Group for the purpose of generating a short-term profit, or assets designated to this
category at inception. These assets are measured at their fair value with changes in the carrying amount being taken to the
income statement.

These financial instruments include short-term treasury investments which are classified as current assets in cash equivalents.

ii. Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not listed on an active market and that
are not held for trading purposes and are not available for sale.

These assets are initially measured at their fair value and subsequently at their amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. For short-term receivables that do not have a contractual rate of interest, the fair value is assimilated to the original
invoiced amount except where the effective interest rate has a significant impact.

These assets are subject to impairment tests if there is an indication of impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised
whenever the carrying amount exceeds the estimated recoverable amount.

Receivables arising on shares and trade receivables are included in this category. They are shown as financial assets and as
trade receivables.

iii. Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are financial assets, other than loans and receivables, with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has not designated any financial asset to this category.

iv. Available-for-sale financial assets

All financial assets that are not classified in another category are classified as available-for-sale. They are measured at their fair
value. Unrealised gains and losses are recognised in equity until the asset’s sale or derecognition. However when there is
objective evidence that an available-for-sale asset may be impaired, the cumulative net loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Impairments on equity securities cannot be reversed in subsequent accounting periods. The impairment criteria defined by the
Group for securities and shares (securities with variable returns) correspond to a prolonged or significant loss. For debt
instruments, the impairment is only charged to the income statement when impairment is indicated that is related to a
counterparty risk.

Fair value, for listed securities, equates to the market price. For unlisted securities, the fair value is determined by reference to
recent transactions or by using valuation techniques incorporating reliable and observable market data. However, when no
reliable estimate of the fair value of a security can be made, it is measured at historical cost. These assets are subject to
impairment tests to establish their recoverability.

This category includes shares in non-consolidated subsidiaries and other financial assets.

The classification defines the accounting treatment of these instruments. The classification is designated by the Group at the
date of initial recognition depending on the purpose for which the assets were acquired. The purchase and sale of financial
assets are accounted for on the transaction date, being the date on which the Group has contracted for the purchase or sale of
the asset.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities include, in accordance with IAS 39:

i.  Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less transaction costs, and subsequently at amortised cost according to the
effective interest rate method.
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For financial liabilities that are at a fixed interest rate, interest costs are recognised at a constant interest rate until maturity of
the debt using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts all of the
contractual cash flows due on the debt until its maturity. These cash flows are calculated on the basis of the estimated cash
flows due on each instrument constituting the debt. The calculation takes into account the transaction related costs and all
other premiums and discounts.

For financial liabilities that are at a variable interest rate, cash flows are periodically re-estimated to reflect changes in market
interest rates, thereby changing the effective interest rate.

For financial liabilities that are at a fixed interest rate indexed to inflation, cash flows are periodically re-estimated to take
account of actual fluctuations in the inflation rate, thereby changing the effective interest rate.

A substantial change in the terms of all or part of an existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The terms are substantially different if the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, differs by at least 10% of the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial liability. If a modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or unamortised fees are
recognised in the income statement on the extinguishment. If the modification is not accounted for as an extinguishment of
debt, all costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are amortised over the remaining term of the
modified liability.

ii.  Interest rate hedging instruments
All the derivative instruments are designed to hedge exposure to interest rate risk. They are measured at market value and are
used as cash flow hedges.

Cash flow hedges: the derivative instruments designed to hedge the floating rate element of the debt are accounted for as
cash flow hedges. The portion of the gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value that is deemed to be an effective
hedge is taken directly to equity until the underlying transaction is recognised in the Group’s financial statements. The portion
deemed ineffective is accounted for in the income statement for the period. The gains and losses included in equity are
recycled to the income statement in the period when the hedged item affects the income statement. The interest rate hedging
instruments described in note G.5 on financial liabilities, meet the criteria set out in IAS 39 and are therefore accounted for as
cash flow hedges.

Net gains or net losses on each category of financial instrument

Interest income and charges recognised in profit or loss include:

e |Interest on the financial assets and liabilities accounted for at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The
calculation of the effective interest rate includes all commissions and margins payable or receivable between the
contracting parties which are an integral part of the effective interest rate, and all transaction costs and all other premiums
and discounts. The transaction costs are the marginal costs directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a
financial asset or liability.

e Changes in the fair value of derivatives categorised as hedges (for the ineffective portion).

G.1 Net finance costs

€000 2015

Finance income 2,048 2,604
Total finance income 2,048 2,604
Interest on loans before hedging (165,019) (185,781)
Adjustments relating to hedging instruments (67,113) (67,638)
Effective rate adjustment (6,806) (1,360)
Sub-total (238,938) (254,779)
Inflation indexation of the nominal (24,989) (9,266)
Total finance costs after hedging (263,927) (264,045)
Total net finance costs after hedging (261,879) (261,441)
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The inflation indexation of the nominal reflects the effect of the levels of UK and French inflation rates in the year on the calculation
of the nominal amount of tranche A of the Term Loan as described in note G.5 below.

Information relating to financial liabilities and hedging instruments is presented in note G.5 below.

®

G.2 Other financial income and (charges)

€000

4 2015

Unrealised exchange gains® 52,421 18,475
Other exchange gains 5,534 3,759
Interest received on floating rate notes 6,347 6,950
Other 134 136
Other financial income 64,436 29,320
Unrealised exchange losses®™ (40,641) (16,783)
Other exchange losses (8,272) (2,639)
Fees relating to financial operations - (17,500)
Other (81) (©)]
Other financial charges (48,944) (36,931)
Total 15,492 (7,611)
Of which net unrealised exchange gains/(losses) 11,780 1,692

*

Mainly arising from the re-evaluation of intra-group debtors and creditors.

*k

Figures restated in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight Limited (see note C.3ii.b) above).

Fees relating to financial operations were in respect of consent fees paid as part of the operation to simplify the structure of the

Group’s debt completed at the end of 2015 as described in note G.5i.a) below).

G.3 Other financial assets

31 December

31 December
2016

€000 2015
Floating rate notes 150,987 161,279
Other 7,374 5,752
Total non-current 158,361 167,031
Accrued interest on floating rate notes 184 192
Finance lease contracts 106,852 -
Total current 107,036 192

i. Floating rate notes

The Group holds notes issued by Channel Link Enterprises Finance (CLEF), the structure that securitised the Group’s debt in 2007.
These purchases, carried out by way of private transactions for €150 million, related to floating rate notes with a nominal value of
€167 million, representing an average discount of approximately 11%. These notes correspond to the securitisation of tranche C of
the Group’s debt and have the same characteristics in terms of maturity and interest.

The accounting value of the floating rate notes is made up as follows:

€000 Notes in £ Notes in € Total
Nominal value 70,760 94,650 165,410
Discount (net of acquisition costs) (6,037) (8,386) (14,423)
Accounting value 64,723 86,264 150,987
Maturity 20/06/2046 20/06/2041

—20/06/2050 —20/06/2050

Interest rate Libor +3.25%

Euribor +3.25%

ii. Finance lease contracts

The assets under finance leases relate to contacts for the lease of the ferries Berlioz, Rodin and Nord-Pas-de-Calais concluded by
the Euro-TransManche maritime subsidiaries during the first half of 2016. As these contracts transfer virtually all the risks and
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rewards incidental to ownership of these assets to the lessee, they are presented on the statement of financial position as at
31 December 2016 in “Other current financial assets” in accordance with IAS 17.

The amount of the financial asset at 31 December 2016 corresponds to the net investment in the finance lease contracts, being the
value of the minimum payments to be received under the lease agreements. These minimum payments include rent payable by the
lessees until the expected date of exercise by the Eurotunnel Group of its option to sell the ferries (June 2017, being the date of
expiry of the prohibition to sell them imposed at the time of their purchase in 2012), as well as the sale proceeds due on that date.
Due to the lease conditions provided for in these contracts, their implicit interest rate is 0%.

The lease contracts began in February 2016 for the Berlioz and Rodin and in May 2016 for the Nord-Pas-de-Calais.
Given the expected date of disposal of the ferries, receivables under the lease contracts are all considered to have a maturity of

less than one year.

G.4 Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 31 December
€000 2016 2015

Investments in € 29,950 103,009
Investments in £ 143,570 256,266
Subtotal: cash equivalents 173,520 359,275
Cash at bank and in hand 173,117 46,637
Total 346,637 405,912

Cash equivalents represents short-term investments in certificates of deposit, deposit accounts and money market funds
(see note G.7v.b) below). At 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016, none of these investments were unavailable for more than
three months.

G.5 Financial liabilities
The movements in financial liabilities during the year were as follows:

31 December 31 December Interest, Change in

2015 2015 Receipt/ ind ion consolidation 31 December
€000 published ®recalculated Reclassification (repayment) and fees scope 2016
Term Loan (note a
below) 3,973,025 3,668,308 (25,342) - 30,671 - 3,673,637
Other loans (note b
below) 35,722 32,700 (1,145) 15,184 (151) (33,012) 13,576
Finance leases
(note c below) 8,594 7,368 (98) 1,752 (24) (8,998) -
Total non-current
financial liabilities 4,017,341 3,708,376 (26,585) 16,936 30,496 (42,010) 3,687,213
Term Loan 38,864 35,888 25,342 (35,888) - - 25,342
Other loans 1,924 1,784 1,145 (1,758) - (190) 981
Finance leases 722 619 98 612) - (105) -
Accrued interest on
Term Loan 5,404 4,998 - - (56) - 4,942
Total current
financial liabilities 46,914 43,289 26,585 (38,258) (56) (295) 31,265
Total 4,064,255 3,751,665 - (21,322) 30,440 (42,305) 3,718,478

*

The financial liabilities at 31 December 2015 (calculated at the year-end exchange rate of £1 = €1.362) have been recalculated at the exchange
rate at 31 December 2016 (£1 = € 1.168) in order to facilitate comparison.

i. Description of the loans

a) Term Loan

During its financial restructuring in June 2007, Eurotunnel put in place long-term loans of £1.5 billion and €2 billion (collectively
known as the “Term Loan”). This loan comprised tranches index-linked to inflation (tranche A), fixed rate tranches (tranche B)
and variable rate tranches (tranche C) with maturities varying between 2041 and 2050. In August 2007, all the tranches of the loan
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were purchased by a debt securitisation vehicle created for the purpose by the lenders, Channel Link Entreprises Finance (CLEF).
Certain of the notes issued by CLEF as part of this securitisation were guaranteed by three monolines who, in return for their
guarantee, received a commission over the life of the loans.

On 24 December 2015, the Group concluded an operation that led to the withdrawal of two of the three monolines from their roles
as guarantors of the CLEF notes. This operation led to changes to the structure of the Term Loan and to certain of its terms, such as
the division of the index-linked tranches in to six new tranches and the reduction in the contractual interest rate for some tranches
by 0.6%. The fees incurred for this operation totalled €123 million of which €25 million was paid in 2015, €17 million was paid in
2016, €7 million will be paid in 2017 and €61 million will be paid over the remaining life of the tranche A loans.

As the new conditions of the index-linked tranches of the Term Loan do not constitute a substantial change in their terms, this
operation was accounted for as a renegotiation of the existing loan and the associated costs have been added to the carrying
amount of the loan and will be spread over its remaining life.

The Term Loan put in place on 28 June 2007, as modified on 24 December 2015, comprises the following elements at
31 December 2016:

Effective
Amount in Amount in interest Contractual
IN MILLIONS Currency currency euros®™* rate interest rate
Tranche A1) GBP 300 350 7.25% 2.89%
Tranche A2 GBP 150 176 7.25% 2.89%
Tranche A3% GBP 300 350 7.34% 3.49%
Tranche A4%) EUR 73 73 5.51% 3.38%
Tranche A5® EUR 147 147 5.60% 3.38%
Tranche A6™ EUR 147 147 6.08% 3.98%
Tranche B1 GBP 337 394 6.77% 6.63%
Tranche B2 EUR 571 571 6.33% 6.18%
Tranche C1 GBP 350 409 (%) 4.85% LIBOR +3.39%
Tranche C2 EUR 953 953 (%) 4.53% EURIBOR +3.39%

Total Term Loan 3,570 5.99%

*  Linked to inflation (see notes i) to x) below).
** Nominal amount excluding impact of effective interest rate and inflation indexation and at the exchange rate at 31 December 2016 (£1=€1.168).

*** Excluding hedging. The effective interest rate with hedging of tranches C1 and C2 is 8.80% and 8.43% respectively.

The transaction costs used for the determination of the effective interest rate at 31 December 2016 correspond to the issue costs
for the Term Loan in 2007 remaining to be amortised amounted to €52 million and fees for the renegotiation of the A tranches
completed in December 2015 remaining to be amortised amounted to €111 million. These costs relate mainly to financing, legal
and bank fees.

i) Tranche A1

The tranche A1 loan amounts to £300 million, and bears interest at a fixed rate until its maturity, of 2.89%, and is linked to the UK All
ltems Retail Price Index inflation index as published by the United Kingdom’s Office for National Statistics. Repayment of this
tranche will begin on 20 June 2018 to end on 20 June 2042. Repayments of capital and payments of interest will fall every six
months on 20 June and 20 December of each year.

ii) Tranche A2

The tranche A2 loan amounts to £150 million, and bears interest at a fixed rate until its maturity, of 2.89%, and is linked to the UK All
Iltems Retail Price Index inflation index as published by the United Kingdom’s Office for National Statistics. Repayment of this
tranche will begin on 20 June 2018 to end on 20 June 2042. Repayments of capital and payments of interest will fall every six
months on 20 June and 20 December of each year.

iii) Tranche A3

The tranche A3 loan amounts to £300 million, and bears interest at a fixed rate until its maturity, of 3.49%, and is linked to the UK All
Iltems Retail Price Index inflation index as published by the United Kingdom’s Office for National Statistics. Repayment of this
tranche will begin on 20 June 2018 to end on 20 June 2042. Repayments of capital and payments of interest will fall every six
months on 20 June and 20 December of each year.
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iv) Tranche A4

The tranche A4 loan amounts to €73 million, and bears interest at a fixed rate until its maturity, of 3.38%, and is linked to the indice
des prix a la consommation hors tabac inflation index as published by I'Institut National de la Statistique et des Etudes
Economiques. Repayment of this tranche will begin on 20 June 2018 to end on 20 June 2041. Repayments of capital and
payments of interest will fall every six months on 20 June and 20 December of each year.

v) Tranche A5

The tranche A5 loan amounts to €147 million, and bears interest at a fixed rate until its maturity, of 3.38%, and is linked to the indice
des prix a la consommation hors tabac inflation index as published by I'Institut National de la Statistique et des Etudes
Economiques. Repayment of this tranche will begin on 20 June 2018 to end on 20 June 2041. Repayments of capital and
payments of interest will fall every six months on 20 June and 20 December of each year.

vi) Tranche A6

The tranche A6 loan amounts to €147 million, and bears interest at a fixed rate until its maturity, of 3.98%, and is linked to the indice
des prix a la consommation hors tabac inflation index as published by I'Institut National de la Statistique et des Etudes
Economiques. Repayment of this tranche will begin on 20 June 2018 to end on 20 June 2041. Repayments of capital and
payments of interest will fall every six months on 20 June and 20 December of each year.

vii) Tranche B1

The tranche B1 loan amounts to £400 million, and bears interest at a fixed rate of 6.63% until its maturity. Repayment of this
tranche began on 20 June 2013 and will end on 20 June 2046. Repayments of capital and payments of interest fall every six
months on 20 June and 20 December of each year. The nominal amount remaining at 31 December 2016 totalled £337 million.

viij) Tranche B2

The tranche B2 loan amounts to €645 million, and bears interest at a fixed rate of 6.18% until its maturity. Repayment of this
tranche began on 20 June 2013 and will end on 20 June 2041. Repayments of capital and payments of interest fall every six
months on 20 June and 20 December of each year. The nominal amount remaining at 31 December 2016 totalled €571 million.

ix) Tranche C1

The tranche C1 loan amounts to £350 million, and bears interest at a floating rate (LIBOR) plus a margin of 3.39% which is entirely
hedged by a fixed/floating interest rate swap for which Eurotunnel pays a fixed rate of 5.26% and receives a floating rate (LIBOR).
Repayment of this tranche will begin on 20 June 2046 to end on 20 June 2050. Repayments of capital and payments of interest will
fall every six months on 20 June and 20 December of each year.

x) Tranche C2

The tranche C2 loan amounts to €953 million, and bears interest at a floating rate (EURIBOR) plus a margin of 3.39% which is
entirely hedged by a fixed/floating interest rate swap for which Eurotunnel pays a fixed rate of 4.90% and receives a floating rate
(EURIBOR). Repayment of this tranche will begin on 20 June 2041 to end on 20 June 2050. Repayments of capital and payments of
interest will fall every six months on 20 June and 20 December of each year.

Undertakings and prohibitions under the Term Loan

The Term Loan provides for a number of undertakings and prohibitions which are customary for this type of financing. These

relate to:

e the creation of new or the continuation of existing guarantees on the assets of the Eurotunnel Group;

e to the transfer of the assets of the Eurotunnel Group and to the acquisition by the Eurotunnel Group of new assets;

e to the granting of loans, guarantees or warranties to third parties, and

e the amendment of contracts which were conditions precedent for utilisation of the loans under the Term Loan, including
inter alia the Railway Usage Contract.

In relation to the Term Loan, the Eurotunnel Group must respect two financial ratios, only the first of which (see section on “Event of
default and acceleration” below), if not met, would constitute an event of default. The second ratio is the lower of the ratio of
operating cash flow to the total debt service on the Term Loan including the additional margin applied to tranche C of the debt
since 2012 and the ratio of operating cash flow to the total debt service on the Term Loan taking into account the hypothetical
amortisation on the Term Loan and on the basis of a rolling 12 month period prior to the date of the test. GET SE is required to
ensure that at each six-monthly test date since 31 December 2007, this ratio is not less than 1.25. For the purposes of this test, the
ratio is calculated. Failure to meet this ratio on a six-monthly testing date would lead to restrictions on the use of the Group’s
excess available cash flow on the date of the next interest payment on the Term Loan until such time as the test is met once again.
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These restrictions include, in particular, the ability of the Eurotunnel Group to pay dividends and to finance new activities. Failure to
meet this test on three consecutive six monthly testing dates would trigger a prepayment event, under which the Group’s excess
available cash flow would have to be used towards prepayment of the Term Loan until the testing date on which the ratio is met
once again.

Voluntary prepayment of the Term Loan
Clause 7.2 of the credit agreements provide for voluntary prepayments to be made on the Term Loan for a minimum amount of
£5 million or €7.5 million, without penalties but subject to the payment of certain market standard prepayment premia.

Guarantees and security relating to the Term Loan

Guarantees:

Under the Intercreditor Deed, the main companies in the Group each jointly and severally guarantee the obligations of FM and CTG
as borrowers of the Term Loan vis-a-vis the lenders, the arrangers and the hedging counterparties of the Term Loan.

Security granted by Eurotunnel Group under French law:

() assignment of trade receivables by way of security under which (A) FM assigns the receivables held by it under the
Concession Agreement and the Railways Usage Contract as well as its the trade receivables held by it against the freight
transporters and coach operators, its insurance receivables and the intercompany receivables held by it against French
companies of the Eurotunnel Group, (B) CTG assigns the same categories of receivables as FM with the exception of trade
receivables owed by the freight transporters and coach operators and (C) other members of the Eurotunnel Group qualifying
as guarantors assign their insurance receivables and intercompany receivables held against French companies of the
Eurotunnel Group;

(i) unregistered mortgages over FM’s main real estate assets that are not the subject of short-or medium-term development
projects;

(i) a registered pledge over FM'’s rolling stock;

(iv) apledge on all bank and investment accounts open in France under the name of any borrower or guarantor of the Term Loan;
(v) a pledge on shares in the Eurotunnel Group members held by the borrowers or guarantors of the Term Loan;

(vi) a pledge on the main Eurotunnel trademarks; and

(vii) a pledge on receivables held by FM under certain pieces of land comprised in the “ZAC 1” and which is the subject of long
term construction leases (baux a construction).

Security granted by Eurotunnel Group under English law:
The main companies in the Group grant security over all of their assets held at the date of execution of the Term Loan as well as
over their future assets and over certain of their contractual rights.

Security over the other assets of the Eurotunnel Group:

All of the shares of member companies of Eurotunnel Group that are not subject to security as described above (with the exception
of Europorte SAS and its subsidiaries) are pledged by way of security for the obligations of the borrowers under the Term Loan and
guarantors under the Intercreditor Deed.

Event of default and acceleration

The Term Loan contains a number of events of default which, in certain instances subject to grace periods, permit the lenders to
declare the Term Loan immediately due and payable, to enforce the security, and/or to demand the implementation of the
substitution mechanism provided for under the terms of the Concession.

The events of default include:

e any non-payment under the Term Loan;

e afailure to comply with any provision of the Term Loan, the Intercreditor Deed or related documents. These provisions impose
restrictions on, among other things, indebtedness, acquisitions, disposals and other transfers, mergers, borrowings, and the
granting of guarantees and new security by the companies of the Eurotunnel Group, and include, in particular:

() afinancial covenant which requires GET SE to ensure that at each six-monthly test date after 31 December 2007, a ratio
of operating cash flow to total debt service on the Term Loan is not less than 1.10, such ratio being calculated by
reference to a rolling 12 month period preceding the testing date; and

2016 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT - GROUPE EUROTUNNEL SE



RESULTS AND OUTLOOK

(i) certain undertakings and representations relating to the tax treatment of the Eurotunnel Group to the extent that a breach
is reasonably likely to have a materially adverse effect on the financial position of FM, CTG or the Eurotunnel Group;
e arepresentation or warranty is made or deemed to have been made by a Borrower or a guarantor under the terms of the Term
Loan, or any related finance document or any other document delivered by or on behalf of a Borrower or an Obligor under the
terms of the finance documents (which contain representations and warranties that are customary for this type of document),
which proves to have been incorrect or misleading at the time at which it was made or deemed to have been made;
e the occurrence of a cross default under any other indebtedness in excess of a specified amount of any of the companies within
Eurotunnel Group (other than Groupe Eurotunnel SE);
e the inability of any borrower or guarantor to pay its debts as they fall due, the insolvency or the opening of any legal
proceedings in relation to any borrower or guarantor under the Term Loan;
e the illegality or invalidity of the Term Loan, any related security or the subordination created under the Intercreditor Deed;
e Eurotunnel becoming permanently unable to carry on the business of operating the Tunnel, the destruction of the Tunnel, or the
cessation of a material part of its business by a borrower or a guarantor;
e a guarantor ceasing to be a wholly-owned subsidiary of Groupe Eurotunnel SE;
e any act or omission of France or the United Kingdom which renders a borrower or guarantor under the Term Loan incapable of
performing its obligations under the Term Loan and associated documents; and
e the occurrence of litigation (or similar proceedings) against any Eurotunnel Group member or its assets, which is reasonably
likely (i) to be adversely determined against the relevant company and (ji) to have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of FM, CTG or Eurotunnel Group.

The Term Loan also includes other events of default which are customary for this type of financing.

The debt service cover ratio and the synthetic service cover ratio for Groupe Eurotunnel SE at 31 December 2016 were 2.06 and
1.84 respectively, and thus the financial covenants for the period were respected.

b) Other loans

“Other loans” in the above table amounting to €14.6 million at 31 December 2016 represent a bank loan drawn by Europorte SAS in
2012 in order to finance the purchase of locomotives by its subsidiaries. This loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 4.37% and is
repayable over a period of seven years.

At 31 December 2015, other loans included bank loans drawn by GB Railfreight Limited amounting to €22.1 million.

c) Finance leases
At 31 December 2015, “Finance leases” in the above table represented finance lease contracts entered into by GB Railfreight
Limited amounting to €9.3 million.

ii. Hedging instruments

The Eurotunnel Group has hedging contracts in place to cover its floating rate loans (tranches C1 and C2) in the form of swaps for
the same duration and for the same value (EURIBOR against a fixed rate of 4.90% and LIBOR against a fixed rate of 5.26%). No
premiums were paid to obtain these contracts. The nominal value of hedging swap is €953 million and £350 million.

These derivatives generated a charge of €67 million in 2016 which was accounted for in the income statement (2015: charge of
€68 million).

In accordance with IAS 39, these derivatives have been measured at their fair value on the balance sheet:

Market value of hedging contracts

*Changes in
€’000 31 December 2016 31 December 2015 market value

Contracts in euros Liability of 903,487 Liability of 811,799 91,688

Contracts in sterling Liability of 405,499 Liability of 358,443 47,056
Liability of Liability of

Total 1,308,986 1,170,242 138,744

*  Recorded directly in equity.
In accordance with IFRS 13, the Group takes into account credit risk (DVA) and counterparty risk (CVA) in the valuation of financial

instruments. In practice, this recommendation particularly affects the valuation of derivatives to the extent that they are measured
at fair value including a probabilistic weighting of estimated cash flows.
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In the case of a default by the Eurotunnel Group, counterparties to the hedging contracts have priority over all holders of debt and
securities and guarantees granted to holders of debt under the Concession Contract and the Intercreditor Deed. In this respect,
the Group believes that the risk of loss for the counterparties in the event of default is insignificant and therefore has not recorded a
discount to the fair value of hedging instruments under the DVA.

The table in note G.7ii below gives the periods in which the cash flows associated with the derivatives are expected to occur, and
the periods in which the amounts initially recognised in equity are expected to impact the income statement.

G.6 Matrix of class of financial instrument and recognition categories and fair value

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Measurement of fair value

Trade and other receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is measured on the basis of their expected recoverable value. This fair value is
measured for the purpose of the information in the notes to the accounts as part of the receivables acquired following the
business combinations.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term investments with maturities less than or equal to three months from
date of acquisition which do not carry a significant risk of variation in value and which are used by the Group to manage short
term commitments. Money market funds are evaluated at their market value at the end of the reporting period.

Financial instruments

Financial assets accounted for at their fair value are classified in accordance with the following levels of fair value:

e Level 1: fair value using quoted prices (unadjusted) observed in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2: fair value using data (“inputs”) other than quoted prices included in level 1, which are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (in the form of price) or indirectly (determined from the price).

e |evel 3: fair value from valuation techniques which rely completely or in part on non-observable data such as prices on an
inactive market or the valuation on a multiples basis for non-quoted securities.

Derivative instruments
The fair value of hedging instruments is measured by discounting contractual future cash flows and integrating the credit risk
(CVA) or the counterparty risk (DVA).
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The table below presents the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities and their level in the
hierarchy of fair value. It does not include information about the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not
measured at fair value to the extent that the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

At 31 December 2016

€000 Carrying amount Fair value

Assets at

fair value Available-

through for-sale Liabilities at

profit and financial Loans and Hedging amortised
Class of financial instrument Note loss assets receivables instruments cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets measured at fair value
Other non-current financial assets G.3 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Financial assets not measured at fair value n/a
Other current and non-current financial
assets G.3 265,397 265,397 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Trade receivables D.6 94,336 94,336 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Cash and cash equivalents G.4 346,637 346,637 346,637 346,637
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Interest rate derivatives G.5ii 1,308,986 1,308,986 1,308,986 1,308,986
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Financial liabilities G.5 3,718,478 3,718,478 5,097,000 5,097,000
Other financial liabilities G.5 67,942 67,942 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Trade payables D.7 207,328 207,328 n/a n/a n/a n/a

Fair value of the Term Loan

On 28 June 2007, Eurotunnel took out the Term Loan for £1.5 billion and €2 billion with a spread of 139 basis points. On
28 June 2012, the margin on the C1 and C2 tranches of the Term Loan changed to 339 basis points. This debt is accounted for at
its amortised cost.

The Term Loan is not quoted or traded on an active financial market and it is particularly difficult to identify any observable market
equivalents, taking into account the specificities and characteristics of the Eurotunnel Group’s debt and in particular its 30 to
40-year maturity profile (see note G.7ii below).

The Group’s estimate of the fair value of the long-term loan is based on a level three fair value.

The modelling techniques used involve the discounting of future cash flows determined at the calculation date. The discounting
parameters are derived from a zero-coupon curve and an estimated credit spread based on a sample of comparable BBB rated
companies (the Eurotunnel Group’s rating has remained unchanged since 2007) with an adjustment to take into account the
particularly long maturity of the Group’s debt.

On this basis, the Eurotunnel Group estimates the fair value of the Term Loan to be €5,097 million compared to a carrying value of
€3,704 million at 31 December 2016. As an indication, if the rate used (including the credit spread) was 100 basis points higher, the
fair value of the Term Loan would be approximately €632 million lower. With regard to the methodology used, the Eurotunnel Group
does not prejudge the conditions that may be obtained on the market. Furthermore, the characteristics of the current funding
agreements govern any prepayment or refinancing operations on the Term Loan, and the resulting gains that may arise for
the Group.

Fair value of the hedging instruments
The characteristics of the Group’s hedging instruments and the estimate of their fair value as at 31 December 2016 are set out in
note G.5ii above.

The fair value of the hedging instruments is calculated on the basis of mathematical models integrating the discounting of the
contractual flows linked to these instruments based on observable market data, in particular forward rate curves. The discount
rates are determined from zero-coupon curves.

The fair value of the hedging instruments is estimated based on a level two fair value.

The estimated fair value of the hedging instruments as determined by the Group is corroborated against the valuations provided by
the financial counterparties.

The sensitivity analyses of the fair value of these instruments to changes in interest rates are set out in note G.7iii below.
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At 31 December 2015

€000 Carrying amount Fair value

Assets at

fair value Available-

through for-sale Loans Liabilities at B3 =N

profit and financial and Hedging amortised BRET71 1
Class of financial instrument Note loss assets receivables instruments cost V1Y Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at fair value
Other non-current financial assets G.3 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Financial assets not measured at fair value n/a
Other current and non-current financial
assets G.3 167,223 167,223 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Trade receivables D.6 129,442 129,442 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Cash and cash equivalents G.4 405,912 405,912 405,912 405,912
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Interest rate derivatives G.5ii 1,170,242 1,170,242 1,170,242 1,170,242
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Financial liabilities G.5 4,064,255 4,064,255 5,189,000 5,189,000
Other financial liabilities G.5 96,530 96,530 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Trade payables D.7 222,727 222,727 n/a n/a n/a n/a

G.7 Financial risks

i. Exchange rate exposure

Groupe Eurotunnel SE prepares its consolidated accounts in euros. Fluctuations in the value of the sterling/euro rates have an
impact on the value in euros of revenues, costs and financial income and costs, as well as on elements of the Group’s reported
assets and liabilities. By way of example and all else being equal and on the basis of accounting information at 31 December 2016,
the table below presents the effect that a change of plus or minus 10% in the exchange rate would have on the main financial
indicators.

€ million 2016 ®2015

Variation in exchange rate Rate Published +10% —-10% Rate Published +10% —-10%
Revenue 1.216 1,023 1,067 980 1.375 1,038 1,084 991
Operating margin (EBITDA) 1.216 514 544 483 1.375 520 553 487
Pre-tax profit from continuing

operations 1.216 154 173 134 1.375 104 125 83
Equity 1.168 1,812 1,603 2,021 1.362 1,663 1,454 1,872

*

Restated in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight Limited as described in note C.3iib) above.

Approximately half of the Eurotunnel Group’s revenues are denominated in sterling, whereas more than half of its operating
expenses and capital expenditure are in euros. The Term Loan is denominated in sterling for a total of £1.437 billion and in euros for
atotal of €1.891 billion at 31 December 2016. All the external financial instruments are denominated either in sterling or in euros. As
a result, no exchange gain or loss can arise on revaluation of the external financial instruments. The residual foreign exchange risk
relates to the revaluation of intra-group balances, the residual value of which at 31 December 2016 is €22 million; a 10% change in
the euro/sterling parity would result in unrealised exchange gains or losses of approximately €2 million.

The Eurotunnel Group has and will continue to make every effort to closely match the currencies in which its revenues and costs
are denominated and will use currency hedging transactions to manage its foreign exchange risk where necessary.
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ii. Liquidity risk

The contractual cash flow reflects the structure of the financial liabilities and confirms that Eurotunnel is able to meet its liquidity
risks. The contractual maturity profile of the financial liabilities (including interest payments and excluding the impact of offset

agreements) is as follows:

At 31 December 2016

RESULTS AND OUTLOOK

Accounting Contractual 12 months 1-5 5-10 10-20 20-30 30-40
IN MILLIONS value cash flow or less years years years years years
NON-DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Fixed Link: guaranteed GBP bank loans:
Tranche A1 to A3 - GBP® 914 (2,450) (31) (235) (345)  (1,009) (830) -
Tranche B1 - GBP 332 877) (31) (94) (116) (230) (406) -
Tranche C1 - GBP®* 345 (881) (14) 61) 87) 177) (225) 317)
Total in GBP 1,591 (4,208) (76) (390) (548) (1,416) (1,461) (317)
Fixed Link: guaranteed EUR bank loans:
Tranche A4 to A6 - EUR® 341 (794) (15) (103) (138) (361) (177) -
Tranche B2 - EUR 565 (1,088) (50) (185) (231) (456) (166) -
Tranche C2 - EUR®" 940 (2,234) (31) (134) (219) (480) (929) (441)
Total in EUR 1,846 (4,116) (96) (422) (588) (1,297) (1,272) (441)
Total Fixed Link bank loans
(expressed in EUR) 3,704 (9,031) (184) (877) (1,228) (2,951) (2,978) (812)
Europorte bank loans (expressed in EUR) 14 (16) 2 (14) - - - -
Total bank loans (expressed in EUR) 3,718 (9,047) (186) (891) (1,228) (2,951) (2,978) (812)
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
GBP interest rate swaps used for hedging 347 (428) (16) (60) (65) (125) (136) (26)
EUR interest rate swaps used for hedging 903 (1,036) (48) (182) (176) (310) (289) 31)
Total swaps (expressed in EUR) 1,309 (1,536) (67) (253) (251) (457) (448) (60)
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Renegotiation fees in GBP 52 (52) 5) (15) (10) (17) (5) -
Renegotiation fees in EUR 7 (7) 1) 4) 1) 1) - -
Total renegotiation fees
(expressed in EUR) 68 (68) (7) (22) 12) (22) (5) -
Net cash flow after hedging
(expressed in EUR) 5,095 (10,651) (260) (1,167) (1,491) (3,430) (3,431) (872)
SUPPLIERS AND OTHER CREDITORS
In GBP 49 (49) (49) - - - - -
In EUR 155 (155) (155) - - - - -

*

*k

Tranches A1 to A6 are indexed with inflation, and are presented in the liquidity table on the basis of the Group’s medium and long term budgetary

assumptions.
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At 31 December 2015

Accounting Contractual 12 months 1-5 5-10 10-20 20-30 30-40
IN MILLIONS value cash flow or less years years years years years
NON-DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Fixed Link: guaranteed GBP bank loans:
Tranche A1 to A3 - GBP® 861 (2,442) (30) (204) (322) (940) (946) -
Tranche B1 - GBP 347 (921) (39) (101) (117) (231) (406) 27)
Tranche C1 - GBP*¥ 345 (999) (18) (82) (102) (202) (191) (404)
Total in GBP 1,553 (4,362) (87) (387) (541) (1,373) (1,543) (431)
Fixed Link: guaranteed EUR bank loans:
Tranche A4 to A6 - EUR® 380 (797) (15) 92) (134) (344) (212) -
Tranche B2 - EUR 583 (1,151) (54) (190) (232) (460) (215) -
Tranche C2 - EUR*" 939 (2,444) (33) (158) (249) (532) (894) (578)
Total in EUR 1,902 (4,392) (102) (440) (615 (1,336) (1,321) (578)
Total Fixed Link bank loans
(expressed in EUR) 4,017 (10,335) (220) (967) (1,351) (3,207) (3,423) (1,167)
Europorte bank loans:
In GBP 23 (30) 2 (11) (15) 2 - -
In EUR 15 (18) 2 (16) - - - -
Total Europorte bank loans
(expressed in EUR) 47 (58) (5) (30) (20) 3) - -
Total bank loans (expressed in EUR) 4,064 (10,392) (225) (997) (1,371) (3,209) (3,423) (1,167)
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
GBP interest rate swaps used for hedging 263 (356) (13) (48) (50) (101) (112) (32)
EUR interest rate swaps used for hedging 812 (944) @47 (165) (150) (266) (274) 42)
Total swaps (expressed in EUR) 1,170 (1,430) (65) (232) (218) (403) (427) (85)
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Renegotiation fees in GBP 60 (60) 8) 19 9) (19) 5) -
Renegotiation fees in EUR 15 (15) 8) ) (1) (1) - -
Total renegotiation fees
(expressed in EUR) 97 (97) (19) (31) (13) (26) (8) -
Net cash flow after hedging
(expressed in EUR) 5,331 (11,919) (3100 (1,259) (1,603) (3,637) (3,857) (1,253)
SUPPLIERS AND OTHER CREDITORS
In GBP 49 (49) - - - - - -
In EUR 155 (155) - - - - - -

*

Tranches AT to A6 are indexed with inflation, and are presented in the liquidity table on the basis of the Group’s medium and long term budgetary
assumptions.

*%

Tranches C1 and C2 are at a variable rate of interest, and are presented in the liquidity table on the basis of forecast long-term interest rates.

The credit agreements allow, on condition that the debt service cover ratio is not less than 1.25, to apply for (i) a renewable credit
line of up to €75 million, and (ji) a structurally subordinated additional credit line of up to £225 million (or equivalent in euros).

iii. Interest rate risk exposure

The risk of an unfavourable movement in rates during the duration of the Term Loan is covered by the fact that tranches B1 and
B2 are at a fixed rate of interest, the A tranches which are indexed on inflation are at a fixed rate of interest, and tranches C1 and
C2 are at a variable rate of interest but are covered by fixed/variable rate hedging contracts. Short-term receivables and debts are
not at risk from interest rate exposure.

The contractual cash flows associated with the swaps are paid simultaneously with the contractual cash flows of the variable rate
loans and the amount deferred in equity is recognised in profit or loss over the period where the interest on the debt affects
the result.

An increase of 1% in rates would lead to a change in the portion accounted for in equity relating to the derivative instruments of
€462 million. A decrease of 1% in rates would lead to a change in the portion accounted for in equity relating to the derivative
instruments of €597 million.

The notes in other financial assets carry a variable rate of interest and a change of +/-1% in rate would lead to a change in financial
income on the income statement of €1.6 million.
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iv. Inflation risk

The inflation risk relates to the interest and the repayments of principal on the indexed tranches (A1 to A6) denominated in pounds
and euros. By way of example, a variation of 1% in the inflation rate would have an impact of €15 million on the amount of the
principal of these tranches.

v. Credit risks
Credit risk represents the risk of financial loss to the Group in the event that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to honour its contractual obligations.

a) Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to customer credit risk arises from its customers in the United Kingdom and Eurozone countries, with the

following exceptions:

e The Group’s main customers, the Railways, accounted for 28% of the Group’s revenue in 2016.

e Passenger Shuttle car customers pay for their tickets in advance, in particular via the internet; consequently, the credit risk in
relation to these customers is very limited.

The Group applies a credit policy which requires that every new customer is subject to a credit check before being able to benefit
from the Group’s standard credit terms. The Group’s credit risk exposure to account customers is managed by means of
continuous monitoring of their financial situation and of their outstanding debt in regard to their credit limits and payment terms.

b) Investments

The Group limits its credit risk exposure by only investing in i) short-term deposits and certificates of deposit with a maximum term
of six months with counterparties with a minimum short-term rating of P-1 from Moody’s or ii) in monetary SICAVs (the French
equivalent of mutual funds) and money market funds with a minimum long-term rating of Aaa from Moody’s or AAA from S&P.

Funds invested by the Group in any one monetary SICAV or money market fund should not exceed £100 million per SICAV or fund
in pounds sterling or €120 million per fund or SICAV in euros. Investments in short term deposits or certificates of deposit should
not exceed £75 million or €100 million with any one bank group.

c) Credit risk exposure
The carrying value of the financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure. The maximum credit risk exposure at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

31 December 31 December
€000 2016 2015

Financial assets 150,987 161,279
Trade receivables 94,336 129,442
Cash and cash equivalents 346,637 405,912
Total 591,960 696,633

Financial assets included the floating rate notes (see note G.3 above).

G.8 Related parties with a significant influence on the Group

During the financial restructuring in 2007, the Eurotunnel Group concluded interest rate hedging contracts with financial
institutions, in the form of swaps (see note G.5 above). Goldman Sachs International was one of the counterparties to these
hedging contracts, and at 31 December 2016 held 2.7% of the contracts, representing a charge of €1.8 million in 2016 and a
liability of €35.3 million at 31 December 2016.

Two of Goldman Sachs’s infrastructure funds (GS Global Infrastructure Partners I, L.P., and GS International Infrastructure Partners
I, L.P, together known as GSIP) hold approximately 15.5% of GET SE’s share capital at 31 December 2016.

G.9 Off-balance sheet commitments relating to financing

GET SE, FM, CTG, Eurotunnel SE, EFL, ESGIE, ESL and EurotunnelPlus Limited each jointly and severally guarantee the
obligations of FM and CTG in relation to the Term Loan. In order to guarantee these obligations, these companies have granted
security as described in note G.5 above.
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H. Share capital and earnings per share

H.1 Share capital

i. Management of capital

The Group’s policy is to maintain a solid capital base in order to retain the confidence of investors, creditors and of the market and

to support the future development of the activity. Capital can include the share capital, share premium and retained earnings. The
Board monitors return on equity and the level of dividends paid to shareholders.

The Group buys its own shares on the market. The timing of these purchases depends on the market price. These transactions are
carried out as part of the share buyback programme of which the liquidity contract is part (see note iii below).

During the year, the Group has not changed its policy on the management of capital.

ii. Share capital

31 December 31 December
€ 2016 2015

550,000,000 fully paid-up ordinary shares each with a nominal value of €0.40 220,000,000.00 220,000,000.00
267 category B fully paid-up preference shares created on 9 May 2016 each

with a nominal value of €0.01 2.67 -
Total 220,000,002.67 220,000,000.00

On 9 May 2016, 267 category B preference shares were issued under the 2014 programme of preference shares convertible into
ordinary shares as described in note E.5iii above.

iii. Treasury shares

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

GET SE shares held by the Group are accounted for at cost as a reduction in equity. Subsequent disposals are taken directly to
equity and no profit or loss is recognised.

The movements in the number of own shares held during the year were as follows:

Share
buyback Liquidity

programme contract Total
At 1 January 2016 10,077,801 770,000 10,847,801
Share buyback programme 6,255,000 6,255,000
Shares transferred to staff (free share scheme) (569,200) (569,200)
Exercise of stock options (79,450) (79,450)
Net purchase/(sale) under liquidity contract (10,000) (10,000)
At 31 December 2016 15,684,151 760,000 16,444,151

Treasury shares held as part of the share buyback programme renewed by the general meeting of shareholders and implemented
by decision of the Board of Directors on 27 April 2016 are allocated, in particular, to cover share option plans and the grant of free
shares, as approved by the general meetings of shareholders in 2010, 2011, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016.

As part of the 2016 share buyback programme, GET SE continued with the liquidity contract entered into on 18 May 2010 with
Oddo Seydler Corporate Finance. Under the terms of this contract and in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the
Association francaise des marchés financiers and approved by the French market authorities (Autorité des marchés financiers) on
1 October 2008, GET SE appointed Oddo Seydler Corporate Finance to intervene on its behalf in the market in order to improve the
liquidity of transactions and the stabilisation of prices of GET SE'’s shares and to avoid price differences not justified by market
trends. At 31 December 2016, the following means were allocated to the balance of the liquidity contract: 760,000 GET SE ordinary
shares and €6,088,574.44 in cash. On the basis of a price of €9.034 per share, this combined amount represented 0.26% of
GET SE'’s capital in issue at 31 December 2016.
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iv. Changes in equity

Dividend

On 27 April 2016, Groupe Eurotunnel SE’s shareholders’ general meeting approved the payment of a dividend relating to the
financial year ended 31 December 2015, of €0.22 per share. This dividend was paid on 26 May 2016 for a total of €118 million
(before 3% tax on dividends amounting to €3.5 million).

H.2 Earnings per share
i.  Number of shares

Weighted average number:

- of issued ordinary shares 550,000,000 550,000,000
- of treasury shares (14,295,058) (9,921,815)
Number of shares used to calculate the result per share (A) 535,704,942 540,078,185
- effect of share options i 531,990 886,921
— effect of free shares ii 1,943,874 1,340,691
— effect of preference shares iii 1,501,796 2,498,611
Potential number of ordinary shares (B) 3,977,660 4,726,223
Number of shares used to calculate the diluted result per share (A+B) 539,682,602 544,804,408

The calculations were made on the following bases:

() on the assumption of the exercise of all the options issued and still in issue at 31 December 2016. The exercise of these
options is conditional on the criteria described in note E.5i above;

(i) on the assumption of the acquisition of all the free shares allocated to staff. 569,200 of the free shares issued to staff in 2012
and 2014 were acquired by them during the period. Details of free shares are given in note E.5ii above; and

(i) on the assumption of the acquisition of all the preference shares allocated to staff and still in issue at 31 December 2016.
Conversion of these preference shares is subject to achieving certain targets and remaining in the Group’s employment as
described in note E.5iii above.

ii. Earnings per share

%2015

Group share: profit/(loss)

Net result (€’000) (C) 200,585 100,451

Basic earnings per share (€) (C/A) 0.37 0.19

Diluted earnings per share (€) (C/(A+B)) 0.37 0.18
Continuing operations: profit/(loss)

Net result (€'000) (D) 136,239 96,425

Basic earnings per share (€) (D/A) 0.25 0.18

Diluted earnings per share (€) (D/(A+B)) 0.25 0.18
Discontinued operations: profit/(loss)

Net result (€'000) (E) 64,034 3,793

Basic earnings per share (€) (E/A) 0.12 0.01

Diluted earnings per share (€) (E/(A+B)) 0.12 0.01

*  Restated in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight Limited as described in note C.3iib) above.
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I. Income tax expense

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Additional tax payable on the distribution of dividends is accounted for when the dividends are recognised as a liability.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes, except as provided by IAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

The tax rates used are those in effect at the end of the reporting period.
Net deferred tax is determined at the level of each tax group.

Deferred tax assets in respect of temporary differences are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future
taxable profits will be available against which the differences can be used, at the level of the tax entity.

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses are recognised according to the likelihood of their recoverability assessed on the
basis of the Group’s budget and medium-term plans. The assumptions in these plans used are the same as those used for
testing the value of assets.

I.1 Effect on the income statement

i. Tax provisions of the Concession Agreement and other provisions

The Concession requires that the Group’s Concessionaires (CTG and FM) share equally the cost price of the project and all
revenues and costs relating to the operation of the Fixed Link between the British and French companies. Operating revenues and
costs are recognised in the income statement of the partnership and are shared equally between the Concessionaires. Revenues
and costs which do not relate to the operation of the Concession are not subject to these sharing arrangements.

Article 15 of the French Finance Act 2013 on the limitation of the deductibility of financial expenses does not apply to the subsidiary

FM as assets acquired under a concession contract are outside its application scope.

ii. Tax accounted for through the income statement

€000 2015

Current tax:

Income tax 954 (11,732)
Tax on dividends (3,545) (2,918)
Total current tax (2,591) (14,650)
Deferred tax (14,858) 7,150
Total (17,449) (7,500)

*

Restated in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight Limited as described in note C.3iib) above.

The current tax charge relates to amounts paid or to be paid in the short term to the tax authorities for the year, according to the
rules in force in the different countries and specific conventions.

In 2016, the current tax income corresponds to a tax refund in respect of previous years.
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iii. Reconciliation between the effective tax rate and the applicable tax rate

Result for the continuing activities before tax 153,688 103,925
Theoretical tax charge 34.43% (52,915) 38.00% (39,491)
Impact of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions 13,780 7,981
Share of ElecLink’s result which is not taxable (152) (263)
Effect of permanent differences 15,722 (10,114)
Profit arising on the revaluation of ElecLink shares which is not

taxable 10,012 -
Effect of change in tax rate (5,820) -
Activation of previously unrecognised fiscal deficits 5,469 37,305
Tax on dividends and other (3,545) (2,918)
Income tax (17,449) (7,500)

*

Restated in application of IFRS 5 following the sale of GB Railfreight Limited as described in note C.3iib) above.

For the French tax group at 31 December 2016, the proof of tax has been prepared for the 2016 financial year on the basis of the
tax rate in force of 34.43%. However, since the main reversals of temporary differences are planned beyond the period of

application, the deferred tax on the French tax group was calculated taking into account the rate applicable from 2019 onwards
of 28.92%.

For the British tax group, in view of its not being fiscally profitable at 31 December 2016, at 31 December 2015 and for the years
2017, 2018 and 2019 on the basis of the Group’s estimates, deferred tax was calculated on the basis of the tax rate of 17%
corresponding to the rate applicable from 15t April 2020.

1.2 Effect on the statement of financial position
i. Deferred tax

2016
At At Impact on:
31 December 31 December change in other At
2015 2015 consolidation income comprehensive 31 December

€000 published recalculated scope statement income 2016
Tax effects of temporary
differences related to:
Property, plant and equipment 267,848 304,724 4,080 (91,284) - 217,520
Deferred taxation of restructuring
profit (469,856) (469,758) - 74,996 - (394,762)
Hedging contracts 51,544 51,545 - 2,272 53,817
Profit on sale of ferries - - - (15,790) - (15,790)
Other (150) (299) - (1,332) 713 (918)
Tax losses 300,111 263,149 (4,080) 2,762 - 261,831
Net tax assets/(liabilities) 149,497 149,361 - (30,648) 2,985 121,698

Concession property, plant and equipment
The impact of taxation on property, plant and equipment corresponds mainly to the conditions relating to the deductibility of the

Fixed Link’s depreciation costs in the French tax group (reintegration of impairment costs) and in the British tax group (profile of tax
deductions in respect of depreciation, including Capital Allowances).

Deferred tax resulting from temporary differences on property, plant and equipment will reverse over the period until the end of the
Concession in line with the profile of the Group’s depreciation charges and taxable results.

Profit arising from restructuring
The financial restructuring in 2007 gave rise to profit in the consolidated accounts of €3,323 million. At 31 December 2016, the
taxation of €1,364 million of this amount remains deferred within the French tax group. The taxation of this residual profit is

dependent upon the repayment of a loan between the Concessionaires (FM and CTG) and Groupe Eurotunnel SE, which in turn is
subordinated to the Term Loan which matures in 2050.
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Deferred tax in respect of tax losses
Deferred tax assets recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses within the French and British tax groups amount to
€262 million at 31 December 2016 (€50 million for the French tax group and €212 million for the British tax group).

The recognition of these assets for each of the tax groups is based on:

e The forecasts of taxable profits derived from the Group’s three-year business plan for its different activities; this plan is based
on the same assumptions as those used in the impairment test of assets (see note F.3 above). On the basis of these forecasts in
respect of taxable profits, the Group has recognised a deferred tax asset in respect of carried forward losses which are
expected to be utilised in the next three years for both the French and British tax groups.

e The forecasts for use of carried forward losses to cover the reversal of temporary differences on the British tax group.

Other temporary differences, notably those relating to deferred tax assets on hedging contracts and retirement liabilities, are
recognised on a three-year horizon.

ii. Unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

31 December 2016

Base Unrecognised
€000 Total Recognised Unrecognised tax
Deductible temporary differences 3,333,397 2,156,320 1,177,077 265,904
Tax losses 5,999,450 1,419,386 4,580,064 1,098,517
Total assets 9,332,847 3,575,706 5,757,141 1,364,420
Temporary differences 3,120,337 3,120,337 - -
Total liabilities 3,120,337 3,120,337 - -
Net total 6,212,510 455,369 5,757,141 1,364,420

Unrecognised temporary differences correspond to a deferred tax asset in respect of interest rate hedging contracts whose
reversal is expected beyond the recoverability horizon.

French carried forward tax losses
In France, the deficits can be carried forward indefinitely but their future use is limited to 50% of the profit for the period beyond the
first million euros.

GET SE is the parent company of the consolidated tax group which it forms with all the Group’s French subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2016, the cumulative tax losses of the tax group which can be carried forward indefinitely amount to 2,853 million

(31 December 2015: €2,878 million), consisting essentially of:

e cumulative tax losses which can be carried forward indefinitely of €885 million generated by the GET SE consolidated tax group
since 1 January 2008 and chargeable to the taxable profits of the members of this group (31 December 2015: €885 million); and

e cumulative tax losses which can be carried forward indefinitely of €1,940 million (31 December 2015: €1,962 million) generated
by the old TNU SA consolidated tax group. These deficits may only be applied to the taxable profits of FM, Société Immobiliere
et Fonciére Eurotunnel SAS and Europorte SAS.

Potential unrecognised tax assets in respect of the carried forward tax losses of the French tax group amount to €775 million (on a
base of €2,681 million).
British carried forward tax losses

In England, the tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31 December 2016, the tax losses carried forward for the British companies amounted to £2,694 million (31 December 2015:
£2,694 million).

Potential unrecognised tax assets in respect of the carried forward tax losses of the British tax group amount to €323 million (on a
base of €1,899 million).

J. Events after the reporting period
Nothing to report.
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2.2.2 GET SE parent company financial statements for the financial year ending
31 December 2016 and the statutory auditors’ report thereon

Contents of the parent company financial statements!'"

Report of the statutory auditors on the annual parent company financial statements for the financial year ending
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Statement of financial position

Income statement

Notes to the financial statements

Important events

Accounting methods and policies
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(1) Groupe Eurotunnel SE’s parent company financial statements are prepared in accordance with French accounting standards.
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REPORT OF THE STATUTORY AUDITORS ON THE ANNUAL PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016

This is a free translation into English of the statutory auditor’s report on the financial statements issued in French and it is provided
solely for the convenience of English-speaking users. The statutory auditor’s report includes information specifically required by
French law in such reports, whether modified or not. This information is presented below the audit opinion on the financial
statements and includes an explanatory paragraph discussing the auditor’s assessments of certain significant accounting and
auditing matters. These assessments were considered for the purpose of issuing an audit opinion on the financial statements taken
as a whole and not to provide separate assurance on individual account balances, transactions, or disclosures.

This report also includes information relating to the specific verification of information given in the management report and in the
documents addressed to shareholders.

This report should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and professional auditing standards
applicable in France.

To the Shareholders,

In compliance with the assignment entrusted to us by your annual general meeting, we hereby report to you, for the year ended
31 December 2016, on:

e the audit of the accompanying financial statements of Groupe Eurtounnel SE;

e the justification of our assessments;

e the specific verifications and information required by law.

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors. Our role is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

1 Opinion on the financial statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France; those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit involves performing procedures, using sampling techniques or other methods of selection, to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as well as the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and liabilities and of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2016 and of the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with French
accounting principles.

2 Justification of our assessments
In accordance with the requirements of article L. 823-9 of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce), we bring to your
attention the following matter.

Value in use of investments and other financial assets

Note B.3 and D of the financial statements relating to the investments in subsidiary undertakings presents the approaches of the
company relating to the value in use of the investments and the other financial assets. We assessed the approaches used by the
company and the appropriateness of the information given in this note to the financial statements.

As mentioned in note B.1 of the financial statements, these estimates are based on assumptions that are inherently uncertain.
Depending on the evolution of these assumptions, actual results may differ from current estimates.

These assessments were made as part of our audit of the financial statements, taken as a whole, and therefore contributed to the

opinion we formed which is expressed in the first part of this report.

3 Specific verifications and information
We have also performed, in accordance with professional standards applicable in France, the specific verifications required by
French law.
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We have no matters to report as to the fair presentation and the consistency with the financial statements of the information given
in the management report of the Board of Directors, and in the documents addressed to shareholders with respect to the financial
position and the financial statements.

Concerning the information given in accordance with the requirements of article L. 225-102-1 of the French Commercial Code
(Code de commerce) relating to remunerations and benefits received by the directors and any other commitments made in their
favour, we have verified its consistency with the financial statements or with the underlying information used to prepare these
financial statements and, where applicable, with the information obtained by your company from companies controlling your
company or controlled by it. Based on this work, we attest the accuracy and fair presentation of this information.

In accordance with French law, we have verified that the required information concerning the purchase of investments and
controlling interests and the identity of the shareholders and holders of the voting rights has been properly disclosed in the
management report.

Statutory auditors, 28 February 2017

Paris La Défense Courbevoie

KPMG Audit Mazars
A division of KPMG S.A.

Fabrice Odent Francisco Sanchez
Partner Partner
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December

31 December 2016 2015
€’000 Impairment Net
ASSETS
Intangible assets C 116,552 - 116,552 116,552
Investments in subsidiary
undertakings D 1,566,389 55,962 1,510,427 1,509,731
Loans E.1 1,966,233 - 1,966,233 2,039,344
Treasury shares F 81,308 - 81,308 33,472
Other 82 - 82 84
Fixed assets 3,730,564 55,962 3,674,602 3,699,183
Advances and deposits 27 - 27 28
Trade receivables and related
accounts 367 367 -
Receivables from Government
and other public bodies 6,568 - 6,568 1,672
Other receivables 49 41 8 19
Group and associates E.3 22,966 - 22,966 25,514
Other financial assets E.A 17,416 - 17,416 22,179
Investments in securities G 75,173 - 75,173 66,443
Cash and cash equivalents G 128,059 - 128,059 3,631
Current assets 250,625 41 250,584 119,486
Prepaid expenses 516 - 516 594
Exchange adjustment asset 793 — 793 21,448
Total assets 3,982,498 56,003 3,926,495 3,840,711
LIABILITIES
Share capital H.1 220,000 220,000
Share premium H.2 1,711,796 1,711,796
Legal reserve H.2 22,422 22,422
Special reserve and other
reserves H.2 598,797 598,797
Retained earnings H.2 326,118 405,817
Result for the year H.2 86,273 38,455
Total equity and
shareholders’ funds 2,965,406 2,997,287
Provision for risk and charges | 16,006 33,171
Financial liabilities 15 85
Group and associates E.2 914,858 707,973
Trade payables 11,854 8,321
Tax and social security
liabilities 4,594 10,802
Other liabilities 224 183
Debts® 931,545 727,364
Exchange adjustment liability 13,538 82,889
Total liabilities 3,926,495 3,840,711

*  More than one year with third parties: none (2015: none).

The notes form an integral part of the annual financial statements.
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Operating revenue

Revenue from sale of services J 18,230 16,752
Cost transfer 11,966 7,998
Total operating revenue 30,196 24,750
Operating expenses

Purchases and external costs L (17,413) (11,905)
Salaries and charges M (4,417) (4,627)
Taxes (695) (572)
Depreciation and provisions (6,989) (8,947)
Other expenses (732) (776)
Total operating expenses (30,246) (26,827)
Operating result (50) (2,077)
Financial income

Income from investments in subsidiary undertakings 40,000 4,232
Interest and similar income (6] 24,524 30,803
Release of provisions P 20,786 17,822
Net income on sales of investments - 15
Exchange gains N 910 2,702
Total financial income 86,220 55,574
Financial charges

Depreciation and provisions P (8,436) (8,402)
Interest and similar charges O (6,443) (7,531)
Net charges on sales of investments (4) -
Exchange losses N (4,703) (482)
Total financial charges (19,586) (16,415)
Financial result 66,634 39,159
Exceptional result Q (1,345) 4,207
Tax R 21,034 (2,834)
Net result for the year 86,273 38,455

The notes form an integral part of the annual financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Groupe Eurotunnel SE is the consolidating entity of the Eurotunnel Group, whose registered office is at 3 rue La Boétie,
75008 Paris, France and whose shares are listed on Euronext Paris and on NYSE Euronext London. The term “Groupe
Eurotunnel SE” or “GET SE” refers to the holding company which is governed by French law. The term “Group” or “the Eurotunnel
Group” refers to Groupe Eurotunnel SE and all its subsidiaries.

The main activities of the Group are the design, financing, construction and operation of the Fixed Link’s infrastructure and
transport system in accordance with the terms of the Concession (which will expire in 2086), as well as the rail freight activity. The
maritime activity was discontinued in 2015.

GET SE provides various services to its subsidiaries such as administrative and financial management, corporate strategy and
shareholder relations. In 2016, GET SE charged its subsidiaries €18.2 million for these services, of which €15.3 million was charged
to the Concessionaires.

A. Important events

A.1 United Kingdom’s referendum of 23 June 2016
In the referendum on 23 June 2016, the United Kingdom voted to leave the European Union.

After the referendum, the Group presented the results of its detailed review of risks to the Audit Committee and the Board of
Directors, and set up a process to closely monitor the regulatory risks, tax and financing risks, foreign exchange risks and
macroeconomic risks relating to the Group’s businesses.

The Group has taken account of this new situation, the exact terms and mechanics of which are yet to be defined, in the
determination of the principal estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements at
31 December 2016 as set out in note B.1 below.

The Group’s business plan incorporating the potential effects of this decision was reviewed by the Board of Directors. The key
economic assumptions have been determined in the light of external studies and are based on market data as at the date of the
statement of financial position. The Board of Directors has reviewed these assumptions and the corresponding sensitivity
analyses. As at 31 December 2016, the Group has not identified any major impact of the United Kingdom’s decision to leave the
European Union that could significantly affect its business or financial situation.

A.2 Development of the Group’s activities
i.  Financing of the ElecLink project
On 23 August 2016, the Eurotunnel Group purchased the 51% share in ElecLink Limited held by Star Capital.

The acquisition and the first construction works were financed by GET SE. At 31 December 2016, the loan from Groupe
Eurotunnel SE to its subsidiary GET Elec Limited amounted to €144 million (see note E.1 below).

ii. Repayment of the Europorte loans
On 15 November 2016, Europorte SAS, subsidiary of GET SE, finalised the sale of its British rail freight subsidiary GB Railfreight
Limited, to EQT Infrastructure II.

Europorte SAS used part of the proceeds of this sale to fully repay its intra-group loan from Groupe Eurotunnel SE
(see note E.1 below).

iii. Interim dividend from France Manche SA

On 20 December 2016, France Manche SA’s board of directors, in accordance with the provisions of Articles L.232-12
and R. 232-17 of the French Commercial Code and by reference to Article L. 227-1 of the Code, decided to proceed with the
distribution to Groupe Eurotunnel SE, of an interim dividend of a total amount of €40 million.

iv. Reconstitution of Euro-Transmanche Holding SAS’s equity
On 24 November 2016, Groupe Eurotunnel SE carried out a capital increase of €9 million for its subsidiary Euro-Transmanche
Holding SAS by partially offsetting an intra-group loan granted to its subsidiary (see note E.1 below).

At 31 December 2016, Groupe Eurotunnel SE accounted for an additional depreciation of €8 million on its investment in
Euro-Transmanche Holding SAS.
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B. Accounting methods and policies

The annual accounts have been prepared in accordance with the laws and regulations in force in France. Transactions recorded in
the accounts are valued in accordance with the historical cost convention and the accounts are prepared on the going
concern basis.

B.1 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the period. The Board periodically reviews its valuations and
estimates based on its experience and various other factors considered relevant for the determination of reasonable and
appropriate estimates of the assets’ and liabilities’ carrying value. Accordingly, the estimates underlying the preparation of the
financial statements as at 31 December 2016 were prepared in the context of the United Kingdom'’s decision to leave the European
Union as described in note A.1 above. Depending on the evolution of these assumptions, actual results may differ from current
estimates.

The use of estimations concerns mainly the valuation of investments in subsidiary undertakings and of associated debts and loans
(see note D below).

B.2 Valuation of intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of goodwill (see note C below). This goodwill has been allocated to the underlying assets in accordance
with ANC 2015-06. This goodwill follows the depreciation rule of the underlying asset and as the underlying asset is not
depreciated, neither is the goodwill. An impairment test is carried out at each closure and an impairment loss is recognised when
the share of the affected asset is less than the recoverable amount of its underlying assets.

B.3 Valuation of investments in subsidiary undertakings

GET SE assesses the value in use of its investments in subsidiary undertakings on the basis of several criteria, such as the net book
value of the asset, the adjusted book value of the asset, the discounted net financing cash flows, or external evaluations. A
depreciation of intra-group loans where applicable or a provision for impairment may be made when the net assets of the
subsidiary undertaking is negative.

B.4 Investments in securities

Investments are stated in the statement of financial position at cost. If the market value is lower than the acquisition cost, a
provision for depreciation is booked for the difference. “Investments in securities” and “Cash and cash equivalents” include any
accrued interest due thereon.

B.5 Treasury shares
GET SE holds its own shares acquired as part of a share buyback programme and a liquidity contract.

Treasury shares which are reserved explicitly for a share option plan are accounted for as investments in securities at their
purchase price.

In the absence of an explicit allocation to staff or to a share capital reduction, the shares purchased as part of the buyback
programme are accounted for at cost in financial fixed assets.

Shares acquired as part of the liquidity contract, the aim of which is to reduce excessive volatility in GET SE’s shares, are
accounted for at cost in investments and the gain or loss on sale of these shares is calculated on a FIFO basis.

At the end of the financial year, these shares are valued on the average share price during the last month. A provision is made if this
valuation is below the book value, except for those shares which are allocated to stock option plans, the free shares and shares
that are to be cancelled.

B.6 Share-based payments

As part of the share option plan, GET SE makes a provision for risk and charges relating to share option grants as soon as it is
probable that there will be an outflow of resources from the business in the future. When treasury shares are granted as part of a
share option plan, a provision is made for the difference between the exercise price proposed to the beneficiaries and the net
accounting value of the treasury shares granted.
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B.7 Tax integration convention

Under the terms of the group tax integration convention, tax charges are recognised in the individual financial statements of
consolidated companies, on a stand-alone basis. Any tax savings or losses realised by the Group are recognised immediately in
the parent company’s income statement for the financial year.

B.8 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when there exists a legal or constructive obligation stemming from a past event and when the future
cash flows can be reliably estimated.

B.9 Conversion of receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies
Receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are accounted for on the basis of the exchange rate on the date of
the transaction, and are then re-valued at the rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period.

Unrealised exchange differences resulting from this revaluation are recorded in the cumulative translation reserve. A provision for
risks and charges is recognised if the conversion shows unrealised losses.

C. Goodwill

The goodwill of €116,552,000 which resulted from the merger of TNU SA into GET SE in 2009 was accounted for as an intangible
asset. It is allocated to the Amended Bond Debt on a non-accounting basis. Since the latter is not depreciated, the technical
goodwill is not amortised. No indication of impairment was identified following the valuation test carried out as at
31 December 2016.

D. Investments in subsidiary undertakings
At 31 December 2016, shares in subsidiary undertakings are analysed as follows:

Gross Gross Net accounting
value at value at value at
31 December 31 December 31 December
€000 2015 Investments 2016 Depreciation 2016
Channel Tunnel Group Limited (CTG) 1,163,879 1,163,879 1,163,879
Cheritons 33 33 33
Europorte SAS 72,674 72,674 72,674
Euro-TransManche Holding SAS (ETMH) 80,000 9,000 89,000 55,962 33,038
Eurotunnel Agent Services Limited (EASL) - - -
Eurotunnel Developments Limited (EDL) - - -
Eurotunnel Finance Limited (EFL) 1 1 1
Eurotunnel Management Services Limited
(EMSL) - - _
Eurotunnel Services GIE (ESGIE) 1 1 1
France Manche SA (FM) 239,450 239,450 239,450
GET Elec Limited - - -
Eurotunnel Project SAS 1 1 1
Société Immobiliére et Fonciére
Eurotunnel (SIFE) 1,350 1,350 1,350
Total 1,557,388 9,001 1,566,389 55,962 1,510,427
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Carrying value of shares

Revenue Equity Percentage of capital held (€000)
Other equity Security and
(excluding the guarantees
Share result for Result for Directly and given by the
In thousands (excluding tax) capital the year) the year Total equity Directly indirectly Gross Net company
CTG £ 380,595 95,857 (64,328) 50,863 82,392 100% 100% 1,163,879 1,163,879 ®
EASL £ - - 1,476 529 2,005 100% 100% - - ®
EDL £ - 7,257 (11,615) - (4,358) 100% 100% - - ®
EFL £ - 1 - - 1 79% 100% 1 1 ®
EMSL £ 203 - 45 18 63 100% 100% - - ®
Cheritons £ - 4 81 - 85 100% 100% 33 33 ®
GET Elec £ - (1,715) (1,588) (3,303) 100% 100% - - ®
Total in £ 380,798 103,119 (76,056) 49,822 76,885 1,163,913 1,163,913
ESGIE € 122,265 2 - - 2 38% 100% 1 1 ®
ETMH € 219 5,106 (4,890) 18,647 18,863 100% 100% 89,000 33,038 ®
Europorte € 7,437 42,318 (7,457) 58,153 93,014 100% 100% 72,674 72,674 ®
FM € 444,527 95,857 54,727 46,130 196,714 100% 100% 239,450 239,450 ®
ET Project € - 1 - - 1 100% 100% 1 1 ®
SIFE € - 525 759 (15) 1,269 100% 100% 1,350 1,350 ®
Total in € 574,448 143,809 43,139 122,915 309,863 402,476 346,514

*  This information is provided in note T below.

The value in use of the investments in subsidiary undertakings in France Manche SA and Channel Tunnel Group Limited has been

assessed taking into account the most recent valuation of the Concession.

The value in use of the investments in subsidiary undertakings in Europorte SAS has been assessed taking into account the

independent external studies and available cash.

The value in use of Euro-TransManche Holding SAS’s investments in subsidiary undertakings has been assessed on the basis of

an adjusted book value of the asset.

E. Group and associates

E.1 Other financial assets

31 December
2016

31 December

€000 2015

Other non-current financial assets:
Amended Bond Debt (ABD):
— Channel Tunnel Group Limited * 261,330 308,333
- France Manche SA ) 1,127,063 1,127,062
Subtotal ABD 1,388,393 1,435,395
NRS Redemption Premium Debt: France Manche SA * 66,159 78,873
NRS Redemption Premium Debt: Channel Tunnel Group Limited *) 82,073 128,334
NRS Commission Loan: France Manche SA * 80,200 80,200
Intra-group loan: Eurotunnel Agent Services Limited 148,656 159,276
Intra-group loan: GET Elec Limited 144,152 8,507
Intra-group loan: Euro-TransManche Holding SAS 56,600 56,493
Intra-group loan: Europorte SAS - 92,266
Net total 1,966,233 2,039,344

Other current financial assets:
Accrued interest on the ABD: Channel Tunnel Group Limited ) 5,166 6,922
Accrued interest on the ABD: France Manche SA ® 9,811 13,312
Sub-total accrued interest on ABD 14,977 20,234
Accrued interest on loan to Eurotunnel Agent Services Limited 184 192
Accrued interest on NRS Commission Loan: France Manche SA ® 1,079 1,686
Accrued interest on loan to GET Elec Limited 1,176 -
Accrued interest on loan to Europorte SAS - 67
Total 17,416 22,179

*  These receivables (totalling €1,632,881,000) are governed by the Master Intra-Group Debt Agreement as described in chapter 8 of the 2016
Registration Document. This agreement is intended to harmonise (i) the rules for current accounts between Group companies, (i) the interest
rates of the various intra-group debts and (iii) where possible, the other conditions of these intra-group debts in order to facilitate the financial and
accounting management of Group companies and to reflect the financial policy between the Group’s companies. This agreement falls within the
scope of R. 225-31 of the French Commercial Code relating to regulated agreements and commitments.
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Amended Bond Debt (ABD)

The ABD corresponds to the original bond holdings purchased by EGP as part of the 2007 financial restructuring with the proceeds
from the issue of the NRS. This receivable was transferred by EGP to GET SE in 2008 and in 2009 on the basis of a valuation by an
expert. The ABD, the nominal value of which at 31 December 2016 was €1,361 million and £242 million, is accounted for by
GET SE taking into account the discount on its purchase.

The ABD bears interest at EONIA +1% for the receivable from France Manche SA and at LIBOR +1% for the receivable from
Channel Tunnel Group Limited. The ABD is subordinate to the Group’s external financial liabilities supported by France Manche SA
and Channel Tunnel Group Limited, the contractual termination date for which is 2050.

The change in the amount of the ABD with Channel Tunnel Group Limited arises as result of a variation in the exchange rate for the
year. Unrealised gains and losses are recognised on the statement of financial position in exchange adjustment asset or in
exchange adjustment liability as appropriate.

NRS Redemption Premium Debts

The NRS Redemption Premium Debts correspond to the premium of 40% paid by EGP on the early cash redemption of the NRS |
in April and July 2008 and which was due from France Manche SA and Channel Tunnel Group Limited to EGP in accordance with
the terms of the ABD. During 2016, €12.7 million was repaid.

The NRS Redemption Premium Debts carry interest at EONIA +1% for the receivable from France Manche SA and LIBOR +1% for
the receivable from Channel Tunnel Group Limited. During 2016, £23.9 million was repaid.

The change in the amount of the NRS Redemption Premium Debts arises as result of a variation in the exchange rate for the year.
Unrealised gains and losses are recognised on the statement of financial position in exchange adjustment asset or in exchange
adjustment liability as appropriate.

NRS Commission Loan
The NRS Commission Loan corresponds to the amount due by France Manche SA relating to commissions paid by EGP as part of
the financial restructuring in 2007.

The NRS Commission Loan bears interest at EONIA +1%.

Intra-group loan: Eurotunnel Agent Services Limited

This loan, which comprises a euro tranche (€84.9 million) and a sterling tranche (€63.8 million or £54.6 million), was made by
GET SE to its subsidiary Eurotunnel Agent Services Limited as part of the financing of the acquisition by the Group in 2011 and
2012 of the floating rate notes as described in note G.3i to the Group’s consolidated accounts.

This loan bears interest at the same rate and with the same conditions as the floating rate notes acquired by Eurotunnel Agent
Services Limited, i.e. EURIBOR +3.25% for the euro tranche and LIBOR +3.25% for the sterling tranche. The final maturity of this
loan is 2050.

The change in the amount of the Eurotunnel Agent Services Limited loan arises as result of a variation in the exchange rate for the
year. Unrealised gains and losses are recognised on the statement of financial position in exchange adjustment asset or in
exchange adjustment liability as appropriate.

Intra-group loan: Euro-TransManche Holding SAS

The intra-group loan made by GET SE to it subsidiary Euro-TransManche Holding SAS (the holding company for the Group’s
maritime activities) was made in order to finance the acquisition of certain assets from the former SeaFrance group, the
rehabilitation of the ferries and to meet the ongoing cash flow requirements of this activity. At 31 December 2016, this loan
amounted to €56.6 million (31 December 2015: €56 million).

On 24 November 2016, GET SE increased the capital of its subsidiary Euro-TransManche Holding SAS by €9 million by
cancellation of receivables.

This loan bears interest at EONIA +1% and is repayable on demand by GET SE.
Intra-group loan: Europorte SAS
The intra-group loan made by GET SE to its subsidiary Europorte SAS (the holding company for the Group’s rail freight activities)

covered the financing of the acquisition of shareholdings in Europorte SAS’s subsidiaries as well as the financing for the capital
investments (in particular the acquisition of rolling stock) and the ongoing cash flow requirements of Europorte’s subsidiaries.

This loan was fully repaid in 2016, following the sale, by Europorte SAS, of GB Railfreight Limited.
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Intra-group loan: GET Elec Limited

In order to finance the ElecLink project, GET SE made a loan to its subsidiary GET Elec Limited which in turn made a loan to
ElecLink Limited in the form of a shareholder advance. At 31 December 2016, the loan amounted to €144 million or £123.4 million
(31 December 2015: €8.5 million or £6.2 million).

Since August 2016, this loan bears interest at EURIBOR or LIBOR +3%.

E.2 Debt with other Group companies

31 December 31 December
€000 2016 2015

Debt relating to the Funding Loan: France Manche SA ® 196,636 197,139
Debt relating to the Funding Loan: Channel Tunnel Group Limited ® 126,552 147,744
Current account: GB Railfreight Limited - 14
Current account: Eurotunnel Services Limited 267 434
Current account: Eurotunnel Services GIE 64 59
Current account: Eurotunnel Management Services Limited 16 22
Current account: Europorte SAS 2,460 -
Current account: Europorte Proximité SAS 6 -
Current account: Euro-TransManche Holding SAS 1,284 -
Current account: France Manche SA ® 587,573 362,561
Total 914,858 707,973

*  These debts (totalling €910,761,000) are governed by the “Master Intra-Group Debt Agreement”.

The current accounts with GET SE carry interest at LIBOR +1% for the British subsidiaries and EONIA +1% for the French
subsidiaries.

Debt relating to the Funding Loan

These debts correspond to the advances made by France Manche SA and Channel Tunnel Group Limited to EGP as part of the
financial restructuring in 2007. The Funding Loans carry interest at EONIA +1% for the loan from France Manche SA and at LIBOR
+1% for the loan from Channel Tunnel Group Limited. The amount included in the accounts relating to the Funding Loan from
France Manche SA corresponds to the nominal value of the debt (€195,229,000) plus the accrued interest (€1,408,000) and the
amount included in the accounts relating to the Funding Loan from Channel Tunnel Group Limited corresponds to the nominal
value of the debt (€124,811,000 or £106,861,000) plus the accrued interest of €1,741,000.
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E.3 Receivables from other Group companies

31 December 31 December
€000 2016 2015

France Manche SA 13,918 17,824
Eurotunnel Services GIE 3,000 1,992
Eurotunnel Services Limited — 20
Centre International de Formation Ferroviaire de la Cote d’Opale SAS 60 156
Europorte SAS 601 1,214
Channel Tunnel Group Limited 1,377 1,189
Société Immobiliere et Fonciere Eurotunnel SAS 497 186
Eurotunnel SE 154 84
Eurotunnel Management Services Limited 36 -
Europorte Channel SAS - 31
Europorte France SAS 245 142
Socorail SAS 242 157
Europorte Proximité SAS - 4
Eurosco SAS 105 104
GB Railfreight Limited = 2,092
GET Elec Limited 151 -
Euro-TransManche Holding SAS 32 188
GET Finances SAS® 1,238 -
MyFerryLink SAS 27 9
Euro-TransManche 3 SAS 576 13
Euro-TransManche 3 BE SAS 699 109
Euro-TransManche 3 NPC SAS 8 -
Total 22,966 25,514

*  Euro-TransManche 3 SAS changed its name to GET Finances SAS on 24 November 2016.

Receivables from other Group companies relate mainly to the invoicing of management fees.

F. Treasury shares
The movements in the number of treasury shares held during the year were as follows:

Number of shares €000
Financial Financial
® Investments in securities assets ® Investments in securities assets
Allocated Liquidity Allocated Liquidity
to plans contract Total Other to plans contract Total Other TOTAL
At 1%t January 2016 5,596,520 770,000 6,366,520 4,481,281 10,847,801 31,055 8,777 39,832 33,472 73,304
Shares transferred to staff (free
shares) (569,200) (569,200) (569,200) (3,320) (3,320) (3,320)
Share buyback programme - 6,255,000 6,255,000 - 47,836 47,836
Exercise of stock options (79,450) (79,450) (79,450) (419) (419) (419)
Allocated to plans 1,501,975 1,501,975  (1,501,975) = 11,216 11,216 11,216
Net purchase/(sale) under
liquidity contract (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) (2,047) (2,047) (2,047)
At 31 December 2016 6,449,845 760,000 7,209,845 9,234,306 16,444,151 38,532 6,730 45,262 81,308 126,570

*

See note G below.

At 31 December 2016, GET SE held 15,684,151 treasury shares as part of the share buyback programme renewed by the general
meeting of shareholders and implemented by decision of the Board on 27 April 2016. 6,449,845 of these shares are allocated to
cover share option plans and the grant of free shares, whose implementation was approved by the general meeting of
shareholders in 2010, 2011, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016.
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G. Investments in securities and cash and cash equivalents

This includes mainly short-term investments in certificates, deposit accounts and money market funds.

31 December
€000 2016

31 December

2015
Treasury shares (see note F above) 45,262 39,832
Investments in euros 29,911 26,606
Accrued interest on securities - 5
Sub-total 75,173 66,443
Cash at bank and in hand 128,059 3,631
Total 203,232 70,074

At 31 December 2016, GET SE held 760,000 treasury shares purchased by Oddo Seydler Corporate Finance under the liquidity
contract. At 31 December 2016, the value of these shares amounted to €6,866,000 (31 December 2015: €8,824,000) compared to

a cost of acquisition of €6,730,000 (31 December 2015: €8,777,000).

H. Equity
H.1 Share capital

31 December
€ 2016

31 December
2015

550,000,000 fully paid-up ordinary shares each with a nominal value of €0.40 220,000,000.00 220,000,000.00
267 category B fully paid-up preference shares created on 9 May 2016 each with

a nominal value of €0.01 2.67 -
Total 220,000,002.67 220,000,000.00

On 9 May 2016, 267 category B preference shares were issued under the 2014 programme of preference shares convertible into

ordinary shares as described in note H.3 below.

H.2 Statement of changes in equity

Share Result

Share premium Legal Other Retained for the
€000 capital account reserve reserves earnings year Total
At 1 January 2015 220,000 1,711,796 22,422 598,797 404,280 98,809 3,056,104
Payment of dividend 1,537 (98,809) (97,272)
Result for the year 38,455 38,455
At 31 December 2015 220,000 1,711,796 22,422 598,797 405,817 38,455 2,997,287
Payment of dividend (79,699) (38,455) (118,154)
Result for the year 86,273 86,273
At 1 January 2016 220,000 1,711,796 22,422 598,797 326,118 86,273 2,965,406

H.3 Employee share option plans
i. Share options
Share option plan (treated as an equity instrument)

On 26 May 2010, the general meeting of shareholders authorised the Board to grant, in one or several allocations, options over
shares in the company to executives and senior staff of GET SE and its subsidiaries, during a period the duration of which is fixed
at 38 months from 26 May 2010. The total number of options may not give the right to more than 3,900,000 shares of a nominal
value of €0.40 each. The Board has allocated 3,900,000 shares held under the share buyback programme to these options. Under
this scheme, the Board have approved three grants of share options: on 16 July 2010, 21 July 2011 and 20 July 2012.
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Characteristics and conditions of the share option plans
The characteristics and conditions attached to the attribution of the share options are as follows:

Date of grant / main staff
concerned

Number
of options

Conditions for acquiring rights

Vesting
period

Options granted to key
executives and senior staff
on 16 July 2010

1,164,000

Staff must remain as employees of the Group until the
exercise of options.

Performance conditions: 50% of options are subject to
conditions based on the financial performance of the
Group (distribution of a dividend, consolidated EBITDA in
2010 and 2011 above a predetermined level). The
performance conditions were met.

Market performance condition: 50% of options are
conditional on the GET SE share price performing better
than the SBF120 index. The performance conditions were
met.

4 years

Options granted to key
executives and senior staff
on 21 July 2011

1,430,000

Staff must remain as employees of the Group until the
exercise of options.

Performance conditions: 50% of options are subject to
conditions based on the financial performance of the
Group (distribution of a dividend, consolidated EBITDA in
2011 and 2012 above a predetermined level). The
performance conditions were met.

Market performance condition: 50% of options are
conditional on the GET SE share price performing better
than the SBF120 index. The market conditions were not
met.

4 years

Options granted to key
executives and senior staff
on 20 July 2012

1,405,000

Staff must remain as employees of the Group until the
exercise of options.

Performance conditions: 50% of options are subject to
conditions based on the financial performance of the
Group (distribution of a dividend, consolidated EBITDA in
2012 and 2013 above a predetermined level). The
performance conditions were met.

Market performance condition: 50% of options are
conditional on the GET SE share price performing better
than the SBF120 index. The market condition for 2012
was not met. The market condition for 2013 was met.

4 years

Information on the share option plans
The number and the average weighted exercise price of the share options are as follows:

2016 2015

Average Average

weighted weighted

exercise price Number of exercise price

In issue at 1 January
Renounced during the year
Exercised during the year

(in euros) options (in euros)

Number of
options

6.66 1,741,700 6.72
6.59 (21,000) 6.33
6.56 (79,450) 6.97

2,164,250
(9,750)
(412,800)

In issue at 31 December

6.67 1,641,250 6.66

1,741,700

Exercisable at 31 December

6.67 1,641,250 7.12

729,200

Of the 1,641,250 options in issue at 31 December 2016:
e 237,000 are exercisable, subject to staff remaining as employees of the Group, at a price of €6.42 until July 2020,
e 446,500 are exercisable, subject to staff remaining as employees of the Group, at a price of €7.52 until July 2021, and
e 957,750 are exercisable, subject to staff remaining as employees of the Group, at a price of €6.33 until July 2022.
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ii. Grant of free shares

a) Free share plans with no performance conditions

Following the approval by the general meeting of shareholders on 27 April 2016 of the plan to issue existing free shares, GET SE’s
Board of Directors decided on 27 April 2016 to grant a total of 302,325 GET SE ordinary shares (75 shares per employee) to all
employees of GET SE and its related companies with the exception of executive and corporate officers of GET SE. The definitive
acquisition of these shares by the employees is subject to their remaining in employment with the Group and they cannot be sold
for a minimum period of three years.

On 27 April 2016, 351,850 free shares issued in 2012 were acquired by employees and on 28 April 2016, 217,100 free shares
issued in 2014 were acquired by employees.

Number of shares 2015

In issue at 1 January 1,264,750 930,420
Granted during the year 302,325 583,500
Renounced during the year (43,325) (41,770)
Acquired during the year (569,200) (207,400)
In issue at 31 December 954,550 1,264,750

b) Free share plans with performance conditions

On 27 April 2016, the general meeting of shareholders authorised the Board of Directors to grant free shares to executives and
senior staff of the company and its subsidiaries, subject to performance conditions, after a period of three years. The total number
of shares may not give entitlement to more than 1,200,000 ordinary shares with a nominal of €0.40 each. Under this authorisation,
the Board of Directors approved on 20 October 2016, the allocation of 1,200,000 shares.

Characteristics and conditions of the free share plan subject to performance conditions

Number of

ordinary
Date of grant/ shares Vesting
main staff concerned granted Conditions for acquiring rights period
Ordinary shares granted to key 1,200,000 Staff must remain as employees of the Group. 3 years

executives and senior staff on

. o .
50 October 2016 Internal performance condition (50% of the attributable

volume), is based on the Group’s long-term economic
performance measured by reference to the average rate of
achievement of the EBITDA targets announced to the market
for the years 2017 and 2018.

External performance condition (TSR, 40% of the attributable
volume), is based on the stock market performance of the
GET SE share compared to the performance of the DJI index
(dividends included) over a three-year period.

CSR performance condition (10% of attributable volume), is
based on the performance of the 2018 composite CSR index.

Information on the free share plan subject to performance conditions

Number of preference shares 2015

In issue at 1 January = -
Granted during the period 1,179,750 -
Renounced during the period - -
Exercised during the period - -
Expired during the period - -

In issue at 31 December 1,179,750 -

Exercisable at 31 December - -

iii. Preference shares convertible into ordinary shares (treated as equity instruments)

On 29 April 2014, the general meeting of shareholders authorised the Board of Directors to grant to executives and senior staff of
GET SE and its subsidiaries preference shares (class B shares) with a nominal value of €0.01 each with no voting rights which are
convertible into GET SE ordinary shares subject to performance conditions at the end of a four-year period. The total number of
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preference shares may not give the right to more than 1,500,000 ordinary shares of a nominal value of €0.40 each. Under this
scheme, the Board approved on 29 April 2014 the grant of 300 preference shares, each convertible at the end of the four-year
period into a maximum of 5,000 ordinary shares.

On 29 April 2015, the general meeting of shareholders authorised the Board of Directors to grant to executives and senior staff of
GET SE and its subsidiaries preference shares (class C shares) with a nominal value of €0.01 each with no voting rights which are
convertible into GET SE ordinary shares subject to performance conditions at the end of a four-year period. The total number of
preference shares may not give the right to more than 1,000,000 ordinary shares of a nominal value of €0.40 each. Under this
scheme, the Board approved on 29 April 2015 the grant of 2,000 preference shares, each convertible at the end of the four-year
period into a maximum of 500 ordinary shares.

Characteristics and conditions of the preference share plans

Number of

Date of grant/ preference Vesting
main staff concerned shares Conditions for acquiring rights period
Preference shares granted to 300 Staff must remain as employees of the Group. 4 years
key executives and senior staff . "

) Market performance condition: calculated on a tapering scale
on 29 April 2014 (B shares) corresponding to the percentage achievement of a maximum

target of an average price of €11.50.

Preference shares granted to 2,000 Staff must remain as employees of the Group. 4 years

key executives and senior staff

. . N ,
on 29 April 2015 (C shares) Financial performance condition: 70% based on the Group’s

long-term economic performance: achievement of
consolidated EBITDA targets announced to the market for
2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018.

Market performance condition: 20% based on the
performance of the GET SE share price compared to the
DJI index (including dividends) over a four-year period.

CSR performance condition: 10% based on the performance
of the composite CSR index over a four-year period.

Information on the preference share plans

C shares B shares
Number of preference shares 2016 2015 2016 2015
In issue at 1 January 1,995 - 300 300
Granted during the period - 2,000 - -
Renounced during the period 211) 5) (22) -
Acquired during the period - - (166) -
Expired during the period = - - -
In issue at 31 December 1,784 1,995 112 300

Exercisable at 31 December - - - —

I. Provision for risks and charges

Charge to Release of

1 January income unspent  Provisions 31 December
€000 2016  statement provisions utilised 2016
Provision for exchange losses 21,447 131 (20,786) 792
Provision relating to share options and
free shares 11,212 7,035 (3,320) 14,927
Other 512 17 (242) 287
Total 33,171 7,183 - (24,348) 16,006

J. Revenues from sale of services

This item comprises revenues from services charged to the Concessionaires France Manche SA and Channel Tunnel Group
Limited, the rail freight companies via their holding company Europorte SAS and to the maritime companies.
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K. Cost transfers

This item includes the re-invoicing to subsidiaries of the cost of share-based payments and expenses related to the disposal of
discontinued operations and to the acquisition of ElecLink Limited.

L. Purchases and external costs
This item includes costs incurred on behalf of subsidiaries including the Concessionaires.

The fees paid to the statutory auditors relating to the 2016 and 2015 financial years are presented in note D.3 to the Group’s
consolidated accounts.

M. Staff numbers
The average number of staff employed during the year was 17 (2015: 16).

At 31 December 2016, 16 staff were employed by the company (31 December 2015: 18).

N. Exchange gains and losses

In 2016, this included realised exchange gains and losses arising from intra-group payables and receivables.

O. Interest and related income and charges

€’000 2015

Interest and related income

Interest due from Channel Tunnel Group Limited on the ABD *) 5,166 6,922
Interest due from France Manche SA on the ABD ) 9,811 13,312
Interest due from Eurotunnel Agent Services Limited 5,991 6,568
Interest due from France Manche SA on the NRS Commission Loan and the

NRS Redemption Premium Loan * 1,079 1,687
Interest due from Europorte on intra-group loans 634 894
Interest due from GET Elec Limited 1,176 -
Interest due from Euro-TransManche Holding SAS 472 1,296
Bank interest 195 124
Total 24,524 30,803

Interest and related charges

Interest due to France Manche SA on the Funding Loan * 1,408 1,910
Interest due to Channel Tunnel Group Limited on the Funding Loan ® 1,741 2,147
Interest due on intra-group current accounts ® 3,294 3,474
Total 6,443 7,531

*  These amounts (totalling €9,613,000: received €16,056,000, paid €6,443,000) are governed by the Master Intra-Group Debt Agreement.

P. Financial depreciation and provisions

31 December 31 December
€000 2016 2015

Release of provision/ (provision) for depreciation of investment in subsidiary

undertakings and associated receivables (see note A.2iv above) (8,436) 17,822
Provision for exchange losses 20,786 (8,402)
Total 12,350 9,420
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Q. Exceptional result

31 December

31 December

€000 2016 2015
Exceptional charges (8,044) (3,130)
Exceptional income 3,201 6,089
Other provisions (63) 41)
Release of other provisions 3,561 1,289
Total (1,345) 4,207

Exceptional charges and income relate primarily to the gains and losses recognised on the sale of treasury shares

(see note B.5 above).

In 2016, GET SE released a provision for free shares for €3,320,000 (€1,283,000 in 2015) (see note B.5 above) against a charge of

€3,320,000 (€1,211,000 in 2015) following the transfer of shares to Group staff (see note F above).

R. Tax and fiscal situation

GET SE is the parent company of the consolidated tax group which it formed on 1 January 2008 with all the Group’s French

subsidiaries.

R.1 Taxation accounted for through the income statement

31 December
€000 2016

31 December

2015
Tax income/(expense) of tax consolidation 988 (27,783)
Utilisation of brought forward fiscal deficits - 18,679
Total income tax 988 (9,104)
Tax on dividends (3,545) (2,918)
Tax consolidation of subsidiaries 23,591 9,188
Total tax 21,034 (2,834)

Information presented on the basis of the tax rate applicable in 2016 on taxable transactions of 34.43%.

GET SE’s taxable result, excluding integration, was a loss of €34 million (31 December 2015: profit of €48.9 million). The taxable

result for the consolidated tax group was a profit of €21 million (2015: 73.1 million).

In 2016, the current tax income corresponds to a tax refund in respect of previous years.

R.2 Reductions and increases in future tax liabilities

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
€000 Base Tax Base Tax
Tax losses 884,625 255,834 885,606 304,914
Other (including exchange difference liabilities and
provision for exchange risk) 14,618 5,033 113,266 38,997
Total reductions in future tax liabilities 899,243 260,867 998,872 343,911
Unrealised gain on the restructuring profit 1,364,387 394,635 1,364,387 469,758
Other (including exchange difference assets) 793 273 29,868 10,284
Total increases in future tax liabilities 1,365,180 394,908 1,394,255 480,042

Information presented on the basis of a future tax rate applicable on taxable transactions of 34.43% and 28.92% from 2019.

Carried forward losses of the tax consolidation group

At 31 December 2016, the cumulative tax losses of the tax group which can be carried forward indefinitely and are chargeable to

the taxable profits of the members of this group amount to €885 million (31 December 2015: €885 million).
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Losses carried forward from the old consolidation group TNU SA

At 31 December 2016, cumulative tax losses of the old tax consolidation group TNU SA amounting to €21 million were charged to
the taxable profits of the members of this group. These deficits, which amounted to €1,940 million at 31 December 2016
(31 December 2015: €1,961 million) may only be applied to the taxable profits of FM, Europorte SAS and Société Immobiliere et
Fonciére Eurotunnel SAS.

Profit arising from the restructuring

The financial restructuring in 2007 led to a restructuring profit in the accounts of the Eurotunnel Group of €3,323 million. At
31 December 2016, €1,364 million of this amount remains deferred within the French tax group. The taxation of this profit is
dependent on the repayment of the Amended Bond Debt (see note E.1 above) between the Concessionaires (France Manche SA
and Channel Tunnel Group Limited) and Groupe Eurotunnel SE, which in turn depends on the repayment of the Term Loan by the
Concessionaires which matures in 2050.

S. Earnings per share and effect of dilution

2015

Weighted average number:

- of issued ordinary shares 550,000,000 550,000,000
- of treasury shares (14,295,058) (9,921,815)
Number of shares used to calculate the result per share (A) 535,704,942 540,078,185
- effect of share options i 531,990 886,921
- effect of free shares ii 1,943,874 1,340,691
- effect of preference shares iii 1,501,796 2,498,611
Potential number of ordinary shares (B) 3,977,660 4,726,223
Number of shares used to calculate the diluted result per share (A+B) 539,682,602 544,804,408
Net profit (€°000) (C) 86,273 38,455

Profit per share (€) (C/A) 0.16 0.07

Profit per share after dilution (€) (C/(A+B)) 0.16 0.07

The calculations were made on the following basis:

() on the assumption of the exercise of all the options issued and still in issue at 31 December 2016. The exercise of these
options is conditional on the criteria described in note H.3i above;

(i) on the assumption of the acquisition of all the free shares allocated to staff. 569,200 of the free shares issued to staff in 2012
and 2014 were acquired by them during the period. Details of free shares are given in note H.3ii above; and

(i) on the assumption of the acquisition of all the preference shares allocated to staff and still in issue at 31 December 2016.
Conversion of these preference shares is subject to achieving certain targets and remaining in the Group’s employment as
described in note H.3iii above.

T. Commitments and contingent liabilities

GET SE, France Manche SA, Channel Tunnel Group Limited, Eurotunnel SE, Eurotunnel Finance Limited, ESGIE, ESL and
EurotunnelPlus Limited jointly and severally guarantee the obligations of France Manche SA and Channel Tunnel Group Limited in
respect of the Term Loan. In order to guarantee these obligations, these companies have granted security as described in note G.5
of GET SE’s consolidated financial statements.
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U. Related party transactions

U.1 Subsidiaries of the Eurotunnel Group

The main transactions carried out with related parties (the other companies within the Eurotunnel Group), as well as the receivables
and the payables relating to these companies, are as follows:

31 December 31 December

Statement of financial position (€’000) Note 2016 2015
Other non-current financial assets E.1 1,966,233 2,039,344
Group and associates receivables E.3 22,966 25,514
Other current financial assets E.1 17,416 22,179

Assets 2,006,615 2,087,037
Group and associates E.2 914,858 707,973

Liabilities 914,858 707,973

Income statement (€°000)

2015

F

France Manche SA 15,259 13,519
Europorte SAS 2,750 2,744
Euro-TransManche Holding SAS 219 480
Centre International de Formation Ferroviaire de la Cote d’Opale SAS 2 9
Sales 18,230 16,752
Recharge of cost of free share plans 6,475 7,997
Europorte SAS 2,740 -
GET Elec Limited 1,679 -
Euro-TransManche SAS 480 -
Euro-TransManche 3 BE SAS 583 -
Euro-TransManche 3 NPC SAS 7 -
Cost transfers 11,964 7,997
Eurotunnel Services GIE 645 682
Eurotunnel Services Limited 432 443
GB Railfreight Limited 178 231
Eurotunnel Management Services Limited 248 214
Europorte SAS 158 127
Purchases 1,661 1,697
France Manche SA 4,702 5,384
Channel Tunnel Group Limited 1,741 2,147
Financial charges 6,443 7,531
France Manche SA 10,890 14,999
Channel Tunnel Group Limited 5,166 6,922
Euro-TransManche Holding SAS 472 1,296
GET Elec Limited 1,176 -
Europorte SAS 634 894
Eurotunnel Agent Services Limited 5,992 6,568
Financial income 24,330 30,679

U.2 Remuneration of Directors and senior executive officers
The amount of remuneration paid to members of the Board and senior executive officers is included in chapter 5 of the 2016
Registration Document.

V. Events after the reporting period
Nothing to report.
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2.2.3 TABLE OF GET SE PARENT COMPANY RESULTS FOR THE LAST FIVE FINANCIAL YEARS

m 2015 2014 2013 2012
Capital at end of financial year

Share capital (in EUR) 220,000,002.67 220,000,000.00 220,000,000.00 220,000,000.00 220,000,000.00
Number of existing ordinary shares 550,000,000 550,000,000 550,000,000 550,000,000 550,000,000

Number of existing preference
shares 267 - - - -

Maximum number of future

ordinary shares to be created on

exercise of rights of holders of

securities giving access to GET SE

equity® 3,977,660 4,726,223 2,316,726 1,398,503 1,375,858

Transactions and results for the
year (€’000)

Revenue excluding tax 21,121 16,752 17,586 12,761 14,101
Payroll costs 2,940 2,869 2,706 1,862 2,051
Amount of benefits 1,477 1,759 1,579 917 1,053
Number of employees 17 16 14 11 10

Result before tax, employee

participation and depreciation and

provisions 63,503 39,569 128,598 31,716 30,800
Tax on profits 21,034 (2,834) (2,750) (1,847) 188
Result after tax, employee

participation and depreciation and

provisions 86,273 38,455 98,809 1,889 9,347

Distributed result 143,000 118,154 97,272 80,886 65,189

Earnings per share (€)

Result after tax, employee
participation and before
depreciation and provisions 0.00 0.07 0.18 NS 0.02

Result after tax, employee
participation and depreciation and
provisions 0.16 0.07 0.18 NS 0.02

Dividend per ordinary share 0.26 0.22 0.18 0.15 0.12

*

For details, see note H.2i of the consolidated accounts in section 2.2.1 of this Registration Document.

*%

Subject to approval by the general meeting on 27 April 2017 of the appropriation of the 2016 result.

2.3. TRENDS, OUTLOOK, RECENT EVENTS AND EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the reporting period are described in note J to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year set out in
section 2.2.1 of this Registration Document.

Trends
The main trends that concern or affect the activities of Groupe Eurotunnel SE are described in chapter 1 of this Registration
Document.

On 23 June 2016, the United Kingdom decided, via a referendum, to leave the European Union. This unprecedented situation has
opened up a period of uncertainty, the effects of which have been seen in the financial markets. However, as the mechanisms and
the measures for the United Kingdom’s exit from the EU are yet to be defined, it is difficult to predict what impact, if any, this
decision may have on cross-Channel transport and the Group’s activities.

As indicated in section 2.1 of this Registration Document, the Group has not at this stage seen any impact from this decision on its
traffic, in either its passenger or freight activities. In 2016, the Eurotunnel Group has again demonstrated its capacity to continue its
development, despite a sometimes difficult geopolitical environment. Thanks to the continued economic growth in the
United Kingdom and the security provided to customers as a result of the Group’s various investments, Truck Shuttle traffic in 2016
enjoyed an exceptional year and by far outperformed the Short Straits market. Despite the terrorist attacks that have greatly

2016 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT - GROUPE EUROTUNNEL SE

O

G

®



L2 ) RESULTS AND OUTLOOK

¢

affected their main destinations, the high-speed train services that link London to Paris, Brussels or the South of France via the
Tunnel, ended the year with record-breaking numbers of passengers. They should also benefit from the opening at the end of 2017
of the new service to Amsterdam. In this context, the Eurotunnel Group has achieved in 2016 an EBITDA that is slightly above the
objective announced to the market, on the basis of an equivalent exchange rate and scope of consolidation.

The Group’s priority is to ensure a regular increase in the remuneration of its shareholders, while preserving sufficient self-financing
capacity to enable investment in the Tunnel and to ensure the Group’s development.

As a result, the Group intends to pursue its policy of steady dividend growth for its shareholders with a view to achieving an
objective of a dividend of €0.35 per share for the 2018 financial year. In this perspective, the Group will therefore propose to
increase the dividend for the 2016 financial year to €0.26 per ordinary share with dividend rights.

The Group remains confident in the solidity of the economic model of its Fixed Link activity. The Tunnel is, and will increasingly
assert itself as, a major player in the commercial exchanges between the United Kingdom and continental Europe.

The Eurotunnel Group intends to stimulate growth in Tunnel traffic while increasing its margins. In order to do this, the Group will
pursue its major investment projects in order to increase capacity and improve quality of service: the extension of the terminals, the
entry into service of three new Truck Shuttles in 2017 and the opening of the new Flexiplus lounges in 2017. Through these
investments, the Tunnel aims to become a key strategic partner for all its customers and to be in a position to carry 2 million trucks
and 3 million cars on its Shuttles by 2020.

In order to strengthen the economic position of its principal asset, the Eurotunnel Group will focus in 2017 on developing its rail
freight business by focusing on the profitability of its operations.

The Group intends to enhance the value of the Tunnel infrastructure with the construction of a 1,000 MW electricity interconnector
between the United Kingdom and continental Europe. It therefore acquired Star Capital’s shareholding in the ElecLink project in
August 2016 and to complete the construction of the interconnector, preliminary work on which began in the last quarter of 2016.

The Eurotunnel Group continues to prepare the refinancing of its debt, with a particular focus on the floating rate tranches, with the
objective, subject to market conditions, of minimising the on-going cost of servicing the Group’s debt.

With this confidence in its future, the Group confirms its financial objective of an EBITDA of €530 million for 2017 and sets a
financial objective of an EBITDA of €560 million for 2018 (based on an exchange rate of £1=€1.175 and the current scope of
consolidation).”

Forecasts
The Group does not publish forecasts.

Recent events
The text of the law authorising the power to invoke Article 50 of the Treaty on European Union was adopted definitively by the
parliament of the United Kingdom on 13 March 2017.

2.4. OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Historical financial information

The financial information presented in this Registration Document (in section 2.2) or included by reference in this document
pursuant to article 28-1 of European Commission Regulation (EC) 809-2004, relates to GET SE, the Group’s holding company, and
its subsidiaries.

Pro forma financial information
None.

(*) This objective is based on data, assumptions and estimates that are considered to be reasonable. They take particular account of the
consequences of the geopolitical context but are however liable to change or to be modified due to uncertainties related in particular to the
economic, financial, competitive and regulatory environment. Furthermore, the materialisation of certain risks as described in chapter 3 “Risks
and controls” of this Registration Document could have an impact on the Group’s activities and its capacity to achieve its objectives. The
Eurotunnel Group does not therefore make any commitments nor does it give any guarantee that the objectives will be met, and the forward-
looking information contained in this chapter cannot be used to make a forecast of results.
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Auditing of historical annual financial information

The reports of the statutory auditors on the parent company and consolidated financial statements of GET SE for the year ended
31 December 2016 are set out in section 2.2 of this Registration Document. The reports of the statutory auditors on the parent
company and consolidated financial statements of GET SE for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014
(contained in section 20.3 of the 2015 Registration Document and the 2014 Registration Document respectively) are incorporated
by reference in this Registration Document pursuant to article 28-1 of European Commission Regulation (EC) 809-2004.

Date of latest financial information
The last financial year for which audited financial information is available is the year ended 31 December 2016.

Interim and other financial information
None.

Statutory auditors’ fees

KPMG Mazars

Amount Amount
(pre-tax) % (pre-tax) %

€000 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Audit

Statutory auditors, certification,

examination of the individual and

consolidated accounts:
Issuer 303 297 36% 29% 225 218 24% 27%
Fully consolidated subsidiaries 452 497 53% 48% 580 530 62% 67%

Other fees and services directly

linked to the duti